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Sub: Annual Financials Information/Statements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust for the 

period ended March 31, 2025. 
 

 
 
In continuation to our earlier letter dated May 5, 2025 regarding the outcome of meeting of Board of 
Directors of Brookprop Management Services Private Limited, the manager of Brookfield India Real 
Estate Trust, please find enclosed signed audited condensed standalone financial statements and 
audited condensed consolidated financial statements of Brookfield India REIT for the quarter, half 
year and year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
The documents referred above are also uploaded on our website at: 
https://www.brookfieldindiareit.in/financial-updates/#results. 
 
Please take the above information on record. 
 
Thanking You. 
Yours Faithfully, 
 
For Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
(as manager of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust) 
 
 
 
Saurabh Jain  
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Cc:  
Axis Trustee Services Limited  
Axis House, P B Marg, Worli,  
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400025   
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Fax: +91 124 679 2012 
 
 

 
ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL CONDENSED 

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REVIEW OF QUARTERLY AND HALF 
YEARLY CONDENSED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
To The Board of Directors 
Brookprop  
(Acting in capacity as the Manager of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust) 
 
Opinion and Conclusion 
 
We have: 

 
(i) audited the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 

2025 which comprise the following: 
 

 the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025; 
 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income) for the year ended 31 March 2025; 
 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 

March 2025; 
 

year ended 31 March 2025; 
 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at 31 March 

2025; 
 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Total Return at Fair Value for the year 

ended 31 March 2025; 
 the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025; 

and 
 summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes; 

 
(ii) reviewed the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements which comprise of the 

section below): 
 

 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income) for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025; 

 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter and half 
year ended 31 March 2025; 

 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Total Return at Fair Value for the half 
year ended 31 March 2025; 

 the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the quarter and half year 
ended 31 March 2025; and 

 summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes. 
 

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 

the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and 

Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

• 
• 

• 

Management Services Private Limited (the "Manager") 

• the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity for the 

• 

• 

• 

• 

following for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 (refer 'Other Matter' 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

These financial statements are included in the accompanying "Condensed Standalone 
Financial Statements" of ("the REIT"), ("the 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements"), being submitted by the REIT pursuant to 



 

circulars issued thereunder read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024  

 
(a) Opinion on Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025: 
 

i) is presented in accordance with the requirements of the REIT regulations in the 
manner so required; and 
 

ii) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard 34 

generally accepted in India to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 
Regulations, of the state of affairs of the REIT as at 31 March 2025, its profit 
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows, its changes in 

net distributable cash flow and other financial information of the REIT for the 
year then ended. 

 
(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for 

the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 
 

With respect to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and 
half year ended 31 March 2025, based on our review conducted and procedures 

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Condensed 
Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025, 
prepared in accordance with the REIT regulations, Ind AS 34 and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 
Regulations, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of 
the REIT regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it 
contains any material misstatement. 

 
Basis for Opinion on the Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31 March 2025 
 

section 
below. We are independent of the REIT in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 9(a)(i) of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, 

Regulations. Our opinion and conclusion are not modified in respect of this matter. 
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(the "REIT regulations"). 

"Interim Financial Reporting" ("Ind AS 34") and other accounting principles 

Unitholder's equity, its net assets at fair value, its total return at fair value, its 

performed as stated in paragraph (b) of Auditor's Responsibilities section below, 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in paragraph (a) of Auditor's Responsibilities 

the ICAI and have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAI's Code 

which describes the presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" to comply with the REIT 



 

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for the Condensed 
Standalone Financial Statements 
  
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements is the responsibility of the Board of 

This responsibility includes the preparation and presentation of the Condensed Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 
2025, financial performance including other comprehensive income and cash flows for the 
quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2025, its changes in Unitho
the year ended 31 March 2025, its net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2025, its total 
return at fair value for the half year and year ended 31 March 2025, its net distributable 
cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2025 and other financial 
information of the REIT in conformity with the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34 and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT 
Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
for safeguarding the assets of the REIT and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Condensed Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.   
 
In preparing the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, the management and Board 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intends to liquidate the REIT or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 
The Board is also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the REIT. 
 

 
 
(a) Audit of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 

31 March 2025 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed 
Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

hat includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of this Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.   

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Condensed 

Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
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Directors of the Manager (the "Board") and has been approved by them for the issuance. 

lder's equity for 

of the Manager is responsible for assessing the REIT's ability, to continue as a going 

Auditor's Responsibilities 

auditor's report t 

• 



 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.   
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

control.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by the Board of the Manager. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the 
Board in terms of the requirements specified under the REIT regulations. 
 

 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the REIT to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

cease to continue as a going concern.  
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Condensed 
Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Condensed Standalone Financial 
Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Condensed Standalone Financial 
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. 
  
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
 
 

Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells 

• 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the REIT's internal 

• 

• 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Manager's use of the going 

our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Condensed Standalone 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the REIT to 

• 



 

(b) Review of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter 
and half year ended 31 March 2025 
 
We conducted our review of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the 
quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the Standard on 

Performed by the Independ

personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical 
and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be 
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

 
Other Matter 

 
As stated in Note 33 of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, the financial 
information for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 are the balancing figures 
between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to 
date figures up to the third quarter and second quarter of the current financial year which 
were subject to limited review by us. Our report on the Condensed Standalone Financial 
Statements is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 

( ) 
 
 
 
 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 

(Membership No. 110815) 
(UDIN: 25110815BMOEXF8244) 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 5 May 2025 
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Review Engagements ("SRE") 2410 'Review of Interim Financial Information 
ent Auditor of the Entity', issued by the ICAI. A review of 

interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Manager's 

Firm's Reg. No. 015125N 

Anand 
Digitally signed by 
Anand Subramanian 

Subramanian Date: 202s.os.os 
23:19:32 +05'30' 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current assets 
Financial assets 
-Investments 
-Loans 

Non-current tax assets (net) 
Total non-current assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 
-Cash and cash equivalents 
-Other bank balances 
-Other financial assets 
Other current assets 
Total current assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Unit Capital 
Other equity 
Total equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
-Borrowings 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
-Borrowings 
-Trade payables 

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

-Other financial liabilities 
Other current liabilities 
Total current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Material accounting policies 

Note 

3 
4 
5 

6 
6(a) 

7 
8 

9 
IO 

II 
12 

13 
14 

15 
16 

2 

As at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

1,11,872.88 
45 ,424.64 

0.89 
1,57,298.41 

2,094.50 
185.00 

1,696.15 
5.07 

3,980.72 
1,61,279.13 

l ,51,I06.86 
3,037.28 

1,54,144.14 

5,185.35 
328.57 

5,513.92 

1,507.86 

0.24 
80.33 
22.94 

9.70 
1,621.07 
7,134.99 

1,61,279.13 

As at 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

95,373.16 
19,053.69 

1.17 
1,14,428.02 

2,392.89 

443.93 
20.58 

2 857.40 
1,17,285.42 

1,09,101.43 
714.41 

1,09,815.84 

25.60 
25.60 

7,284.87 

0.28 
50.97 

102.81 
5.05 

7 443.98 
7,469.58 

1,17,285.42 

The accompanying notes from I to 34 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand D;g;tallys;gnedby 

Subramania ~::;~~~:~t;;ian 
n 23:21 :00 +os•30• 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: I 10815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
( as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

ANKUR ~ig!~iLJ~~n~A 

GUPTA ~:;.:;~':.;~!f.; 

AnkurGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Dlgltallyslgoed 
by AMIT JAIN 

AMIT JAIN""'" 
2025.05.0S 
23:02:SStOS'J0' 

Amit Jain 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Alok Aggarwal 
CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 
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2.97 
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17.37 
120.97 
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J,251.2' 

9.73 

164.09 

3,087.20 

3,087.20 

1,573.81 

7.86 
3.78 

33.62 
0.74 

18.85 
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13.21 
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Anand Subnmanlan 
p-
Mcmbcnhip No: 110815 
Place:Beng1l111U 
Oat~: 05 May 2025 

For and m behalf oflhe Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Mllllllgemmf Semtff Prtva1e Llalite4 
(a• Manago:,- lo tb,: Brwkfidd 1o<1ia REIT) 

ANKUR ~=="' 
GUPTA =~':: 
AnbrGupt• 
Director 
DIN No.08687570 
Pla~: Mumbai 
Date:05 May2025 
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36.22 
337.21 

22.25 
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37.37 

4,436.32 

7.96 
7.96 

J,471l.20 

15.37 

'" 52.25 

20.78 
375.30 

19.88 

2,984.18 

30.10 
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Date:0SM.)'2025 
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49.13 
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10.05 
12.86 
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18.58 
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4,962.44 3,889.37 
2,191.74 0.59 

8,502.83 

26. 19 
21.33 

125.7] 

57.00 
712.52 

42.13 

7,5108 

67.47 

370.44 

7,144.~4 

1,144.54 

14.02 
14.02 

20.26 
20.82 
90.92 

39.95 
344.79 
401.15 

2,ffU2 

72.29 

(14.82) 

2,,aJ., 4 

7.40 
7.40 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated) 

Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity 

(a) Unit Capital 
Balance as on 01 April 2023 
Changes in unit capital during the previous period: 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023# 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023# 
Add: Units issued during the year (refer note 9) 
Less: Issue expenses (refer note 9) 
Balance at the end of the previous reporting year 31 March 2024 
Balance as on 01 April 2024 
Changes in unit capital during the current period: 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024# 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024# 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2024# 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2024# 
Add: Units issued during the year (refer note 9) 
Less: Issue expenses (refer note 9) 
Balance at the end of the current reporting year 31 March 2025 

(b) Other equity 

Unit in Nos. Amount 

33,50,87,073 86,556.65 

(891.33) 
(861.30) 
(939.64) 

(1,088.93) 
10,39,98,149 27,053.59 

(727 .61) 
43,90,85,222 1,09,101.43 
43,90,85,222 1,09,101.43 

(1,102.10) 
(1,022.43) 
(1,142.44) 
(1,343 .13) 

16,86,67 ,226 47,279.00 
(663.46) 

60, 77,52,448 1,51,106.86 

Particulars 
Retained earnings 

Balance as on 01 April 2023 1,283.93 
Add: Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 2,983.94 
Add: Other comorehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 -
Add: Total Comnrehensive Income for the orevious vear 2 983.94 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# (784 .10 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# (780.29 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the auarter ended 30 Seotember 2023# (992 .34 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023# (996 .73 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 714.41 
Balance as oo 01 April 2024 714.41 
Add: Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 7,144.54 
Add: Other comorehensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2025 -
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the current year 7,144.54 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024# (983.55) 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the auarter ended 30 June 2024# (1,137 .64 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the auarter ended 30 Seotember 2024# (1,065 .63 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2024# (1,634 .85) 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3 037.28 

#The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Brookfield India REIT under the REIT Regulations. 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Digitally signed by 
Anand Subramanian 

Subramanian ~;~e~:~~~0~~3~~ 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

ANKUR ~::~:y:~~by 
GUPTA ~~e~,!~2:o~~; 

AnkurGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

AMIT 
JAIN 

Digitally signed 
by AMIT JAIN 
Date:202S.OS.0S 
23:04:13 -t-05'30' 

Amit Jain 
ChiefFinancial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

ALOK 
AGGARW 
AL 

Digitally signed 
b)'ALOK 
AGGARWAL 
Date:2025.05.05 
23:01:20+05'30' 

AlokAggarwal 
CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 
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Fordle1uarterended Fortbequarterended Fordle1uarterended Fortbeltalfyearended Fortbeltalfyearended Fortbeltalf yearended Fordle1nrmded Fordle1nrmded 
31 Man:b102!§ 31 Oect-mbe.-1014 31 l\-t.nh1024 31 i\tan:b102!§ 30Sept:ember1024 31 i\tan:b1014 31 i\tan:b102!§ 31 Man:b1014 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaud ited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

Cuh flVM fl-om opentlnC adhffln: 
Profrt befORlax 
Adjumnenb for: 
Dividendincomc 
lntc:R.ltinoomeon loanio sublidiarics 
lntc:R.ltinoomeondcbcnrures 
brtm:atincome onnon-convcrtibledebenturea 
brtm:at income on depooitt wilh bonk.o 
Finanoc coaa 
L011/(Gain) on ilr.'Cllmcnt in Compulao,y Convertible Debentures al fair value through 
profrtoclon 

()pff..ttns: euh flowa before wortdnr capital d,anin 

Movement& In worldnc capital: 
(lncnaac)IDc«eaacinothc:rcurrmtandnoncwrcntu1cu 
Jnc!Qlle inCIUl"Cntfinanci1lli1bilitiC1•tnidcinyablea 
Jnc!Qllc/ ~ e)inCIUl"CntandnonCIUTetUfinancialli1bilitiea • odten 
Jnc!Qllc/ ~ e)inothc:rcwrcntandnonCIUl"Cntliabilitiea 
Cuh (uae4 in>'Jmffaled from o.,.ratini activlde,; 
lncometaxea(paid)lrd"undlreccivcd(nct) 
NH euh (med) In o.,.Mltinc anlvhln (A) 

Cuh flVM fl-om lnvealinc adhrttln : 
Loanto 111blidiariea 
Loann,paidby allblidiariea 
lnvu tmmtincq11ity 1bareaof1ublidiaryfloinlvc:nturc,includinadircw.ylltlribulable 

"'"""'" lnvc11mentindcbcnruresiu"cdby a"blidiariea 
lnvc11mentinnonconvertible debentureaiu"cdby a"blidiarica 
Rcpaymmt of lnvca1men1 in non-convcrtibl.c dcbcntura Uaucd by 1umidiaric1 
Depoeiu with banb matured 
Dcpoeiuwithbanbm1dc 
brtercatreccivcdondepooittwilhbonk.o 
lntc:R.ltreccivcdonilr.a tmcntindcbenwn,a 
lntc:R.ltreccivcdonilr.a tmcntinnon-convc:rtiblcdebenturea 
brtm:atreccivcdonloanl0 1"midiariea 
Dividendreccivcd 
NH euh cenerated fl'om/(med) In lnvealinc adhrttln (B) 

Cuh flVM fl-om flnanclnc anhrtdn : 
Proceedsfrom iuucofUnitoapital 
Proceedlfromlong-tenabom>winp 
Repayment of fflort.-tmn bomiwina• 
Proceedsfrom.tion~bon'owina• 
Proceedsfrom iuucofcommcrcialpapcn 
Repayment of oommm:ial ,-per 
~ incJUTCd IOwardt imtitlltional placement 
ExpcnscinwrrcdlOwardsprd'ercntialallotmmt 
Finanoccoa1inid 
Di•ln"biitionlOwutholdcn 
Nel cub (med in)/ ,_rued from llnanc:lni •dhitln (C) 

Net (deereau),lncreau in euh and cuh 11utva1enu, (A+B+C) 

Cuh and c,uh equlvalmb at the bep1W1in1: of die period/ 1ear 

Cuh and cuh equlvalnta at the m d of the period/ year (refer nole 6) 

Componenb of cub and rub ~uivalenb at dseend ofdie .,.riod/,~v 

Balanccawithbanka 
• inCllfT"elltaooounl 
• indepooilaccowrt 

3,2jl.29 

(749.19) 
(1,263.68) 

(139.67) 
(238,0j) 

(22.76) 
120.97 

(1,032,jO) 

C73.!§9) 

4.0S 
6.62 
1.46 
U2 

(62.98) 
(1 5.26) 
(78.14) 

(1,179.68) 
1,348.10 

(1,004.00) 

417.00 
390.00 

(43j ,00) 
24.74 
140.42 
2S0. 12 
448.SO 
749.19 

(1,77S.00) 
1,775.00 

(484.43) 

(116.78) 
{;m.69) 
Q!§78.90) 

(1,!§07.75) 

1,094.!§0 

12.50 
2,082.00 

1,279.SI 

(317.30) 
(702.43) 
(140.42) 
(2S0.12) 

(64.66) 
216.24 

, . ., 
'-" 8.18 

(90.11) 
l.6S 

(54..23) 
(21.1 8) 
(75.41) 

(2S,33S.30) 
1,397.64 

(1,012.92) 

274.00 
315.00 

(140.00) 
63.13 

140.3j 
2j8,j8 

1,323.14 
317,30 

(23,lff.08) 

35,000.00 
164.00 

(1,77S,OO) 
2,77S.OO 

(j,066,61) 
(163.8S) 

(0.j6) 
(116.15) 

(2207.n) 
17609.08 

4,134.!§, 

467.66 

4,602.2!§ 

12.2s 
4S90.00 
4.60:z.1!§ 

I. Theatatementofcashfl.._ has bcenJl""Pl'l'Cdin accordanocwilh "lndircct.M~odftu..,1<1111 in lndianAocounting Standard •7: "StalemcntonCuh A.._ft. 

916.81 

(634.40) 
(138,,,) 
(264.19) 
(2U8) 
140. 18 
(48.S4) 

(SU7) 

(3.84) 
4.33 
0.00 
1.43 

(!ll.!§5) 
(13.22) 
(65.77) 

(590.00) 
l ,S97.92 

(S4.07) 

24.09 
l38,jj 

264.19 
S92.48 

1,060.16 

(66.94) 

(7,j3) 
(2,083.42) 
Q1!§7.8') 

(1'3.!§0) 

1,391.8' 

14.89 
2,378.00 
1.J91,8' 

4,S30.80 

(1,066.49) 
(1,966.11) 

(280.09) 
(488.17) 

(87.42) 
337.21 

(1,032.jO) 

(!ll.77) 

9.28 
14.80 

(88.6S) 
0,13 

(117-11) 
(36.44) 

(1!§3.65) 

(26,Sl4.98) 
2,74S.74 

(3,016.92) 

691.00 
70S.OO 

(S7S,OO) 
87.87 

280.77 
S08.70 

1,771.64 
1066.49 

3S,OOO.OO 
164.00 

(S, SS0.00) 
5,550.00 

(S,066.61) 
(648.28) 

(O.S6) 
(232.93) 

(SISS.44) 
14030.18 

1,626.IM 

4'7.66 

1,0M.!§0 

12.SO 
2,082.00 

2,984.18 

(282.16) 
(1,269.41) 

(279.SS) 
(S21.22) 

(70,43) 
37'.30 

(1,055.40) 

(118.71) 

(0.44) 
l4.S2 
(0.00) 

0,Q3 

(104.61) 
(30.76) 

(13!§.37) 

(3,672.S2) 
1,070.81 

(29.90) 

(31S.OO) 
69.13 

139.23 
262.64 
S90.23 
282.16 

(1,380.11) 

S,OSJ.61 

1,500.00 
9,642.80 

(12,300.00) 
(13.S2) 

(2.08) 
(43.58) 

(4246.87) 
[409.6") 

(l ,'25.23) 

1,.3'2.8' 

8.66 
4S9.00 

1,830.92 

(1,300.23) 
(278.90) 
038.89) 
(Sl.6S) 
279.25 
(48.S4) 

(108.IM) 

1.27 
7.64 
0.00 
1.49 

(97.6") 
(17.07) 

(114.71) 

(784.12) 
2,467.92 
(136.15) 

41.73 

S2.26 
278.90 
S38.89 

l ,19S.93 

3,963.3' 

(j60,57) 
(0.86) 
(8.12) 

{40!S.23) 

(736.ll) 

3,119.01 

1,391.89 

14.89 
2,378.00 
1.J91,8' 

2. The Truat hu i1111cd Unitt in exchange for invcalmentll in Rootr,w and Kairoo durina the halfyCIII' ended 30 Sq,tembcr 2024 and yc•cndcd 31 Mai,:h 2024 re•pc<:tivcly. The 111111e has not been reflcclcd in Condemed Standalone Financial Stalemenls. 

Malcrialaccountinapolicica(ttfcrnolc2) 

Thcaceompanyingnolcs from I !034 fonn aninlcanl part oflhc1e Condcn1cd Standalone Financial Slatcmenta. 

Ar.pcrourrcportofevcndalc 1ttachcd 
For DELOITI'E HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartem!Acoounlantt 
Firm Rcgiltntion No.: 0151'.ljN 

Anand Digita lly sig ned 
by Anand 

Subraman Subramanian 

ian 
Anand Subramanian 

P""'a 

Date: 2025.05.05 
23:22:52 +05'30' 

McmbcnhipNo: 11081S 

Plaoc: Bcng1luru 
D11c:OSMay202S 

Forandonbcba1fofthcBoardofDirectonof 
l:lrookpn,p Manarmml S.rvk" Private Umited 
(u Manaacr to the Brookfield India REIT) 

ANKUR ~::t..~ A ALOK ~ .u:llg­

GUPTA ~J:l:~ AGGARW =:s-'l..os.os 
Al n:oo.ss l(IS'l(T 

AnkurGupta --
AMIT 
JAIN 

Digilallysigned 
byAMITJAIN 
0.le:2025.0S.OS 
23:04.-48+-05'30' 

CEO and Managing Dircctot' Chief Financial Officer 
DINNo. 08687'70 

Plaoc:Mumbei 
0.lc: OS May 202S 

DINNo.00009964 

Plaoc:Mumbei 
0.lc: OS May 202S 

Plaoc:Mumbei 
O.te; OS May 202S 

(l,348.6S) 
(3,23S.SI) 

(5S9.67) 
(1,009.40) 

(lj7,8S) 
712.j2 

(2,087.90) 

(171-48) 

29.32 
(88.66) 

0.13 
(211.85) 
(67.19) 

Q89.IM) 

(30,187.SO) 
3,816.SS 

(3,046.81) 

914.00 
70S.OO 

(890.00) 
1'7.00 
420.00 
771.34 

2,361.87 
1348.6S 

(ll,62'-90) 

3S,OOO.OO 
S,217.61 

(S,SS0.00) 
7,0S0.00 
9,642.80 

(17,366.61) 
(661.79) 

(2.6S) 
(276.50) 

(943231) 
23610.!§5 

(198.3') 

1,094.!§0 

12.SO 
2,082.00 

2,969.12 

(2,697.SS) 
(362,j7) 
(660.09) 
(169.13) 

34<79 
373.94 

(201.!ll) 

143.06 
9.66 

(24.'7) 
3.04 

(1,894.12) 
S,IS9.92 

(12,984.05) 

(6,928.4S) 
(8,870.00) 

440.00 

166.18 
36257 
660.09 

2,803.84 

(21,084.02) 

23,0SJ.j9 

6,948.95 

(712.63) 
(1.41) 

(12.33) 
{7332.18) 

11.t43·" 

1,.3'2.8' 



Brookfldd India Rnl Edate Tnut 
Condenaed Standalone Flnandal Stalemnta 
(AU amount• an In Ru,-, milion unt.• ot!w.-..lae 11:0lled) 
Dlado.ure punuant lo SE.Bl mute.- drwt.r no. SEBI/IIO/DOll~Po0-2/PICIR/2024/43 

NN Dittrlbutable Cub H o,a (NDCF) punuant IO SEHi madff dnular no. SEBI/HOIDDHS-Po0-2/P/CIR/2024/0 

Comooflllion ofNK Oittribo,table C111b Flow Ill Tnut In-el: 

C111hflcnn from o.,.rlllini acthitie,; oftlte Tnut 
(+) Cult f10W1 received from SPV'1 / Investment entities which repmient diatributions ofNDCF computed u perrekwant frmncwo,k (refer 
notc2) 
(+) Treatllf)' income / income from inVC3ting activities of the Tni•I (intcrcat income received from FD, any invcatmcnt entitic. u defined in 
Regulation 18('), tax refund, any other inoome in the nawrc ofinURat, profit on 1alc of Mutual funds, investmc:nb, aaacll etc .• dividend 
income etc., cxcludina 1111y Ind AS adjuatmeiu. FW1hcr clarified that these amounu will be considered oo • cub receipt bail) 

(+)Prooccds from aalcofinfrasbllcture / real estate investmc:nb, infrasbllcture / real cstatcaaac11 orlhares ofSPVa/Holdcoe orlnveshnent 
F.ntiiyadjll.ltcdforthefollowina 
• Applicablcc,apitalgainllandothcrtaxe1 
• Rcb,tcddeht,,1cttlcdordue to be1cttlcdfrom1alcproceeda 
•Directlyattributablc1r1111aactioncoa11 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned lo be reinvealed u per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or1111y otherrelcvant proviaiona of the 
REIT Regulations 
(+)Prooccds from aalcofinfrasbllctun, / real eatltc inveatmcnts, infrutr11.ctun, / realeatatc u•ctt or1aleoflharesofSPV1/ Ho\d coaor 
Investment F.ntiiy not diatributed pursuant lo an earlier plan to ro•invest u per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant 
proviaiona of the REIT Regulationa, if 1uch proceeds are not intended lo be invested 1uhlequently. 

(·) FiMncc coat on Bon-owm.31, cxcludina amortisatioo of 1111y trannction eo111 1111 per Profit and Lo11 account of the Tn111 

(·) Debt repayment at Tn1.1t lcvcl (to include principal repayments 1111 per 1chcdulcd EMl'1 except if re-financed throujh new debt includina 
ovennft facilities and lo exclude 11ny debt rcpllylllenU / debt refinanced dunugh new debt in 11ny form or fimdt t11Ulcd dunuah Ul,u.,ncc of 
uniU) 

H any mavc required lo be created under the term1 of, or punuant lo the obliaationa arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement 
entered with financial iMtillltion, or (ii). lmlll and conditiorui, <lOVelWIUI or any other •tipulllliont 11pplicablc lo debt accurities Ul ,ucd by the 
Tn11t or 11ny of iu SPV1/ HoldC01, or (iii). lmlll 11nd oonditiont, <lOVelWIUI or any other atipulatiorui -.,p\iclible to external commercial 
botrowinp availed by the Tn1.1t or 1111y of iu SPV•/ HoldC01, (iv). agreement pursuant lo which the Tn1.1t opcnilel or owns the real eatatc 
111ct, or acncntcs revenue or caabflowa from ouch auct (1uch u, conocsaion agreement, lransmill1ion 1crvica agreement, power purcbue 
agreement, lcuc agremicnt, and any other agremient of I like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). •tallllory, judicial, regulalofy, or 
aovemmental •tipulationt; or 

(·) any capital expenditure oo cxillina asacll amted f lcucd by the REIT, to the extent not funded by debt / equity or from contractual 
resc:r.'Cllc:rcatcdinthcesrlicrye11111 

NDCFOIITnutLevel 
Swp\111 cuh available (excludiru; •wplua cub from debt roued) 
NDCF Including 1111rp1m cub ,u Trud Lnel 

Notn: 

For the quarter ended 
lli\larcb202S 

(Unaudited) 

(78.24) 
3,366.14 

24.74 

(123.20) 

3189.44 
1.71 

For the quarter ended Fordlehalf'yearended 
31OKffllber2024 31!\lardl2025 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

(75.41) (l!U.65) 
3,199.03 6,,6'. 17 

63.13 87.87 

(211.81) 

2974.'4 
7.30 

1.982.24 

(33'.0 l ) 

6z173.3' 

For dle half' yearended 
l0Septnnber2024 

(Unaudited) 

(135.37) 
4,823.08 

69.13 

(369.40) 

4.311.44 
64.99 

4::!52.0 

For the year ended 
31!\lardl2025 

(Auditw) 

('28'.02) 
11,388.2, 

1'7.00 

(704.41) 

10,Ml.81 
74.00 

10fr25.81 

I. Th1:Bowd ofDirccton ofthcMan.gertotheTn1.1t, in theirmcding held on o, May 202,, have dcclwed diatribution to Unitholdera ofR.a. , .2, per unit which aggregate,, lo Ra. 3,190.70 miUion for thcquutercndcd31 March202,. The dialributiorui ofRa. , .2, per unit compritCI Ra. 1.97 
per unit in the fona of intm:at payment on alweholder Joan, CCD'a and NCD's, Ra. 2.70 per unit in the fona of repayment of SPV debt and NCD, Ra. o.,4 per unit in th1: form of dividend and the balance R.a. 0.04 per unit in the form ofintcre•t on fp;cd dcpooit. 

Alona wilhdiatribution ofR.a. 7,346.12 million/Ra. 14.00perunitfortbe nincmonlhl cndcd31 December 2024, the cumullllivediatributionfortheylltlrcndcd 31 Mardi 202, aggreaatcs toR.a. I0,,36.82million/Ra. 19.2, per unit 

2. Punuant lo SF.BI muter circular no. SEBI/HOJDDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/20W43 dated 1, May 2024, Tn1.1t b1111 C0111idercd diatribution of Ra. 1,n,.84 million received 1uhlcquent to quarter/year ended 31 !\larch 202'. but before the adoption of the standalone financial 11atcmcnt by the Board 
of Director of the M-ger to Tn1.1t in the calculation ofNct Diatributablc Cu h Flow. 

3. In order lo promote 1tandardisation offrmncworl.: for oomputin,: NDCF, a re\'Ulcd frmncworl.: wu dcfmcd by SF.Bl vide muter cin:ular no. SEBI/HOJDDHS-PolJ.2/P/CIR/20W43 dated 15 M■y 2024 ("Reviled NDCF Fna:ncwork") (entwbilc SF.BI C~ular No. SEBl/HOJDDHS/ODH~ 
PoDIP/CIR/1023/IS, dated December 6, 2023 oorevised NDCF framcwOfk). Al per the framework, the Mlllla,:cr is required lo declare and diatributc at lcast90o/oofthcNDCF of Brookfield India REIT 1111 diatributiorui ("REIT Diatributiotu").This framcworl.: ill applicable with cffoctfrom I 
April 2024. A=Jniinaly, Brookfield India REIT bu computed the NDCF for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 202, u per the re\'Uled framcv.·ork. Comparalr,'CII havo not beffl provided in this framcworl.: for aU the p-cvioua pcriodl presented. 

Matcrialaocountinapolicie1(rcfernotc2) 

The accompanying notes from I to34 form aninte,:nl part ofthe1e Condcn1cd Standalooc Financial Statemc:nb. 

Alperourrcportofcvcndate 1ttachcd 

For DELOITI'E HASKINS & SELLS 
CbartcredAccountanU 
Firm Rcgi•lrlllion No.: 01Sl2SN 

Anand 
Dlgltallyslgnedby 
An~ndSubf~m11n~n 

Subramanian ~;,~:!~2!;~~3: 

Anand Subnunanlan 
P""'a 
Mmibenhip No: 11081j 
P\acc; Bcng1hml 
D11e:o,May202' 

ForandoobcbalfofthcBoardofDirectonof 
Brookprop l\lanqemmt Senrkn Private Umked 
(a• Man.aaer lo the Brookfield India REIT) 

ANKUR:.:;:i"' 
GUPTA =:'; 

Anl.urGupta 

""'""' DINNo. 08687j70 
P\acc:Mumboi 
Date: 05May202j 

AmkJaln 
ChicfFinancialOfficer 
P\acc: Mumboi 
Date; OS May 202j 

--CEO and Manaain& Director 
DINNo. 00009964 
Placc:Mumboi 
Date: 05May202j 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 

For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the year ended 

Sr No. Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Cash flows received fran Asset SPVs, CI OP/Operating Service Provider and any investment entity in the fomt of: 
• Interest (net of applicable taxes, if any) 
• Dividends (net of applicable taxes, if any) 
• Repayment of Shareholder Debt (or debentures and other similar instruments) 
• Proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction/ redemptions (net of applicable taxes) 
Add: Proceeds fran sale, (transfer or liquidation or redemption or otherwise realization) of investments (including cash 
equivalents), assets or shares o£1interest in Asset SP Vs, er any fonn of fund raise at Brookfield REIT level, adjusted for 
the following: 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled frcm sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per REIT Regulations 
• Investment in shares or debentures or shareholder debt of Asset SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating Service Provider or 
other similar investments 
• Lending lo Assets SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating Service Provider 
Add: Proceeds from sale (transfer or liquidation or redemption or otherwise realizatioo) of investments, assets or shares of/ 
interest in Asset SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per REIT ReguJations, if such proceeds are 
not intended to be invested subsequently. 

4 Add: Any other incane received at the Brookfield REIT level and not captured herein, or refund/ waiver/ cessation of any 
expenses/ liability. 
Less: Any other expense (whether in the nature ofrevenue or capital expenditure) or any liability or other payouts required 
at the Brookfield REIT level, and not captured herein. 
Less: Any payment of fees, including but not limited to: 
• Trustee fees 
• REIT Management Fees 
• VaJuer fees 
• Legal and professional fees 
• Trademark license fees 
• Secondment fees 
Add: Cash flow received fran Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including to the extent not covered above: 
• repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt 
• proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction 
Add/ (Less): Debt drawdown/ (payment) of interest and repayment on external debt (including any loans, bonds, debentures 
or other form of debt funding) at the Brookfield REIT level. 
Less: Income tax and other taxes (if applicable) at the Standalooe Brookfield REIT level (net of any tax refunds). 

IO Add/(Less): Cash inflows and outflows in relation to any real estate properties held directly by the Brookfield REIT, to the 
extent not covered above (if any). 

11 Add/(Less): Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital, etc. 
NDCF 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 34 fcnn an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

Anand :::::::::.:::-'"'""'"' 
Subramanian --=-» ... .,.. 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

ANKUR = ~fy~~by 

GUPTA :S~~~~ 
AnkurGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

AMIT 
JAIN 
Amit Jain 

Dlgll~sl~ 
by At.'ITJAIN 
Clate:2025.05.0S 
23:06:131-05'30' 

Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

:z.•:.-odbJALOK 
ALOK AGGARWAL 0ota:20.1s.os.os 2l:59'.36 

~w 

Alok Aggarwal 
CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

995.22 2,013.72 3,826.50 

1,684.92 2,775.92 5,599.92 

24.68 

(62.59) 

(24.65) 
(3.96) 

(10.80) 

(13.22) 

(544.24) 
2,045,36 

52.85 

(11616) 

(4739) 
(1622) 
(16.38) 

(17.07) 

(495.21) 
4,134.06 

30,002.54 

(788.48) 
(20,344.06) 
(8,870.00) 

166.78 

(209.61) 

(2.95) 
(86.52) 
(18.84) 
(40.96) 

(73.46) 

{1,455.66) 
7 705,20 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

A Condensed Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 
S.No Particulars 

A 
B 
C 
D 
E 

Assets 
Liabilities 
Net Assets ( A-B) 
No. ofunits 
NAV per unit (CID) 

1 Measurement of fair values 

As at 31 March 2025 (Audited) As at 31 March 2024 (Audited) 
Book Value Fair value Book Value Fair value 
1,61,279.13 2,11,551.84 1,17,285.42 1,53,510.37 

(7,134.99) (7,134.99) ~%~5~ ~%~5~ 
1,54,144.14 2,04,416.85 1,09,815.84 1,46,040.79 

60 77 52,448 60 77 52,448 43 90 85,222 43 90 85,222 
253.63 336.35 250.10 332.60 

The fair value of investments in SPVs is primarily determined basis the fair value of the underlying investment property (including investment property under development) and 
book value of other assets and liabilities of the respective SPV's as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. The fair value of investment properties (including investment 
property under development) has been determined by independent external registered property valuer, having appropriately recognized professional qualifications and recent 
experience in the location and category of the properties being valued. 

Valuation technique 
The fair value measurement of the investment properties (including investment property under development) has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to 
the valuation technique used. 
The valuers have followed a discounted cash flow method. The discounted cash flow method considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective 
properties, taking into account the expected rental growth rate, vacancy period, occupancy rate, average sq. ft. rent and lease incentive costs. The expected net cash flows are 
discounted using the risk adjusted discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), 
tenant credit quality, lease terms and investors expected return. 

2 Break up of Net asset value 

Particulars 

Fair value of investments in SPV s 
Add: Other assets 
Less: Liabilities 
Net Assets 

As at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 
2,09,262.02 

2,289.82 
(7,134 99) 

2 04 416.85 

As at 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 
1,51,092.22 

2,418.15 
(7,469.58) 

146 040.79 

3 The Trust holds investment in SPVs which in turn hold the properties. Hence, the breakup of property wise fair values has been disclosed in the Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 34 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand ~;;;;~~ti:~a~ian 

Subramanian ~;~~,~~2;0~~3~~ 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
( as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

AN KUR~:•:,:::,~~""' 
GUPTA 

GU PT A~;;;';~~.: 
AnkurGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

ALOK ~g:~~~$igned 

AGGARWA AGGARWAi. 

L Oate:2025.05.05 
22:59:17 +05'30' 

AMIT 
JAIN 

DigiUl)'signed 

: :'IT.JAIN 

2025.05.0S 
23:06:S9Hl5'30' 

Alok Aggarwal Amit Jain 
CEO and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 
DIN No. 00009964 Place: Mumbai 
Place: Mumbai Date: 05 May 2025 
Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

B Condensed Standalone Statement of Total Return at Fair Value 

S.No Particulars 

A Total comprehensive htcome 

B Add: Changes in fair value not recognized in the total comprehensive 
income 

A+B Total Return 

For the half year ended 
31 March 2025 

(Unaudited) 

4,436.32 

7,960.78 

12,397.10 

For the half year ended 
30 September 2024 

(llnaudited) 

2,708.21 

7,442.08 

10,150.29 

For the half year ended For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

(llnaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

1,797.54 7,144.54 2,983 .94 

5,711.83 15,356.18 10,287.72 

7,509.37 22,500.72 13,271.66 

The changes in fair value for the respective periods presented has been computed based on the changes in fair value of the underlying assets of SPVs (including changes in fair vaJue of equity method investment), 
which is not recognized in Total Comprehensive htcome. 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from l to 34 fonn an integra1 part of these Condensed Standalone FinanciaJ Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No. : 015125N 

Anand 
Digitally signed by 
Anand Subramanian 

Subramanian ~~~:~~2:0~3~~ 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Manac;ement Services Private Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

AN KUR ~ g~~u: 11ned 

GUPTA 

GUPTA ~~~!1:0~5!~ 
AnkurGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

AMIT ~::;~;:-i 
JAIN =::;:.; 
Amit Jain 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Alok Aggarwal 
CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Conderued Standalooe Financial Statement, 
(AD amount• are in Rupees milliom unlels otherwise stated) 

1 Trust Information 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the 'Settl.or') has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trost (Brookfield India REIT/frust) on 17 July 2020 as an irrevocable trust, pmsuant to tire Trost Deed, under the 
provmoos of the Indian Trusts Ac~ 1882 and the Trust has beeo registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) a, a Real Estate Investment Trust oo 14 September 2020 under Regulatioo 6 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regul.atioos, 2014 (SEBI REIT Regulations) having registration number IN/REIT/20-21/0004. The Trust's principal place of business address is at 1st floor, Asset No. 8, 
Unit No. IOI, Wtrldmark-2, Hospitality District Aorocity, !GI Ailp~ New Delhi ll0037. 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pie. Ltd. is the Spoosor of Brookfield lndis REIT (refer note 28). Tiu, Trustee In Brookfield lndis Real Estate Trust is Axis Trustee Sorw:es Limited (the 'Trustee') and the Manager for Brookfield 
India Real Estate Trost is Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the 'Manager'). 

The objectives and purpose of Brookfield India REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permisStOle under the REIT Regulations, to raise funds through the REIT, to make Investments in accordance with 
the REIT Regulations and the Investment Strategy and to carry on the activities as may be required for operating tire REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto. 

Tiu, units of the trust were listed on the Natinmtl Stnck Exclumge (NSE) and Banhay Stnck Exchange (BSE) on 16 February 2021. 

The brief activities and shareholdmg pattern of the SPVs are provided below: 

~ 

Shantiniketan Properties Private 
Limited (SPPL Noida'/'Nl ") 

Caodor Kolkata Ono Hi-Tech 
Structures Private Limited CCaodor 
Kolkata'fKI) 

Candor India Office Parks Private 
Limited (CIOP) 

Festus Properties Private Limited 
Cfestos) 

Seaview Deveinpers Private Limited 
CSDPL Noida'/'N2) 

Caodor Gurgaoo Ono Realty 
Prttjects Private Limited C'Carulor 
Gurgaon I "/"GI") 

Kairos Properw:s Private Limited 
(Fonm:rly known as Kairos Prq,erty 
Managers Private Limited) 
("Kairos"f'DowntownPowai") 

Name of .Johrt Vmtun; 

Rostrum Realty Private Limited 
("Rostrum')' 

Mountain.star India Office Parks 
Private Limited (MIOP)* 

• Refer assets acquisition note 32 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS sector in Sector 62, Noida, Uttar 
Pradesh. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
New Town, Rajarbat, Kolkata and Sector 
21, Dondahera Gurogram. 

Providing management related service 
im:luding facilitii:s management service and 
property management servkes. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Powai, Mumbai. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Sector 135, Noida, Uttar Pradesh. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Sector 48, Gurogram, Hacyana. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
Powai, Mumbai, Maharashtra. 

Leasing, licensing, operating and 

maintaining the project buildings by the 
Rostrum itself and through its subsidiaries 
in India. 

Providing management related service 
im:luding facilitres management service and 
property management services. 

Sbpn;bolging (in percentage) 
As at 31 M1ln;h 2tm5 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield lndis REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00"/a 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited :0.00% 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 0.00% 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield lndis REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 50% 
Reco Cerium Private Limited 50% 

Brookfield lndis REIT : 50% 
Reco Europium Private Limited 50% 

Sbpn;bolging (in percentage) 
As at 31 March 2025 

Brookfield lndis REIT : 50% 
Metallica Holdings (DIFC) Limited 50% 

Sbpn;bolging (in percentage) 
As at 31 March 2025 

Brookfield lndis REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00"/a 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Shareholding (in oeruntage) 
As at 31 M1ln;h 2024 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield lndis REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00"/a 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 0.00% 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 0.00% 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield lndis REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% 
(I share) (aa nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 50% 
Reco Cerium Private Limited 50% 

Brookfield lndis REIT : 50% 
Reco Europium Private Limited : 50% 

Shareholding (in oeruntage) 
up to 21 June 2024 

(i) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited 12.51% 
(ii) Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited 7.82% 
(fu) Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited 7.82% 
(iv) Bharti (Satya) Trustees Private Limited oo behalf of Bharti 
(Satya) Family Trust 3.13% 
(v) Bharti Enterprises Limited 18.72% 
(Vl) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Sunil 
Bharti Mittal 0.00% 
(.u) Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Rakesh 
Bharti Mittal 0.00% 
(viii) Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Rajan 
Bharti Mittal 0.00% 
(ix) Metallica Holdin.os (DIFC) Limited 50% 

Shareholding (in oeruntage) 
up to 06 January 2025 

BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd.: 64.45% 
BSREP India Office Holdings II Pte. Ltd.: 35.55% 
BSREP lndis Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: 0.00% 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 
 
2. Basis of preparation and material accounting policies 
 
2.1 Basis of preparation of Condensed Standalone financial statements 
 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements (Condensed Standalone Financial Statements) of 
Brookfield India REIT comprises:  

 the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet, 
 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), 
 the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows,  
  
 a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 
Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, the Statement of Total Returns at 
Fair Value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of Brookfield India REIT and other additional 
financial disclosures as required under the SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with 
resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Brookfield India REIT on 
05 May 2025. The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to 
time including any guidelines and circulars issued there under read with SEBI master circular no. 
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD- ; Indian Accounting 

 defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies 

Regulations (refer note 9(a) 
instruments under Ind AS 32  Financial Instruments: Presentation), read with relevant rules issued 
thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
 
Accordingly, these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements do not include all the information 
required for a complete set of financial statements. These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
should be read in conjunction with the standalone financial statements and related notes included in the 
Trust  audited standalone financial statements under Ind AS as at and for the year ended 31 March 
2025. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting 
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the 
accounting policy hitherto in use. 
 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except 
when otherwise indicated. 

2.2 Material accounting policies 
 

a) Functional and presentation currency 
 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is 
Brookfield India REIT  functional currency and the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which Brookfield India REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian 
rupees has been rounded off to nearest million except unit and per unit data. 
 
 
 
 
 

• 
• 

• 
• the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity, 

• 

2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("REIT Regulations") 
Standard (Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS') to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 

on presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound 

's 

's 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 
 

b) Basis of measurement  
 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except 
for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as 
explained in the accounting policies below. 

 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

 
c) Use of judgments and estimates  

 
The preparation of Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 
regulations, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

 
Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements is included in the following notes: 

 
(i) 

of compound instrument (Note 9) 
(ii) Impairment of investments and loans in subsidiaries 
(iii) Fair valuation and disclosures 

SEBI Circulars issued under the REIT Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets 
at fair value and total returns at fair value. (Refer Statement of net assets at fair value and 
Statement of total returns at fair value for details). 
 

d) Current versus non-current classification   
 

Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet 
based on current/ non-current classification: 

 
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 
- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating 
cycle. 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.  

 
Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as non-current. 

 
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 
- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle of Brookfield India REIT; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

Presentation of"Unit Capital" as "Equity" in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 
 

- the Brookfield India REIT does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification.  
 
Brookfield India REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

 
Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/ liabilities 
respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.  
 
e) Fair value measurement  

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that 
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair 
value of an asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into account the characteristics of the 
asset or liability and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when 
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.  

 
Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which 
are directly based on the degree to which inputs to fair value measurement techniques are 
observable by market participants:  

 
 Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

at the measurement date. 
 Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly 

observable for the asset or liability through correlation with market data at the measurement 
  

 Level 3: 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration 
is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in 
determining the estimate. 

 
Fair value measurement framework is adopted by Brookfield India REIT to determine the fair value 
of various assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value. 
 
f) Impairment of non-financial assets  

 
Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non-
financial asset other than deferred tax assets may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, Brookfield India REIT 
recoverable amount. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. 
 
An impairment loss is recognized in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of 
any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of 
the CGU on a pro rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash 
flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups.  

 
Impairment losses are recognized in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, unless 
it reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity. 

• 

• 
date and for the duration of the asset's or liability's anticipated life. 

• Inputs are unobservable and reflect management's best estimate of what market 

estimates the asset's 
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Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 
 
 

Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or group of CGUs that 
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

 

and its value in use. In estimating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, 
recent market transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that 
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
CGU. 

 
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect 
of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets, such a reversal is made only to 

been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 
 

g) Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures 
 

The Trust has elected to recognize its investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures at cost in 
accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, Separate Financial Statements  
 
The details of such investment are given in note 3. 
 
Assets representing investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are reviewed for impairment, 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable, 
such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues 
or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment. 

 
h) Foreign currency transactions  

 
Items included in the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Brookfield India REIT 

Brookfield India REIT functional and presentation currency.  
 
Foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into 
the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange 
gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting period end exchange 
rates are generally recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.  

 
i) Errors, estimates and change in accounting policy 

 
The Brookfield India REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change 
in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable information to the users of the 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. Changes in accounting policies are applied 
retrospectively, wherever applicable. 
 

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal 

the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

operates ( 'the 
functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the 
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A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised 
assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery 
of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, 
liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening 
balances of the earliest period presented are also restated.  

 
j) Financial instruments  

 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.  

 
(i) Financial Assets - Recognition  

 
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (except for trade receivables which are 
initially measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
  
Classification and subsequent measurement 
 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

 
amortized cost 

 
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 
 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.  
 
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.  

 
 

 
A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

 
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling the financial assets, and 
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

 
Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 
income (OCI). However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange 
gain or loss is recognized in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative 
gains or losses previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit 
and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using 
the EIR method.   
 

• Debt instruments at 

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
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FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise 
meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if 
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 

Brookfield India REIT has not designated any debt instrument as at 
FVTPL. 

 
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit or loss. 

 
 

 
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Brookfield 
India REIT may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent 
changes in the fair value. The Brookfield India REIT makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

 
If the Brookfield India REIT decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair 
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. 
However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

 
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit and loss.  

 
(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition 

 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet) 
when: 

 
 

Brookfield India REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield India REIT has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Brookfield India REIT has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

 
(iii) Impairment of financial assets 

 
Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade 
receivables with no significant financing component and lease receivables is measured at an amount 
equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable 
and lease receivables, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are 
measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 

• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

'accounting mismatch'). The 

• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
• The 
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allowance at the reporting date, is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 
 
Trade Receivables are generally written off against the allowance only after all means of collection 
have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. 
 
(iv) Financial liabilities  Recognition and Subsequent measurement 

 
Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, these are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate ('EIR') method or at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).  
 
Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, Loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts.  
 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 
Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held 
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
Statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial 
instruments entered into by the Brookfield India REIT that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are 
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through Statement of profit or 
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in 
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to 
statement of profit and loss. However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gains 
or losses within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in Statement 
of profit and loss. The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any financial liability as at fair 
value through profit or loss. 

 
 Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

 
Financial liabilities that are not held for trading, or designated as at FVTPL, are measured 
subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received 
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, 
to the amortized cost of a financial liability. 
(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition 
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A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial 
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, 
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the Statement of 
profit and loss as other gains/(losses). 

 
(vi) Income/loss recognition 

 
 

 
Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While 
calculating the effective interest rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, 
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

 
k) Leases  

 
At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a 
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Brookfield India REIT assesses 
whether: 
 the contract involves the use of an identified asset  this may be specified explicitly or 

implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a 
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified; 

 the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and 

 the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT 
has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and 
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what 
purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the 
use of the asset if either: 

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to operate the asset; or 
o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for 

what purpose it will be used. 
 

As a lessee 
 

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease 
incentives received. 

 

• Interest income 

• 

• 

• 
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as 
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced 
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. 

 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT incremental borrowing rate. Generally, 
the Brookfield India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

 
 fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 
 variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate as at the commencement date; 
 amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
 the exercise price under a purchase option that the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain 

to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Brookfield India REIT is 
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease 
unless the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain not to terminate early. 

 
The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there 
is a change in the Brookfield India REIT  estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a 
residual value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. 

 
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 
The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment 

 (current and non-current) in the 
statement of financial position. 

 
The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for 
short-term leases of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value 
assets. The Brookfield India REIT recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 
As a Lessor 

 
The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment 
properties. 
 
Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 

• 
• 

• 
• 

's 

property in 'property, plant and equipment' and lease liabilities 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 
 

When the Brookfield India REIT is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the 
sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by 
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. 
 
Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the 
Brookfield India REIT  net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to 
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Brookfield India REIT  
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

 
When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Brookfield India REIT applies 
Ind AS 115 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component. 

 
l) Revenue recognition 

 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia 
involves discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond 
normal credit terms. 
 
Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of revenue 
can be measured reliably. 

 
Recognition of dividend income, interest income 
 
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Brookfield India RE
right to receive payment is established. 
 

rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. In calculating interest income, the 
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not 
credit impaired). However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to 
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the 
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation 
of interest income reverts to the gross basis. 

 
m) Taxation  

 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and 
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.  

 
(i) Current tax 

 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount 
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after 
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax 
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

's 
's 

IT's 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The 'effective interest rate' is the 
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Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 

 
(ii) Deferred tax  

 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax 
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

 
- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction 

that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss 
at the time of the transaction; 

- Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements 
to the extent that the Brookfield India REIT is able to control the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 

- Taxable temporary differences arising on initial recognition of goodwill. 
 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong 
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent 
losses, Brookfield India REIT recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient 
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the 
extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
Further, no deferred tax asset/liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences that 
reverse within tax holiday period. 

 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date. 

 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner 
in which the Brookfield India REIT expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

 
n) Provisions and contingencies  

 
A provision is recognized when the Brookfield India REIT has a present obligation as a result of 
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation.  
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
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control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability 
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it 
cannot be measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does not recognize a contingent liability 
but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 
 
Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations 
under the contract. 
  
o) Operating segments  

 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker.   

 
Identification of segments:  
In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present 
segment information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Chief Operating 

to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An 
operating segment is a component of the Brookfield India REIT that engages in business activities 
from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Brookfield India REIT  other components.  

 
Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT  structure and powers conferred to the Manager to 
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Management Services 
Private Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since they 
are empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, investment, 
disinvestment, etc. 

 
As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged in the business of developing and maintaining 
commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire business as a single operating 

in respect 
of reportable segments are not applicable.  

 
p) Subsequent events  

 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non-
adjusting events that occur after the reporting period but before the Condensed Standalone Financial 
Statements are authorized for issue. 

 
q) Cash and cash equivalents  

 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market 
deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
r) Earnings per unit  
Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to 
unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted average number of units outstanding 
during the period. 
 

Decision Maker ('CODM') 

's 

's 

segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" 
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the profit or loss for the period attributable 
to unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT and the weighted average number of units outstanding 
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units. 

 
Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they 
have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted earnings per unit, only potential units that are 
dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included. 

 
s) Offsetting 

  
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Condensed 
Standalone Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Brookfield India REIT currently has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
t) Cash flow statement 

 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Brookfield India REIT are segregated. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and 
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. 

 
u) Cash distribution to Unitholders 

 
The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when 
the distribution is authorized, and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT Regulations, 
a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A 
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.  
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3 Non current fmancial assets - Investments 
Trade, unquoted, Investments in Subsidiaries (at cost) (refer note 1) 
97,527 (31 March 2024: 97,527) Equity shares of Candcr Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited of Rs. JO each, fully paid up 

143,865,097 (31 March 2024: 143,865,097) Equity shares of Shantiniketm Properties Private Limited of Rs 8 each, fully paid up (31 March 2024 Rs. JO ea<h, fully paid up) 

464,641,122 (31 March 2024: 464,641,122) Equity shares of Festus Properties Private Limited ofRs I each, fully paid up (31 March2024 Rs.JO each, fully paid up) 

10,000 (31 March 2024: 10,000) Equity shares of Candcr India Office Parks Private Limited of Rs. JO each, fully paid up 

19,593 (31 March 2024: 17,381) Equity shares of Seaview Developers Private Limited of Rs. JO each, fully paid up 

5,032 (31 March 2024: 5,032) Equity shares of Candor Gurgaoo One Realty Projects Private Limited of Rs. JO each, fully paid up 

4,879,500 (31 March 2024: 4,879,500) Equity shares ofKairos Properties Private Limited of Rs.JO ea<h, fully paid up 

285,134,111 (31 March 2024: Nil) Equity shares of Mooownstar India Office Parks Private Limited of Rs. JO each, fully paid up 

Trade, unquoted, Investments in Joint venture (at cost) (refer note 1) 

3,28,48,620 (31 March 2024: Nil) Equity shares of Rostrum Realty Private Limited of Rs.JO ea<h, fully paid up 

Investments in 15% compulsorily convertible debentures at FVTPL (Debenture,) 111 

Investments in 14% compulsorily convertible debentures at FVTPL (Debenturea)0 

Investments in 12.5% Non convertible debmtures (Non convertible debmtures)H 11 

*Investments in 15% compulsorily convertible debentures issued by 
- Seaview Developers Private Limited 
- Candor Gurgaon One Realty P~eets Private Limited 

••Issued by Kairos Properties Private Limited (Focmerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private Limited) 

•••Investments in 12.5% Non convertible debentures issued by 
- Candor Gurgaon One Realty P~eets Private Limited 
-Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Mansgers Private Limited) 

Less: Repayment duriog 1he period by Kairos 
Less: Repayment duriog 1he period by GI 

Note: 
Details of o/o shareholding in the subsidiariea and Joint venture held by Trust is as under: 

Name of Subsidiary 

- Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
- Festus PrnnP.111P.s Private Limited 
- Shantiniketao """""'""s Private Limited 
- Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 
- Seaview DeveJnn,,,r,;i Private Limited 
- Candor Gureaon One Realtv Proieets Private Limited 
- Kairos ....-nnerties Private Limited (F onnerlv known as Kairos ..-rnn,,,rn, Manaeers Private Limited) 
-Rostrum Realtv Private Limited [Joint Veoture ..,,;,.,, 
- Moontainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 

4 Non current fmancial assets - Loans 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
Loan to Subsidiaries - refer note 28 

Terms for Loan to Subsidiaries 
Security: Unsecured 
Rate of interest· 

SPVs 

Candor Kolkata 

SDPLNuida 

Festus 

SPPLNuida 

MIOP 
Total 

Repaymmt: 
(a) Bullet repayment on 1he date falling at 1he cud of 15 (filb:en) years from 1he first <lisborsernent date. 
(b) Early repayment option (wholly or partially) is availshle to 1he borrower (SPVs). 

As at 31 March 2025 
IAuditedl 

Loan to Rate of 
Subsidiariea interest p.a. 

(Rs. in Millions) (compounded 
quarterly) 

8 442.82 12.50% 
3 175.50 10.50% 
6123.58 12.50% 

12205.50 10.50% 
2 943.11 12.50% 

10 319.98 10.50% 
12.50% 

I 714.15 8.37% 
500.00 10.50% 

45A24.64 

Asat 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

24,761.39 

11,407.83 

8,655.46 

220.20 

14,482.20 

3,746.66 

12,031.80 

1,004.00 

12,322.59 

88,632.13 

12,208.10 

3,516.65 

7,516.00 

1,11,872.88 

6,443.70 
5 764.40 

12,208.10 

5,164.00 
3 266.00 
8,430.00 
(531.00) 
(383.00) 
7,516.00 

Asat 
31 March 2025 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
50% 
50% 
50% 
100% 

Asat 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

45,424.64 

45,424.64 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

24,761.39 

11,407.83 

8,655.46 

220.20 

12,482.97 

3,746.66 

12,031.80 

73,306.31 

10,287.95 

3,348.90 

8,430.00 

95,373.16 

5,682.10 
4,605.85 

10,287.95 

5,310.00 
3 560.00 
8,870.00 
(294.00) 
(146.00) 
8,430.00 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
50% 
50% 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

19,053.69 

19,Q53.69 

As at 31 March 2024 
IAuditedl 

Loan to Rate of 
Subsidiaries interest p.a. 

(Rs. in Millions) (cODipounded 
quarterly) 

8 649.12 12.50% 

5 652.00 12.50% 

4 229.50 12.50% 

523.07 12.50% 

19053.69 

(c) The interest on 1hesc loan to suhsidiaries is receivable on 1he last date of every financial quarter. Notwi1hstanding anything to 1he contrary, 1he -•st wi1h respect to 1he loans under 1he facility, shall accrue and become due 
and receivable only on availability of free cash flow on 1he interest payment date. In 1he event on any Interest payment date, 1he free cash flows are lower 1han 1he calculated interest (including any shortfall of past interest periods), 
1he shortfall between 1he free cash flows and 1he calculated interest shall be a<cumulated and become doe and receivable from and to 1he extent of free cash flows availahle on 1he suhsequent interest payment dates. 
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5 Noo-current tax auets (net) 
Advance income tax. 

6 Current fmancial assets - Cash and cash equivalents 
Balance with banks :•# 
- in current account 
- in deposit accoont 

• For related parties balance, refer note 28 

A1at Asat 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

(Audited) (Audited) 

0.89 1.17 

0.89 1.17 

A1at Asat 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

(Audited) (Audited) 

12.50 14.89 
2,082.00 2,378.00 

2,1194.50 2,392.89 

# Balaoce as at 31 March 2025 iru:ludes Rs 499.80 million from proceeds of instituticnal placement of uoits by Brookfield India REIT out of (Total proceeds of Rs. 35,000.00 millioo). These amount to be utilized towards issue 
expenses aod general corporate purposes, (refer note 29). 

6(a) Current fmancial assets - Other bank balances 
Deposits with baoks* 

• Fer related parties balance, refer note 28 

Current fmancial assets - Other 
(Unsecured aod coosidered good) 
To related partiea (refer note 28) 
Interest a=ued but not due oo deposits with baoks 
Interest accrued but not due on investment in debentures 
Interest accrued but not due on loan to subsidiaries 

8 Other current assets 
(Unsecured aod coosidered good) 
Prepaid expenses• 
Advances to vendors 

• For related parties balance, refer note 28 

9 Unit Ca ital 

Particulars 
All at 01 April 2023 
Less: Distribu1ioo to Uoitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 
Less: Distribu1icn to Unitholders for the quarter eoded 30 Juoe 2023 
Less: Distribu1ioo to Uoitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 
Less: Distribu1icn to Unitholders for the quarter eoded 31 Deeember 2023 

Add: Unit, issued during the year (refer note c) 
Less: Issue expeosea (refer note a (iii)) 
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 
All at 01 April 2024 
Less: Distribu1icn to Unitholders for the quarter eoded 31 March 2024# 
Less: Distribu1ioo to Uoitholders for the quarter ended 30 Juoe 2024# 
Less: Distribu1icn to Unitholders for the quarter eoded 30 September 2024# 
Less: Distribu1ioo to Uoitholders for the quarter ended 31 Deeember 2024 

Add: Unit, issued during the year (refer note c) 
Less: Issue expeosea (refer note a (iii)) 
Closing balance as at 31 March 2025 

(a) Terms/ rights attached to Units and accounting thereof 

Allat 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

185.00 

185,00 

All at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

4.36 
377.73 

1,314.06 

1,696.15 

All at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

1.23 
3.84 

5,07 

No.of Units 
33,50,871)73 

10,39,98,149 

43,90,85,222 
43,90,85,222 

16,86,67,226 

60,77,52,448 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

3.51 

440.42 

443.93 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

16.76 
3.82 

20.58 

Amount 
86,556.65 

(891.33) 
(861.30) 
(939.64) 

(1,088.93) 
27,053.59 

(727.61) 
l,IJ9,101A3 
11)9,101A3 

(1,102.10) 
(1,022.43) 
(1,142.44) 
(1,343.13) 
47,279.00 

(663.46) 
1,51,106,87 

(i) The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust Each holder of Unit is entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net 
Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in each financial year in accordance with the REIT Regulatims. The Board of Directors of the Manager approves distributions. The distnbution will be in 
proportioo to the number of Unit, held by the Uoitholders. The Trust declares aod pays distributioos in Indiao Rupees. 

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulaticns, Brookfield India REIT is required to dis1nbute to Unitholders not less thao 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of Brookfield India REIT fur each financial year. Acca:dingly, a 
portioo of the Unit Capital coolains a contractual obligatioo of the Brookfield India REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash dis1nbutions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound finaocial instrument which ccntain both equity aod 
liability compooents in accordaoce with Ind AS 32 -Financial Instruments: Presentation However, in accordaoce with SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 issued uoder the REIT 
Regulaticns, the Unit Capital has been presented as "Equity'' in order to comply with the requirement, of Sectioo H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI Master Circular dealing with the minimum presentatioo aod disclosure requirement, 
for key finaocial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the distribu1ioos to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Chaoges in Unitholders' Equity when the distribu1ioos are approved by the 
Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

(ii) Brookfield India REIT acquired cootrolling stake in Caodor Gurgaoo I aod Kairos by acquiring 50% equity interest from certain members of the Spoosor Group. The purchase coosideraticn fur acquiring 50% stake in Caodor 
Gurgaon I was diseharged by paying cash of Rs. 4,533.04 million. The purchase coosideraticn for acquiring 50% stake in Kairos was discharged by paying cash of Rs. 8,277.71 million aod by allotting 12,696,800 number of 
Unit, at Rs. 315.04 per Uni~ as per the table below. 
On 21 Juoe 2024, the Trust has alloted 40,930,000 Unit, at Rs.300 per Unit to Bharti Sellers (refer note I) oo preferential allolment basis towards ccnsideratioo fur acquisitioo of 50% share capital of Rostnnn. 
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NameofSPV 

Al at 31 March 2024 
Caodor Kolkata 
Fesrus 
SPPLNoida 
CIOP 
SDPLNoida 
Kairos 
Durine the -•r ended 31 March 2025: 
Rostrum- Joiot venture (reJi:r uote I: Trust Infurmaticn) 
Total number of Units issued 

Number of Units allotted for consideration other than cash 

Sponsor Sponsor Group Other than Sponsor 
Total and Soonsor Grouo 

54117888 16364 54134252 
- 31474412 31474412 
- 414 83 012 414 83 012 

- 8 00 727 8 00 727 
- 15463 616 15463 616 

- 126 96 800 126 96 800 

- 4 09 30 000 4 09 30 000 
5A117888 10.19-"'-•31 409.30.000 19.69.82.819 

(iii) Expenses iru:urred pertaining to new issuance of units (]nstitutiooal placement and Preferential allotment) have been reduced from the Uni1holders capital in accordance wi1h Ind AS 32 - Finaocial Instruments: Preseotatioo 

Cb) Unitholders holdine more than 5 oercent Units in the Trust 
Name of Unitholden Al at 31 March 2025 Al at 31 March 2024 

No.of Units %of hold.inn No.of Units %of hold.inn 
BSREP India Office Holdiol!ll V Pio. Ltd. 54117888 8.90% 54117888 12.33% 

BSREP India Office Holdiogll Pio Ltd. 2 57 63 719 4.24% 41499453 9.45% 
BSREP India Office Holdm .. m Pio. Ltd. 3 67.27 398 6.04% 3 67.27 398 8.36% 
BSREP II India Office Holdings II Pio. Ltd. 31474412 5.18% 31474412 7.17% 
International Finance r :nrrr.nition 30474452 5.01% 

(c) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way ofhoous units oor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registratioo till 1he balance sheet date. The Trust had issued an aggregate ofl80,083,417 Units 
for ccnsidcratioo other 1han cash from the date of incorporatioo till 31 March 2023. 
Oo 02 Augost 2023, 91,301,349 units have been issocd at Rs.252.50 per unit via institutional placement to arrange 1he fuuds for acquisition of 50% stake in Candor Gorgaon I and Kairos, 1hese units got listed oo NSE and BSE 
oo 3 Augost 2023. Further, oo 28 Augost 2023, 1he Trost has alloted 12,696,800 Units at Rs.315.04 per Unit to Project Diamood Holdiogs (DIFC) Limired oo prefrential allotment basis towards part ccnsidcratioo for acquisition 
of 50"/4 stake in Kairos, which got listed oo NSE and BSE en 31 August 2023. 
Oo 21 Juoe 2024, 1he Trust has alloted 40,930,000 Units at Rs.300 per Unit to Bharti Sellers (refer uote I) oo prefrcroial allotment basis towards ccnsidcratioo for acquisitioo of 50% share capital of Rostrum, these units got lisred 
oo NSE and BSE oo 25 June 2024. 
Oo 12 December 2024, 12,77,37 ;J.26 units have been issocd at Rs.274.00 per unit via institutional placement and 1he main object of 1he issuance waa partial or full prepaymeot or scheduled repayment of certain debt facilities 
availed by 1he REIT and A.set SPVs from banks/financial institu1ioo. These units got lisred oo NSE and BSE oo 13 December 2024. 

(d) Unitholdine of soonsor erouo 

Name of Unitholden 

BSREP India Office Holdiogs V Pio. Ltd. 
BSREP India Office Holrlm"' Pio Ltd. 
BSREP India Office HoJ•m= ill Pio. Ltd. 
BSREP II India Office Hola;n.,. II Pio. Ltd. 
BSREP India Office Hol•m= N Pio. Ltd. 
BSREP India Office Holdiogs VI Pio. Ltd. 
Proiect Diamood HoM;n.,. IDIFC) Limited 

10 Other Equity• 

Reserves and Surphu 
Retained earnings 

*Refer Coodeoaed Standalooe Statement of Chaoges in Uni1holdcrs' Equizy for detailed movcroeot in oilier equizy balances. 

Retained earnings 

Al at 31 March 2025 
No.of Units % of holdings 

5,41,17,888 8.90% 

2,57,63,719 4.24% 
3 67 27 398 6.04% 
3,14,74,412 5.18% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

126 96 800 2.09% 

As at 31 March 2024 
No.of Units 

54117888 
41499453 
3 67 27 398 
31474412 
15463 616 

8 00 650 
126 96 800 

%of holdings 

12.33% 

9.45% 
8.36% 
7.17% 

3.52% 
0.18% 

2.89% 

A.at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

3,037.28 

3,837.28 

% Change during 
the year ended 
31 March 2025 

-3.42% 
-5.21% 

-2.32% 
-1.99% 
-3.52% 

-0.18% 
-0.80"/4 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

714.41 

714Al 

The cumulative gain or loss arising from 1he operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under 1he headiog of retained earnings. At the eod of the period, 1he prolit/(loss) after tax is transferred from the 
Statement of Profit and Loss to 1he retained earnings accoont. 

11 Non-current fmancial liabilities - Borrowings 
Secured 
Term loan :from financial institutions 

A.at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

5,185.35 

51115.35 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

(a) During 1he year eoded 31 March 2025, the Brookfield India REIT and SPPL Noida availed a loan facility of Rs. 11,000.00 millioo from a financial institu1ioo, aa co-borrowers. Al per agreement wi1h the lender, Brookfield 
India REIT availed a loan facility of Rs. 7,250.00 millioo and SPPL Noida baa availed facility of Rs. 3,750.00 millioo. Out of1he loan availed by Brookfield India REIT, Rs. 2,050.00 millioohaa been given to SPPL Noida as 
shareholder loan. The liabilizy towards 1his loan facilizy is joiot and several of both the co-borrowers. 

The loan facility is secured against the assets of SPPL Noida Pursuant to 1he secori1y provided by SPPL Noida for the loan utilized by Brookfield India REIT, Brookfield India REIT has accrued an expeoae payable to SPPL 
Noida towards credit facility fee of Rs. 6.83 millioo (includiog Goods and Service Tax), which has been recorded and preseoted uodcr finance cost in the statement of profit and loss account 
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12 Deferred tu liabilities 

Deferred tax liabilities 

13 Current fmancial liabilities- Short term borrowings* 
Secured 
Flexi term loan""" 
Term loan :from financial institutions 

Unsecured 
Commercial papers# 

• Includes interest accrued thereon 
•• Refernoo: ll(a) 

Aaat Asat 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

(Audited) (Audited) 

328.57 25.60 

328.57 25.60 

Aaat Asat 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

(Audited) (Audited) 

1,489.60 
18.26 

7,284.87 

1,507.86 7,284.87 

#On 17 August 2023, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 15,000 commercial papers at a fa<e value of Rs. 5,00,000 each aggregating oo Rs. 7,500.00 million, at 7.93% p.a .. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield 
India REIT 1lrrough 1hese commercial papers was Rs. 6,948.95 million and 1he value payable on mawrity is Rs. 7,500.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amcrtiz.ed over 1he tonor of 1he underlyiog instrumeot These 
commercial papers are listed on BSE on 18 August 2023 aod have matured en 16 August 2024. 

#On 29 April 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 4,000 commercial papers at a fa<e value of Rs. 5,00,000 each aggregating oo Rs. 2,000.00 million, at 7.90% p.a.. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield 
India REIT 1hrough 1hese commercial papers is Rs. 1,870.83 million and 1he value payable on mawrity is Rs.2,000.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amcrtiz.ed over 1he teocr of1he underlyiog instrument These 
commercial papers are listed on BSE on 30 April 2024. These commercial papers were due for paymeot on 14 March 2025 but have beeo redeemed pre-matorely (buy back) on 23 December 2024. 

#On 16August 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 9,600 commercial papers atafa<evalue of Rs. 5,00,000 each at 7.60%p.a., aggregatingooRs. 4,800.00 million. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield 
India REIT 1lrrough 1hese commercial papers is Rs. 4,762.32 million and 1he value payable on mawrity is Rs. 4,800 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over 1he tonor of1he underlyiog instrument These 
commercial papers are listed on BSE on 19 August 2024. These commercial papers became due for paymeot oo 23 September 2024 and have beeo duly matored on 1he even date. 

#On 16 August 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 6,500 commercial papers at a fa<e value of Rs. 5,00,000 each at 8.03% p.a. , aggregating oo Rs. 3,250.00 million. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield 
India REIT 1lrrough 1hese commercial papers is Rs. 3,009.65 million and 1he value payable on mawrity is Rs. 3,250.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amcrtiz.ed over 1he teoor of1he underlyiog instrument These 
commercial papers are listed on BSE on 19 August 2024. These commercial papers were due for paymeot on 14 August 2025 but have been redeemed pre-maturely (buy back) on 23 December 2024. 

14 Current fmancial liabilities -Trade payables 

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
b) T ota1 out,tanding dues of creditnrs o1her 1hao micro enterprises and small entorprises' 

*Far balance payable to related parties, refer note 28 

Asat 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

0.24 
80.33 

80.57 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

0.28 
50.97 

51.25 

'The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (i.e. MSME) has issued an Ofli<e Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommeods 1hat Micro and Small Eoterprises should meotion in their ccrrespcndence wi1h 
their customers the Entrepreneurs Mem.orandmn number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum.. According1y, the disclosure in respect of amounts payable to such enterprises as at year end has been made in the Ind AS 
financial statement, based on information available wi1h 1he Coropany as uoder : 

Particulars 

( a) 1he principal amount remaining uopaid oo any supplier at 1he eod of financial year. 

(b) 1he interest due on principal amount remaining uopaid oo any supplier at 1he eod of financial year. 

(c) 1he amount of interest paid by 1he buyer in torms of section 16 of 1he Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (27 of 2006), aloog with 1he amount of 1he 
paymeot made oo 1he supplier beyond 1he appointed day during finaocial year. 

(d) 1he amount of interest due and payable for 1he period of delay in making paymeot (which has been paid but beyond 1he appointed day during 1he year) but wi1hout addiog 1he 
interest specified under 1he Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmeot Act 2006. 

( e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of financial year. 

(!) 1he amount of fur1her interest remaining due and payable even in 1he succeeding yean, until such date when 1he interest dues above are actually paid oo 1he small enterprise, for 
1he purpose of disallowaoce of a deductible expeoditure uoder sectioo 23 of 1he Micro, Small and Medium Eoterprises Developmeot Act 2006. 

Asat 
31 March 2025 

Audited 
0.24 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

Audited 
0.28 
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15 Current - Other financial liabilities 

Contingent consideration* 
Other payables•• 

A1at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

22.94 

22,94 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

86.77 
16.04 

102,81 

• Represents the fair value of part eoosideration, payable to the erstwhile shareholders of Caodor Gurgaon I aod Kairos upon fullilmeot of eertain eonditions, as per Share Purchase Agreements. This has beeo writteo back during 
1he year eoded 31 March 2025 pursuaot to the settleroeot done with erstwhile shareholders. (refer note 28 fur related party). 
**For balance payable to related parties, refer note 28 

16 Other current liabilities 

Statutcxy dues payable 

Asat 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

9.70 

9,70 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

5.05 

5,05 
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Particulan For the qwu1er For the quarter For the qwu1er Forthehalfyear For the half year For the half year For the year For the year 
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended 

31 Mardl2025 :n December 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 30 September 2024 31 Mardl2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (A•-d) (A•-d) 

17 Intere,t income 

--· - on 15% Ccmp,tlsarily COIIVert:i.ble Debentures 38.68 38.23 38.22 76.91 76.43 76.43 153.34 123.85 
(refer note 18 and 20 for other changes in fair value) 
- on 14% Ccmp,tlsarily COIIVert:i.ble Debentures 101.00 102.19 100.33 203.19 203.15 202.47 406.34 238.72 
(refer note 18 and 20 for other changes in fair value) 

- on Loans to subsidiaries 1,263.68 702.43 634.40 1,966.10 1,269.41 1,300.23 3,235.51 2,697.58 
- on 12.5% Non convertible debentures 238.05 250.12 264.19 488.17 521.22 538.89 1,009.40 660.09 
Interest income on deposits with banks* 22.76 64.66 25.78 87.42 70.43 51.65 157.85 169.13 

1~4.17 1,157.63 1,!!62.92 2,!!;!1,79 2,140.64 2,169.67 4,2!i2.44 3~89.37 
• Refer note 28 for transactions with related parties 

18 Other income 

Gain on investment in Debentures at fair value through profit or loss 1,032.50 48.54 1,032.50 1,055.40 48.54 2,087.90 
(refer note 17 for interest income on these Ccmp,tlsorily Convertible 
Debentures)* 

Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back 4.95 98.88 0.59 103.83 0.59 103.84 0.59 

1~7.45 98.88 49.13 1,136.33 1,!!55.40 49.13 2,191.74 o.59 
*To be read with note 20 for loss on investment in Debentures 

19 Finance co1ta 

Interest on commercial papers 100.46 137.33 100.46 347.14 275.91 447.60 340.73 

Interestonte1m.loan 114.16 115.78 1.19 229.94 24.83 254.76 
Credit facilitation fee 6.83 6.83 6.83 
Uuwimlingofintorestexpoo,es 1.66 3.33 3.34 3.33 4.06 

120.99 216.24 140.18 337.23 37!1.30 279.25 712.52 344.79 

20 Other upeme1 

Marketing and advertisement expenses 4.63 5.91 4.02 10.54 12.71 8.85 23.24 18.60 
Membership & Subscription Fees 3.45 6.62 0.71 10.07 6.48 6.62 16.56 7.02 
Loss on investment in Debentures at fair value through profit or loss 373.94 
(refer note 17 for interest income on these Ccmp,tlsorily Convertible 
Debentures)• 
Miscellaneous expenses 0.96 0.68 1.17 1.65 0.69 1.42 2.33 1.59 

9.04 13.21 5.90 22.26 19.88 16.89 42.13 401.15 
*To be read with note 18 for gain on investment in Debentures 

20(a) Detaih of remuneration to auditon 
A3 auditor ( on accrual basis) 

- for statutory audit 8.58 3.78 10.27 12.36 8.27 12.94 20.64 19.71 

- for other services 
- for reimbursemeDt of expoo,es 0.02 0.69 0.08 0.69 1.11 

8.58 3.78 10.25 12.36 8.96 12.86 21.33 20.82 

21 Taxexpeme 

Current tax 
-for current period 9.73 27.64 11.02 37.37 30.10 22.07 67.47 72.29 
-for earlier years 

Deferred tax cha,cgei (credit) 154.36 (97.26) 11.31 57.10 245.87 11.31 302.97 (87.11) 

164.09 !69.62J 22.33 94.47 27!1.97 33.38 370.44 !14.82J 

Brookfield India REIT is a business trust registered under SEBI REIT Regulations, 2014. Hence, the interest and dividend received or receivable by Brookfield India REIT from the SPVs is exempt from tax under sectioo. 10(23FC) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (Act). Further, any expenditure incurred in relation to earning the exempt income is not tax deductible in view of the provisions of section 14A of the Act. 
The income of Brookfield India REIT, other than exempt income mecrtiooed above, is chargeable to tax at the maximum marginal rates in force (for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2025: 42.744%; for the year ended 31 March 2024: 
42.744%), except for the income chargeable to tax on transfer of short term capital assets under section 11 lA of the Act and long term capital assets under section 112 of the Act 

Note A: The Finance (No. 2) Act, 2024 (' Act"), which was passed and enacted on August 16, 2024, annmmced changes to Capital Gains provision with effect from 23 July 2024. The Act amended the long-term tax rate on Capital Gains from 20% to 12.5% 
on all category of assets and removed the indexation benefit for calculation of loog-term capital gains. 
A3 at March 31, 2025, pumiant to such amended, Brookfield India REIT has remellSW'ed the carrying value of deferred tax and accounted for reduction in deferred tax liability amounting to Rs. 97.26 million through statement of profit and loss. Excluding 
this, the PAT fer the quarter and half year and year ended 31 March 2025 would be Rs. 2,989.92 millioo, Rs. 4,339.05 million and Rs. 7,047.26 million respectively. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

22 Contingent liabilities 

There are no contingent liabilities as at 31 March2025 and 31 March 2024. 

23 Capital commitments 

There are no capital commitments as at 31 March2025 and 31 March 2024. 

24 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management 
i) Financial instruments by category and fair value 

The below table summarizes the judgements and estimates made io determining the fair values of the financial iostruments that are (a) recognized and measured at fair 
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed io the financial statements. The Brookfield India REIT has classified its financial 
iostruments, which are measured at fair value, ioto three levels io accordance with Ind AS. 

Carrying value Fair value 
Asat Asat Asat Asat 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) 

At Amo,med Cost 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash eauivalents # 2 094.50 2 392.89 2 094.50 2 392.89 
Other bank balances # 185.00 - 185.00 -
Loans• 45 424.64 19 053.69 45 160.34 20 364.88 
Other financial assets # I 696.15 443.93 1696.15 443.93 
Non convertible debentures* 7 516.00 8 430.00 7 991.60 8 968.30 

AtFVTPL 
Financial Assets 
Comoulsorilv Convertible Debentures" 15 724.75 13 636.85 15 724.75 13 636.85 

Total financial assets 72641.04 43.957.36 72 852.34 45 806,85 

At Amormed Cost 
Financial liabilities 
Borrounnas# 6 693.21 7 284.87 6 693.21 7 284.87 
Trade navables # 80.57 51.25 80.57 51.25 
Other financial liabilities # 22.94 102.81 22.94 102.81 

Total financial liabilities 6 796.72 7.438.93 6 796.72 7 438.93 

# fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities which are recognized at amortized cost has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as the carrying value 
approximately equals to their fair value. 

• Fair value ofloans and Non convertible debentures which are recognized at amortized cost, bas been calculated at the present value of the future cash flows discounted 
at the current borrowiog rate. 

"Fair value of Debentures (Compulsorily Convertible Debentures) is determioed on the basis of Net assets value (NA V) method. These CCDs are classified as level 3 io 
the fair value hierarchy due to the ioclusion of unobservable ioputs. The key ioput to the NA V is fair value of the iovestment properties. 

ii) Measurement of fair values 
The different levels of fair value have been defined below: 

Level I: Level I hierarchy iocludes financial iostruments measured using quoted prices for iostance listed equity iostruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have 
quoted price. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial iostruments that are not traded io an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determioed using 
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant ioputs required to fair 
value an iostrument are observable, the iostrument is iocluded io level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant ioputs is not based on observable market data, the iostrument is iocluded io level 3. 

There have been no valuation under Level I and Level 2. There has been no transfers ioto or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the period/year ended 31 March 
2025 and year ended 31 March 2024. 
Brookfield India REIT's policy is to recognize transfers ioto and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reportiog period. 
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iii) Details of significant unobservable inputs 

Significant unobservable inputs 

Financial assets measured at fair value (15¾ CCDs) 
Fair value of investment property 

iv) Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 fair values 

I Inter-relationship between significant unobservable inputs and fair value 

ITbe estimated fair value would increase (decrease) if fair value of investment property 
increases (decreases) 

For the fair value of CCDs, reasooably possible changes at the reporting date due to ooe of the sigoificant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have 
following effects: 

31 March 2025 

Fair value of investment property (1 % movement) 

31 March 2024 

Fair value of investment property (1 % movement) 

(v) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values 

Fair value of CCDs 
Balance as at 01 April 2023 
Investment in CCDs during the period 
Net change in fair value-unrealized (refer note 18 and 20) 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 
Balance as at 01 April 2024 
Net change in fair value-unrealized (refer note 18) 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

280.93 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

239.71 

Decrease 

(280.93) 

Decrease 

(239.71) 

Amount 
5,795.00 
8,215.80 
(373.94) 

13,636.86 
13,636.86 
2,087.90 

15,724.76 
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25 Segment reporting 

The ToJst does not have any Operating segments as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. Hence disclosure under ''Ind AS 108", Operating s~ has not been p-ov:i.ded in the Condensed Standalm.e Financial Statements. 

26 Earning1 Per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amounts are cakulsted by dividing the profit fur the period /year afta income tax atlnbutable to unitholdeI3 by the weighted avaagenumberofunits outstanding during the period/ year. Dil.utedEPU amounts are calculata:I by dividing the profit for the period/ year 
after income taxattributabk tD unitholdeI3 by the weighted avmigenumberofunits outstanding during pmod / year plus the weiglrtJxl. avaagenumberofunits that would be issued on convm.ionofall the dilutivepotenti.sl units into mritcapital The units of the TrustW1;R 
allotbxl on 08 February 2021, 11 Februuy 2021, 24 J811U81)' 2022, 02 August 2023, 28 August 2023, 21 June 2024 and 12 Del.a:nba- 2024. 

Particulan 

Profit after tax fur calculating basic and diluted EPU 
Weighbxl. average numba- ofUirits (Nos.) 

Earnings Per Unit 
-Basic(Rupees/uDit) 
-Diluted @upee.Wnif,. 

• The Trust does not have any outstanding dilutive units. 

27 lnvnt.m.ent Management fee 

REIT Management Fees 

For the quarter ...... 
31 March 2025 

(Unaudited) 

3,087.20 
60,77,52,448 

5.08 
5.08 

For the quarter ...... 
31 December 2024 

(Unaudited) 

1,349.13 
50,77,84,184 

2.66 
2.66 

For the quarter For the haH year 
ended ...... 

31 March.2024 31 March 2025 
(Unandit:ed) (Unaudited) 

894.48 4,436.32 
43,90,85,222 55,72,19,040 

2.04 7.% 
2.04 7.% 

For the half year For the half year For the year For the year ...... ...... ended ...... 
30 Septtmber 2024 31 Man:h.2024 31 Man:h.2025 31 Man:h.2024 

(Unaodlt:ed) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

2,708.21 1,797.54 7,144.54 2,983.94 
46,18,98,665 43,90,85,222 50,94,28,276 40,32,33,066 

5.86 4.09 14.02 7.40 
5.86 4.09 14.02 7.40 

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 17 July 2020, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ 1 % ofNDCF, exclusive of applicable taxes (also refer note 31 ). The fees has been ddmn:ined fur undertaking management of the Trust and its investments. The 
said Management fees fur the quarter, halfyearand year ended 31 Marc.b.2025 mrunmts to Rs. 39.86 millim., Rs. 73.48 million and Rs. 125.73 million respectively. There are no changes during the pmod in the methodology fur computati.m. of fees paid to the Investment 
Man,gec. 
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28 Related Party Disdosures 

A. Related parties to Brookfield India REIT as at 31 March 2025 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. - Sponsor 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited - Investment Manager or Manager 
Axis Trustee Services Limited - Trustee 

Ultimate parent entity* 
Brookfield Coiporation (Fonnerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.) -ultimate parent entity and controlling party (till 18 March 2025) 

Sponsor group 
a) BSREP II India Office Holdings II Pte. Ltd. (BSREP II India) 
b) BSREP India Office Holdings III Pte Ltd. (BSREP India Office III) 
c) BSREP India Office Holding., Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Holdings) 
d) BSREP India Office Holdings N Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Office N) (till 17 March 2025) 
e) BSREP India Office Holdings VI Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Office VI) (till 17 March 2025) 
t) Ptajcct Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited (Project Diamond) 

Entity havine; sipificant influence* 
Brookfield Coiporation (funnerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.) (w.e.f. 19 March 2025) 

Group companies of entity havine; sipificant influence 
Brookfield Property Group LLC 
Schloss Cbanakya Private Limited 

Other related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the quarter/ year: 
Axis Bank Limited - Promotor of Trustee 
Axis Capital Limited-Fellow subsidiary of Trustee 

*During the quarter and year ended March 31, 2025, the sponsor group reduced its holdings in unit capital of Brookfield India REIT to 26.45% resulting in the sponsor group and Brookfield Corporation's loss of 
control over Brookfield India REIT. Consequently, during the quarter and year ended March 31, 2025, Brookfield Co!poration's relationship with Brookfield India REIT bas changed from being the ultimate 
controlling party to an investor with significant influence. 

Directors & Key personnel of the Investment Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private Limited) 

!lli:m!w. 
Alok Aggarwal - Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director- India office 
business (Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive Officer and Managing 
Din:ctorw.e.f 12 February 2024) 
Akila Krishnakumar (Independent Din:ctor) 
Sbailesb Visbnubbai Haribbakti (Independent Director) 
Anuj Ranjan (Non-Executive Director) (till 12 February 2024) 
Ankur Gupta (Non-Executive Din:ctor) 
Thomas Jan Sucharda (Non-Executive Din:ctor) (w.e.f. 30 March 2023) 
Rajnisb Kumar (Independent Din:ctor) (w.e.f. 30 March 2023) 

Sub,idiary (SPV,) (w.e.f. 08 February 2021) 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech S1Iuctures Private Limited 
Festus Properties Private Limited 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 
Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.e.f. 24 January 2022) 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 
Sub,idiary (SPV,) (w.e.f.18 August 2023) 
Candor Gwgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 
Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.e.f. 28 Aupst 2023) 

Key Personnels 
Alok Aggarwal- ChiefExecutive Officer and Managing Director as Key Persoonel w.e.f. 26 September 2020 
Amit Jam - Chief Financial Officer- India office business (w.e.f. 09 Msy 2024) and Key Personnel (w.e.f 07January 2025) 

Ankit Gupta-Ptesident-lndia office business as Key Personnel (w.e.f. 09 Msy 2024) 
Sbantanu Cbakraborty- Chief Operating Officer- India office business as Key Persoonel (w.e.f. 09 Msy 2024, till 07 January 
2025) 
Sanjeev Kumar Sharma - Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer- India office business (till 09 May 2024) 
Saurabh Jain- Compliance Officer 

Kairos Ptoperties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Ptoperty Managers Private Limited) 
Joint venture (w.e.f. 21 June 2024) 
Ros1Ium Realty Private Limited 
Sub,idiary (SPV,) (w.e.f. 07 January 2025) 
Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 



er..ldleW India Real Eltaa, Tnut 
Cmdemed Slbuulduae FilllmdaJ. Statemeaa 
(,\IlamoantaarelnR:upeamlalomUDlaaotherwluatated) 
Nata tu the Cond.emed Standlalonll FlnandaJ. Statt!lllt!llta 

28 B. Rekted tnmadfom: 

N~ of'tnmadioa/ Eadty'• Name 

UaaeeuredloaapYOtu 
-Cmdol-KolbtaOneHi-Twb.Stniwirell Privak:Limitlld. 
-Featu,,Pn,pertielPrivak:Llmitlld. 
-ShantiniketanPropClllieaPrivateLlmited 
• Mountainstar India Offi.OII Parb Privam Llmimd 
- SeaviewDevdopen Privllk: Limitlld. 

Uaaeeuredloaarepulhy 
-Cmdol-KolkataOneHi-TeahStniaturea PrivamLlmimd 
-Featu,,Pn,pertielPrivak:Llmitlld. 
-ShaaliniketmPropedie,,PrivateLlmitlld. 
- SeaviewD-1.opcn Privam Llmimd 

lnvutmmtln.Debmtara 
- Cmdol-GurJaon OM Realty Projootl Privm Limited 
- Kairoa Propcirtit,1 Private Llmitetl(Form.ty known 81 Kairoa Propcllty ~sen. Privm Limited) 

Invutmmt In Ji:lially Ibara of'SPV/.lolnt Vllllhm! 
- Seaview D-1.opcn Privam Llmimd 
- Cmdol-Gvrgaon One Realty Projeoll Privak: Limited 
- Kairoa Pn,pme1 Private Llmiwd.(F<.IIDlmJ known 81 Kairoa Property ~gen Privak: Limited) 
- Roltrum Realty PrivmLimited (JointVcman mlity) 
• Mountainstar India Offi.OII Parb Privam Llmimd 

Invutmmt In Non eoJfffftlhle debmtara 
- Cmdol-GurJaon OM Realty Projootl Privm Limited 
- Kairoa Propcirtit,1 Private Llmitetl(Form.ty known 81 Kairoa Propcllty ~sen. Privm Limited) 

Non eGDVel"dble dehentura nd--1 by 
- Kairoa Propcirtit,1 Private Llmitetl(Form.ty known 81 Kairoa Propcllty ~sen. Privm Limited) 
-Cmdol-GvrgaonOneRealtyProjeoll!Privak:Limited 

'I'nllmeli'•E:q,eme 
- Axil TruatH ScniOCII Llmitod 

hm!Nlt lnllome OD l..oenl to Sai.ldlerla 
-Cmdol-KolbtaOneHi-Twb.StniwirellPrivak:Limitlld. 
-Festu,,Propertie1PrivmLlmimd 
-ShantiniketanPropClllieaPrivateLlmited 
-MountainstarlndiaO:ffi.geParbPrivak,Llmitlld. 
- Seaview Devdopen Privllk: Limitlld. 

hm!ffllll Inconie OD Debmtura 
- Seaview Devdopen Privllk: Limitlld. 
-Cmdol-GvrgaonOneRealtyProjeoll!Privak:Limited 
- Kairoa Pn,pme1 Private Llmiwd.(F<.IIDlmJ known u Kairoa Property ~gen Privak: Limited) 

hm!Nlt lnllome on Non eomvtl.ble debentura 
-Cmdol-GvrgaonOneRealtyProjeoll!Privak:Limited 
- Kairoa Propcirtit,1 Private Llmitetl(Form.ty known 81 Kairoa Propcllty ~sen. Privm Limited) 

IJnutmmtlllllllllpDIUf'eftU 

- Elndprup Maaagaaent Servigea Private Limited 

........ .._ 
-RoltrumRealtyPrivau:Limited 
-Cmdol-JndiaOJm,ePIIIDPrivak:Limited 
-ShantiniketanPropClllieaPrivateLimited 

Wae..tUaitCapital 
- Projellt Diamond Holdmp (DIFC) Llmiwd.' 
-AxilBenkLlmitotl 

Waenpma1 
-Axilc.pilllJ.Limited 

kpeme11diredly.aributahletoinfllltmmtia1ui.tdiluiel, 
-Axilc.pilllJ.Limited 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

Fortlae•auter Fortlae•auter Fortlae•auter Fortlaeludf'yeu Fortlaebalfyeu 
ended ended ended ended ended 

llMardJ.2025 l1De-ber2024 l1Mardll2024 l1Mardl2025 l0September2024 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaadlted) (Unaudited) 

175.50 
70.00 

500.00 
434.18 

1,179.611 

212.32 
405.31 
288.30 
442.17 

l,l48.10 

1,004.00 
1,004.00 

266.00 
151.00 
417.00 

0.73 .,, 
344.36 
363.12 
38.03 
11.79 

506.36 ,.,.,. .. 
19.52 
19.14 

101.00 

"'·" 
150.30 
87.76 ,, ... 
39.86 
3'-86 

643.83 
55.00 
50.35 

74'-18 

3,234.00 
10,269.98 

11,831.32 
..,,.._,o 

213.57 
422.61 
471.61 
289.85 

1,3'7.64 

1,999.23 

1,m.23 

169.00 
105.00 
274.00 

0.74 .,. 
283.47 
130.71 
48.70 

239.52 ,.,, .. 
19.30 
18.93 

102.19 , ... ., 
155.48 

"'" 2,0.12 

33.62 

"·" 
206.95 
60.00 
50.35 

317.30 

365.00 
50.00 

175.00 ...... 
348.00 
268.00 
959.92 

22.00 
1,5'7.92 

33.00 
54.00 
17.00 

0.73 .,, 
276.28 
140.09 
38.11 

179.92 ..... 
19.29 
18.92 

100.34 ..... 
162.12 
102.07 
264.1, 

2<13 , ... 

3,409.50 
10,339.98 

500.00 
12,265.50 
26,514.98 

42'.90 
827.92 
759.91 
732.02 

2,745.75 

1,999.23 

1,004.00 
3,0Dl.23 

435.00 
2'6.00 
m.oo 

1.47 
1.47 

627.84 
493.84 
86.73 
11.79 

74!5.89 ........ 
38.82 
38.07 

203.19 , ..... 
305.78 
182.40 ...... 
73.48 

"·" 
850.78 
115.00 
100.71 

1,066.49 

401.60 
26.30 

2,055.02 

1,189.60 
l,'72.52 

416.00 
504.77 
104.04 
4':i.00 

1,o7D.11 

12,279.00 

12,27'.00 

96.00 
127.00 
:W.00 

1.48 , ... 
555.32 
258.62 
42.67 

412.80 
1,20.41 

38.59 
37.84 

203.15 ,,. ... 
319.59 
201.63 
'21.22 

71.93 
292.1' 

''I'hil 11111011I1timdudelRB. 4,000.00millionagaimtthellDitr. i11111ed.iaexdwigefol-iavelllmentr.ialCIUl'OII duriagtheyearaaded.31 Manm.2024. 

Fortlaeludf'yeu Fortlaeyellll" Fortlaeyeu 
ended ended ended 

llMardl. 2024 l1Mardl2025 llMardl.2024 
(Unaudited) (Audited} {Audited} 

519.12 
50.00 
40.00 

175.00 
784.12 

7'7.00 
423.00 

1,265.92 
22.00 

2,467.92 

(0.01) 
(0.00) 

(0.01) 

162.00 
146.00 
308.00 

1.47 
IA7 

561.66 
287.73 
94.42 

356.42 
1,300.23 

38.'8 
37.84 

202.48 ,,... 
328.90 

"'·" """' 
48.78 .. ,. 

3,811.10 
10,366.28 
2,055.02 

500.00 
13,4!55.10 
lo,181.50 

841.90 
1,332.69 

863.94 
778.02 

3,81U5 

1,999.23 

12,279.00 
1,004.00 

15,212.23 

531.00 
383.00 
914.00 

2.95 ,.., 
1,183.16 

7'2.46 
12.9.40 
11.79 

1,158.69 
l,235.50 

77.41 
7'.92 

406.34 ... ., 
625.37 
384.03 

1,00,.40 

125.73 
12'.73 

1,061.01 
115.00 
172.64 

1,348.65 

1,249.12 
50.00 

100.00 

495.00 
1,BM.12 

1,267.00 
1,507.00 
2,143.92 

242.00 
5,1.9.92 

4,74':i.22 
3,342.50 ...... ,. 

3,679.78 
11,963.89 

15,643.(17 

5,310.00 
3,560.00 
...,..oo 

294.00 
146.00 
440.00 

2.95 ,.., 
1,126.58 

624.35 
237.47 

709.18 
2,6'7.!itl 

77.16 
46.68 

238.73 ..,_,, 
408.69 
251.40 ..... 

90.92 ...., 

4,000.00 
500.00 

..... oo 

73.28 
73.21 

14.75 
14.75 
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28 B. Rekted tnmadfom: 

N~ oftnmadioa/ Eadty'• Name 

Ra~ofUnll:Capltal 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp V Pm. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap Pk:. Ltd. 
- BSREP II India Ollioe Ho1diop D Pte. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp ill Pm. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp NPttl. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap VI Pk:. Ltd. 
- Projelll: Diam.OIU.i Holdiap (DIFC) Llm.iwd 
-AxuBankLlmitotl 

.................. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp V Pm. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap Pk:. Ltd. 
- BSREP II India Ollioe Ho1diop D Pte. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp ill Pm. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp NPttl. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap VI Pk:. Ltd. 
- Projelll: Diam.OIU.i Holdiap (DIFC) Llm.iwd 
-Axil BankLlmitotl 

Otmr 1-:ime DWrihuted 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp V Pm. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp Pm Ltd. 
- BSREP II India Ollioe Ho1diop D Pte. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap ill Pk:. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp NPttl. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp VI Phi. Ltd. 
- Projelll: Diam.OIU.i Holdiap (DIFC) Llm.iwd 
-AxuBankLlmitotl 

Dl.td.end.Dtmlllllted. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap V Pte. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap Pk: Ltd. 
- BSREP Il India Offiot, Holdinp D Pte.. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp ill Pm. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap N Pk:. Ltd. 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdiap VI Pk:. Ltd. 
- Projt,111: Diam.OIU.i Holdinp (DIFC) Limited 
-Axil BankLlmitotl 

Rmi.bunemeat ofupmae imurnd b,-(ududinc GST) 
- Bndprup Property Management Semoell PriVllk: Limik:d 

- Bndprup Maaagaaent Servigea Privak:Limited 
- Kairoa Propertit,1 Private Llm.iled(Formerly known u Kairoa Property ~,era Private Limited.) 
- BSREP India Office Holdinp V Pm. Ltd. 

Mlllliedaa;andadvmilemeatupeme1 
-Sdtlol1ClumlkyaPrivak:Limited 

De.-ftiiwithl,udu,m..te 
-Axil BankLlmitotl 

De.-ftiiwithl,udu,lllldund 
-Axil BankLlmitotl 

laa,nBt hmuae ,:,,a deplllia, with l,udu, 
-Axil BankLlmitotl 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

Fortlae•auter Fortlae•auter Fortlae•auter Fortlaeludf'yeu Fortlaeball'yeu 
ended ended ended ended ended 

llMardJ.2025 llDe-berJ024 llMardlJ024 llMardlJ025 lOSeptemberJ024 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaadlted) (Unaudited) 

119.60 
91.71 
69.56 
81.17 
34.17 

., ... 
83.88 
64.32 
4'.79 
56.93 
23.97 

,, ... , 
<87 
3.73 
283 
3.31 
1.39 
0.07 
1.14 

17.34 

56.82 
43.57 
33.05 
38.56 
16.24 
0.84 

13.33 

.,, 

3,999.00 ,.,,,. .. 
2,797.00 
2,797.00 

10.18 
10.18 

128.80 
9'.77 
74.91 
87.41 
36.80 

.... ., 
89.84 
68.89 ,,,, 
60.97 
2'.67 

,, . ., 
271 
207 
1.57 
1.84 
0.77 
0.04 

'·" 
27.60 
21.16 
16.05 
18.73 
7.89 
0.41 , ... 

lo.68 
1•68 

1,730.00 
1,'130.00 

1,934.00 
1,"4..00 

10.18 
10.18 

134.21 
102.92 
78.06 
91.08 
38.35 

31.49 
4.91 ...... 

119.60 
91.71 
69.56 
81.17 
34.17 

28.06 
rn ... ., 
3.2' 
249 
1.89 
220 
0.93 
0.05 
0.76 
0.12 

11.ff 

3.2' 
249 
1.89 
220 
0.93 
0.05 
0.76 
0.12 

11.ff 

0.01 ... 
3,002.00 
l,OOZ.00 

3,172.08 
l,1'7:Z.1111 

"-" ,.,. 

248.40 
190.48 
144.47 
168.58 

"·" 

...... 
173.72 
133.21 
101.03 
117.89 
49.64 

., . ., 
7.58 
5.81 
<41 
5.14 
216 
0.11 
1.78 

, ... 
84.42 
64.74 
49.10 
57.29 
2<12 

'-" 
19.81 

10.68 
11.03 

5,729.00 
5,n,.00 

4,731.00 
4,'131.00 

20.36 ,.,, 

251.12 
192.56 
146.04 
170.42 
71.75 
3.72 

58.91 
2'2 

"'·" 
214.85 
164.75 
124.95 
145.81 
61.39 

50.41 
w 

7(17.49 

7.04 
5.39 
<09 
<77 
201 
0.10 

0.07 ,.., 
27.60 
21.16 
16.05 
18.73 
7.89 
0.41 , ... 
0.28 .... 

12,261.00 
1Z,Z'1.00 

13,865.00 ........ 
70.43 ,.., 

Fortlaeludf'yeu Fortlaeyellll" Fortlaeyeu 
ended ended ended 

llMardJ. 2024 llMardlJ025 llMardJ.2024 
(Unaudited) (Audited} {Audited} 

250.02 
191.73 
145.42 
169.68 
71.44 
3.70 

58.66 
9.15 ...... 

231.62 
177.61 
134.71 
157.20 
66.18 
3.43 

'4.34 
8.48 ....., 

13.53 
10.37 
7.87 
9.18 
3.87 
0.20 
3.17 
0.50 ..... 

0.42 
6.14 ... 
0.01 
Ml 

6,901.78 
.,..._,. 

7,478.78 
7,478.78 

50.50 .... 

117.19 
2.52 

1,781.90 

388.57 
297.97 
225.98 
263.70 
111.03 

2.15 
1,386.ll 

14.61 
11.20 

8.50 
9.92 
4.18 
0.21 
3.43 
0.07 

'2.12 

112.02 
85.90 
65.15 
76.03 
32.01 

'-" 
26.28 
0.28 

399.33 

10.63 
I .... 

~-02J 
(!1.02) 

17,990.00 
17.,,0.00 

90.79 ,.,, 

503.29 
385.95 
292.72 
341.56 
143.81 

7.4' 
58.66 
13.15 

1,746.9 

4'2.96 
347.34 
263.44 
307.41 
129.43 

6.70 
'4.34 
12.02 

1,573.64 

17.85 
13.69 
10.39 
12.12 

5.11 
0.26 
3.17 
0.58 

'3.17 

2.31 
13.41 
9.51 

25.23 

0.01 
Ml 

54,946.58 ...... .. 
54,244.08 ...,.._ .. 

167.85 
1(17.85 
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28 B. Rekted tnmadfom: 

N~ oftnmadioa/ Eadty'• Name 

............ 
-AlWIBllllkLimited 

Cndl< ............ 
-ShantiniketanPropClllieaPrivateLlmited 

- ........... 
UIIIKIINd.loam rect!m1lllt! (Non-CIIITmt) 

-Cmdol-KolbtaOneHi-Twb.Stniwirell Privak:Limitlld. 
-FestuaPropertieaPrivateLlmimd 
-ShantiniketanPropClllieaPrivateLlmited 
-MmmtaimtarJadiaOffi.geParbPrivak:Llmitlld. 
- SeaviewDevdopen Privllk: Limitlld. 

Invutmmtln.equltylbaruofSPV/,lolnl:Ventun 
-Cmdol-KolbtaOneHi-Twb.StniwirellPrivak:Limitlld. 
- Festua Propertiea Private Llmimd 
-ShantiniketanPropClllieaPrivateLlmited 
-Cmdol-JndiaOJm,ePIIIDPrivak:Limited 
- Seaview Devdopen Privllk: Limitlld. 
-Cmdol-GlqaonOMR.ealtyProjOQDPrivateLimited 
- Kairoa Propertit,1 Private Llmitetl(Formerly known 81 Kairoa Property ~sen. Private Limited) 
-RoltrumRe.ltyPrivak:Limited 
-MmmtaimtarJadiaOffi.geParbPrivak:Llmitlld. 

Invutmmt In Debmtara 
- Seaview Devdopen Privllk: Limitlld. 
- Cmdol-Gvrgaon One Realty Projlll.lU Private Limited 
- Kairoa Propertit,1 Private Llmitetl(Formerly known 81 Kairoa Property ~sen. Private Limited) 

Invutmmt In Non eoJfffftUlle debmtara 
- Cmdol-Glqaon OM Realty ProjOQD Private Limited 
- Kairoa Propertit,1 Private Llmitetl(Formerly known 81 Kairoa Property ~sen. Private Limited) 

IaterataeenaedbutlllltdueonDebemurel, 
- Kairoa Propertit,1 Private Llmitetl(Formerly known 81 Kairoa Property ~sen. Private Limited) 
-Cmdol-GvrgaonOneRealtyProjlll.lUPrivak:Limited 
- Seaview Devdopen Privllk: Limitlld. 

IaterataeenaedbutlllltdueonNoneOll.ffl"1ihledebeaturw 
- Kairoa Pn,pme1 Priwk: Llmiwd.(F<.IIDlmJ known 81 Kairoa Poopedy ~gen Private Limited) 
-Cmdol-GvrgaonOneRealtyProjlll.lUPrivak:Limited 

IaterataeenaedbutlllltdueonLaatuSul9idiuift, 
-Cmdol-KolbtaOneHi-Twb.StniwirellPrivak:Limitlld. 
-FeatuaPn,pertiellPrivak:Llmitlld. 
-ShantiniketanPropClllieaPrivateLimited 
• Mmmillinltar India Offi.ot1 Farb Private Limimd 
- Seaview Devdopen Privllk: Limitlld. 

Pn ............ 
- Bndprup Property Management Semoal Private Limik:d 

Trad.ePayable{netofwhbholdlne;tu:) 
- Bndprup Maaagaaent Serv:igea Private Limited 

-Sdtlol1ClumlkyePrivllteLimited 

Other ...,..i. (DIii of"'lllldlboldbqrtu:) 
- BSREP Jndie Offioe Holdiap V Pie. Ltd. 
- Bndprup Property Management Semoal Private Limik:d 
-ShantiniketanPropClllieaPrivateLimited 

Clllllfiqmt eOII.Nllendiu.a payahh 
- Projelll: Diam.OIU.i Holdiap (DIFC) Llmiwd. 
-Projt,111:Cotbln Holdmp OM (DIFC)Limited 
- BSREP India Offioe Holdmp IlPle. Ltd 
- BSREP Jndie Offioe Holdiap Pk:. Ltd 

Belanlle'lllthbenkl(ln.emrmtaeeoant) 
-AlWIBllllkLimited 

Belanlle'lllthbenkl(ln.depoattaeeoant)-Cahand.eah .. llfflllmtll 
-AlWIBllllkLimited 

Belanlle'lllthbenkl(ln.depoattaeeoant)-Otha-bankbalenc!u 
-AlWIBllllkLimitod 

Iat..rwt lKfl"lffll but DGt due on dept:llia mth baalia 
-AlWIBllllkLimitod 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

T""'1 

Fortlae•auter Fortlae•auter Fortlae•auter Fortlaeludf'yeu Fortlaebalfyeu 
ended ended ended ended ended 

llMardJ.2025 llDe-berJ024 l1MardllJ024 l1MardlJ025 lOSeptemberJ024 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaadlted) (Unaudited) 

6.83 . ., 6.83 . ., 

Fortlaeludf'yeu ..... 
llMardl. 2024 

(Unaudited.) 

Fortlaey_. ..... 
l1MardlJ025 

(Audited} 

'·" .., 
.... 

31Man:hJ025 
(Aud>od) 

11,618.32 
13,263.09 
1,714.1' 

,oo.oo 
18,329.08 ...., ... 
24,761.39 
8,6,,.46 

11,407.83 
220.20 

14,482.20 
3,7%.66 

12,031.80 
12,322.,9 
1,004.00 

88,632.13 

6,443.70 
,,764.40 
3,,16.6, 

15,724.75 

4,781.00 
2,n,.00 
7,516.00 

101.01 
19.14 
19.,2 

139.67 

87.76 
1,0.30 
2311.06 

3,0.41 
383.76 
38.03 
11.79 

,30.01 
1,314.06 

0.06 ... 
3MB 

12.60 
0.3, 
6.72 

l!Ui7 

1,,87.00 
1,587.00 

18,.oo ...... 
3.,, .... 

Fortlaeyeu ..... 
llMardl.2024 

{Audited} 

0.69 ... 
.... 

JIMardl.2024 
(Awl"") 

8,649.12 
4,229.,o 

,23.07 

24,761.39 
8,6,,.46 

11,407.83 
220.20 

12,482.97 
3,7%.66 

12,031.80 

73,306.31 

,,682.10 

4,60'-8' 
3,348.90 

13,636.85 

,,164.00 
3,266.00 ..., ... 

9'-13 
47.82 
o.,3 

296.94 
440.42 

22.09 
0.09 

22.18 

UI 

31.,2 
0.00 

49.22 

12.14 
12.14 

2,378.00 
2,378.00 

3.,1 ,.,, 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condemed Standalone Fioa.o.cial Statements 
(AU amouots are io RttpeeS millioos uoless otherwbe stated) 
Notes to the Coodaued Standalone Firnmcial Stataneots 

29 A Detaib or utilization orimtitutiooal placement (issued oo 02 August 2023) as oo. 31 March 2025 are roUows: 

Objects or the issue as per the placement docwneot 

Funding of the consideration for the (i) Downtown Powai Acquisition; and/or (ii) GI Acquisition 

General purposes 
Issuerelatedex"""'ses 
TotM 
Note. Amount ofRs. 2.69 rrnlhon has been used for general corporate purposes from the proposed ubhzation towards issue expenses. 

B. Details or utilization or proceeds or Commercial Paper (issued oo 17 August 2023) ason31 March 2025 are follows: 

Objects orthe issue u per the letter or offer 

For repayment or debt ofSpedal Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) ofBrookfield India Real Estate Trust and tov.mds transaction expenses, capital expenditure and working capital requirements or Brookfield 
India Real Estate Trust and iUJ SPVs 
TotM 

C Detalb orutili.ution or proceeds or Commercial Paper (issued on 29 April 2024) u on 31 March 2025 are follows: 

Objects or the issue u per the letter or offer 

For repayment or debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) ofBrookfield India Real Estate Trust, towards transaction expenses, capital expenditure, working capital requiremenUJ and expenses or 
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its SPVs and for any other general corporate pur!X)SC. 

D. Detaib or utilization or proceeds or Commercial Paper (issued oo 19 August 2024) as on31 March 2025 are roUows: 

Objects orthe issue u per the letter or offer 

For repayment or debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) ofBrookfield India Real Estate Trust, towards transaction expenses, capital expenditure, working capital requiremenUJ and expenses of 
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its SPVs and for any other general corporate pur!X)SC. 

TotM 

E. Detaib or utilization or lmtitutiooal placement (issued oo 12 December 2024) u on 31 March 2025 are follows: 

Objects of the issue u per the placement docwnent 

Partial or full pre-prepayment or scheduled repayment of certain debt facilities availed by the REIT and Asset SPVs from banlwfinancial institutions 
General Purpose 
Issue related exoenses 
TotM 

30 Distribution Poticy 

Proposed utilization 

22,000.00 

203.59 
850,00 

21053.59 

Proposed utilization 

6,948.95 

6,948.95 

Proposed utilization 

1,870.83 

1,870.83 

Proposed utilization 

4,762.32 
3,009.65 
7,771.97 

Proposed utilization 

32,000.00 
2,300.00 

700.00 
35,000.00 

Actual utilization Unutililed amount u 

"P'" .. 
31 March2025 31 March2025 

21 ,896.76 103,24 

20628 
732.89 114.42 

22835.93 217.66 

Actual utilization Unutililed amount as 
upto .. 

31 March2025 31 March2025 

6,948.95 

6,948.95 

Actual utilization Unutililed amount as 
upto .. 

31 March2025 31 March2025 

1,870.83 

1,870.83 

Actual utilization Unutililed amount as 
upto .. 

31 March2025 31 March2025 

4,762.32 
3,009.65 
7 771.97 

Actual utilization Unutililed amount as 
upto .. 

31 March2025 31 Man:h2025 
31 ,991.06 8.94 

1,851.88 448.12 
657.26 42.74 

34,500.21 499.80 

In terms of the Distribution policy and REIT Regulations, not less than 90o/• of the NDCFs of our Asset SPVs are required to be distributed to Brookfield REIT/Holdco, in proportion of its shareholding in our Asset SPVs, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act 
Further, the Holdco shall distribute 100-/• ofNDFC received from Asset SPVs and not less than 90o/• ofNDCF generated on its own to Brookfield India REIT. The cash flows receivable by Brookfield REIT/Holdco may be in the fonn of dividends, interest income, principal loan 
repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buybeck from our Asset SPV&ICIOP/MIOP, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments of any or assets directly/ indirectly held by Brookfield REIT or as specifically pennitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as maybe 
pennissibleundertheapplicablelaws. 

At least 90¾ of the NDCFs ofBrookfield REIT (''REIT Distributions'') shall be declared and made once every quarter ofa Financial Year by our Manager. In accordance with the REIT Regulations, REIT Distributions shall be made within five working days from the record date. 
The REIT Distributions, when made, shall be made in Indian Rupees. 

The NDCFs shall be calculated in accordance with the REIT Regulations and any circular, notification or guidelines issued thereunder including the SEBI Guidelines. 

31 Capitalization Statement 

The Trust's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development ofthe business. The Trust's capital structure mainly constitutes equity in the fonnofunit capital. The projects ofSPVs are initially 
funded through construction financing arrangements. On completion, these loans are restruc1ured into lease-rental discounting arrangements. The Trust's capital structure is influenced by the changes in regulatory framework, government policies, available options offinancing and 
the impact of the same on the liquidity position. 
The Trust monitors iUJ capital structure using ratio of 'Net debt' to 'Total Equit1). The capital structure of the Trust consists of net debt (comprising borrowings as disclosed in notes 12 offset by cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 6) and equity of the Group (comprising 
issued unit capital and retained earnings as disclosed in notes 9 and 10). The Trust's net debt to equity ratio as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are as follows: 

Fortbeyear Fortbeyear 
ended oodod 

Particulars 31 Man:h2025 31 Man:h2024 
(Audited) (Audited) 

Gross debt 1 507.86 72&d..87 
Less : Cash and cash e uivalenUJ 2094.50 2 392.89 
Ad u.sted Net debt 586.64 4891.98 
-Unitca ital 1 51 106.86 109101.43 
-Othereouitv 3037.28 714.41 
TotalH1uitw I 54 144.14 109815.84 
Deht/F.nuitv Ratio 0.00 a04 

32 As.lets Acquisition 
(i) Brookfield India REIT has acquired equity interest in a joint venture by acquiring 50¾ of share capital (on a fully diluted basis) of Rostrum Realty Private Limited (' 'Rostrum') which owns, operates and manages, 3.3 Msf of portfolio, di rectly and through its subsidiaries (i) Oak 
Infrastructure Developers Limited ("Oak"); (ii)Aspen Buildtech Limited ("Aspen''); and (iii) Amon Builders & Developers Limited("'Amon") at an acquisition price of Rs. 60,000 million, from the existing shareholders of Rostrum i.e. (i) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited, 
(ii) Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited, (iii) Bharti (RBM) Holdings Pri,·ate Limited, (iv) Bharti (Satya) Trustees Private Limited on behalfofBharti (Satya) Family Trust and (v) Bharti Enterprises Limited, (vi) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Sunil Bharti 
Mittal, (vii) Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Rakesh Bharti Mittal, and (viii) Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Rajan Bharti Mittal (collectively referred to as "Bharti Sellerstt) on 21 June 2024. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50o/. 
share capital of Rostrum was discharged by way of allotment of 4,09,30,000 uniUJ of Brookfield India REIT to the Bharti Sellers at a price of Rs. 300 per unit on a preferential basis, aggregating to Rs. 12,279 million. These Uni ts were subsequently listed on the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on 25 June 2024. 

(ii) On 07 January 2025, Brookfield India REIT has acquired 100"/4 equity shares ofMountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited (MIOP) by exercising the call option, at a ~etermined purchase consideration ofRs. 1,504.00 million (subject to adjustments in relation to 
debt and other adjustments as agreed between the parties), pursuant to the option agreement signed amongst Brookfield India REIT, erstwhile shareholders ofMIOP, and MIOP dated 18 May 2023 and share purchase and subscription agreement dated 06 January 2025. Net 
purchase consideration (after adjusting for debt and other items of assets and liabilities) of Rs. 54.00 million (the "Purchase consideration') was discharged in cash. 

33 a) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 and the unaudited published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2024 and 30 September 2024 which 
"Were subject to limited review by the statutory auditors. 

b) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 and the unaudited published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2023 and 30 September 2023 which 
were subject to limited review by the statutory auditors. 

34 ft0.00ft RepresenUJ value less than Rs. 0.01 million 

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors of 
Brooliprop Management Senices Printe Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

ANKUR =Rfy~~by 

GUPTA ~=_; 

AnkurGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Dlte: 05 May 2025 

ALOK =~....,t,y.-.i.oo; 

AGGARWAL =~.:: 

Alok Aggarwal 
CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai 
Dlte: 05 May 2025 

AMIT 
JAIN 

Dlgl~lty,lgned 
by AMIT JAIN 
Date:l0lS.0S.0S 
23:09-.30-t-05'30' 

Amit Jain 
ChiefFinancial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Dlte: 05 May 2025 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chartered Accountants
7th Floor, Building 10, Tower B, 
DLF Cyber City Complex, 
DLF City Phase - II,
Gurugram - 122 002, 
Haryana, India 
 
Phone: +91 124 679 2000 
Fax: +91 124 679 2012 
 
 

ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL CONDENSED 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REVIEW OF QUARTERLY AND 
HALF YEARLY CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
To The Board of Directors 

 
(Acting in capacity as the Manager of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust) 
 
Opinion and Conclusion 
 
We have: 

 
(i) audited the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 

March 2025 which comprise the following: 
 

 the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025; 
 the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income) for the year ended 31 March 2025; 
 the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 

March 2025;  
 

the year ended 31 March 2025; 
 the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at 31 

March 2025; 
 the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair Value for the 

year ended 31 March 2025; 
 the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the Brookfield India Real Estate 

Trust and each of its special purpose vehicles (subsidiaries and joint venture) 
for the year ended 31 March 2025; and 

 summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes; 
 

(ii) reviewed the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements which comprise of the 

section below): 
 

 the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income) for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025;  

 the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter and half 
year ended 31 March 2025; 

 the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Total Return at fair value for the half 
year ended 31 March 2025; 

 the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the Brookfield India Real Estate 
Trust and each of its special purpose vehicles (subsidiaries and joint venture) 
for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025; and 

 summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes. 
 

These financial statements are included in the 
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 

 and its 
share of net loss after tax and total comprehensive loss of its joint venture the 

Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the "Manager") 

• 
• 

• 

• the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity for 

• 

• 

• 

• 

following for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 (refer 'Other Matter' 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

accompanying "Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements" of ("the REIT"), and its 
subsidiaries (the REIT and its subsidiaries together referred to as the "Group") 

I (" 



 

the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and 
circulars issued thereunder read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 .  
 
(a) Opinion on Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
March 2025: 
 

i) includes the financial information of the following entities: 
 

S. No. Name of the entities 
A Parent Entity 
1 Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
  

B Subsidiaries 
1 Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 
2 Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
3 Festus Properties Private Limited 
4 Seaview Developers Private Limited 
5 Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 
6 Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 
7 Kairos Properties Private Limited 
8 Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 
  

C Joint Venture 
1 Rostrum Realty Private Limited and its subsidiaries 

 
ii) is presented in accordance with the requirements of the REIT regulations in the 

manner so required; and 
 

iii) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard 34 

generally accepted in India to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 
Regulations, of the state of affairs of the Group and its joint venture as at 31 
March 2025, its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, its 

consolidated net assets at fair value, its consolidated total return at fair value, 
statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the REIT and each of its special 
purpose vehicles (subsidiaries and joint venture) and other financial information 
of the Group and its joint venture for the year then ended. 
 

(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for 
the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 

 
With respect to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and 
half year ended 31 March 2025, based on our review conducted and procedures 

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025, 

Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements"), being submitted by the REIT pursuant to 

(the "REIT regulations") 

"Interim Financial Reporting" ("Ind AS 34") and other accounting principles 

consolidated cash flows, its consolidated changes in Unitholder's equity, its 

performed as stated in paragraph (b) of Auditor's Responsibilities section below, 



 

prepared in accordance with the REIT regulations, Ind AS 34 and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 
Regulations, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the 
REIT regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains 
any material misstatement. 
 

Basis for Opinion on the Audited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 

section 
below. We are independent of the Group and its joint venture in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the ICAI and have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 15(a)(i) of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, 

Regulations. Our opinion and conclusion are not modified in respect of this matter.  
 
Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements is the responsibility of the Board of 

This responsibility includes the preparation and presentation of the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position 
as at 31 March 2025, financial performance including other comprehensive income for the 
quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025, its consolidated profit including other 
comprehensive profit for the year ended 31 March 2025, consolidated cash flows for the 

Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025, its consolidated net assets at fair value as at 31 
March 2025, its consolidated total return at fair value for the half year and year ended 31 
March 2025, its net distributable cash flows of the REIT and each of its special purpose 
vehicles (subsidiaries and joint venture) for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 
2025 and other financial information of the Group and its joint venture in conformity with 
the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34 and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT Regulations.  
 
The Board and the respective Board of Directors of the subsidiaries included in the Group 
and its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and its joint venture and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, 

Deloitte 
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in paragraph (a) of Auditor's Responsibilities 

with the !CAi's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 

which describes the presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" to comply with the REIT 

Directors of the Manager (the "Board") and has been approved by them for the issuance. 

quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2025, its consolidated changes in Unitholder's 



 

whether due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Board of the Manager, as aforesaid. 

 
In preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the management and 
Board of the Manager and the respective management and the Board of Directors of the 
subsidiaries included in the Group and its joint venture are responsible for assessing the 
ability of the REIT and its respective subsidiaries, to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board and the respective Board of Directors of the 
subsidiaries and joint venture either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 
The Board and the respective Board of Directors of the subsidiaries included in the Group 
and its joint venture are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of 
the Group and its joint venture. 
 

 
 
(a) Audit of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 

ended 31 March 2025 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

 that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of this Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.  

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Condensed 

Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of such controls.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by the Board of the Manager. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the 
Board in terms of the requirements specified under the REIT regulations. 
 

Deloitte 
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Auditor's Responsibilities 

auditor's report 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its joint venture to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

or conditions may cause the REIT and/or its respective subsidiaries and joint 
venture to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and its joint venture to express 
an opinion on the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 
financial information of such entities included in the Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the 
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.  
 
We communicate with those charged with governance of the REIT and such other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 

(b) Review of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter 
and half year ended 31 March 2025 
 
We conducted our review of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for 
the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the Standard on 

Performed by the Indepe

personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical 
and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit 

Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of the Manager's use of the going 

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 

• 

• 

Review Engagements ("SRE") 2410 'Review of Interim Financial Information 
ndent Auditor of the Entity', issued by the ICAI. A review of 

interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Manager's 



 

conducted in accordance with SAs and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be 
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

 
Other Matter 

 
As stated in Note 51 of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the financial 
information for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2025 are the balancing figures 
between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to 
date figures up to the third quarter and second quarter of the current financial year which 
were subject to limited review by us. Our report on the Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 

( ) 
 
 
 
 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 

(Membership No. 110815) 
(UDIN: 25110815BMOEXH8047) 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 5 May 2025 
 
 
 
 

Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells 

Firm's Reg. No. 015125N 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Investment property 
Investment property under development 
Other Intangible assets 
Financial assets 
-Investments accounted for using equity method 
-Other financial assets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Non-current tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets 
Total non-current assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 
-Trade receivables 
-Casb and casb equivalents 
-Other bank balances 
-Loans 
-Other financial assets 
Other current assets 
Total current assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Unit capital 
Other equity 
Equity attributable to unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT 
Non-controlling interest 
Total equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
-Borrowings 
-Lease liabilities 
-Other financial liabilities 
Other non-current liabilities 
Provisions 
Total non-current liabilities 

Note 

3 
4 
4 
3 

45 
5 
6 
7 
8 

9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 

15 
16 

16 

17 

18 
19 
20 

Asat Asat 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

(Audited) (Audited) 

831.99 408.80 
235,968.69 238,375.88 

1,751.20 1,199.00 
2.62 0.07 

10,719.52 
1,143.51 1,118.41 
3,909.28 4,623.88 
2,293.77 2,394.92 

870.98 576.59 
257,491.56 248,697.55 

672.18 731.13 
5,746.49 3,784.07 

910.95 1,389.96 

55.36 109.03 
1,001.22 673.59 
8,386.20 6,687.78 

265,877.76 255,385.33 

151,106.87 109,101.43 
po,801.61} ~7,859.84} 
140,299.20 101,241.59 

19,806.95 20,055.00 
160,106.15 121,296.60 

87,979.41 112,318.57 
219.86 220.45 

4,411.14 3,084.51 
1,406.75 1,175.37 

19.62 37.56 
94,036.78 116,836.46 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Particnlars 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
-Borrowings 
-Lease liabilities 
-Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

-Other financial liabilities 
Other current liabilities 
Provisions 
Current tax liabilities (net) 
Total current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Material accounting policies 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No : 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Note 

21 

22 

23 
24 
25 
26 

2 

As at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

2,605.84 
27.77 

165.19 
852.61 

6,932.06 
1,028.76 

2.35 
120.25 

11,734.83 
105,771.61 
265,877.76 

As at 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

8,244.39 
342.95 

140.30 
908.60 

6,822.34 
659.89 

12.87 
120.93 

17,252.27 
134,088.73 
255,385.33 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
( as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

¥~ 
~ upta 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 

Amit Jain 
ChiefFinancial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Alok Aggarwal 
CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement, 
(AU amounts are in Rupees millions unless odterwise stated) 

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
Particulars 

lncome and gains 
Revenue from operations 
Interest income 
Otherincome 

Total income 

Expenses and losses 
Cost of material consumed 
Employee benefits expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 
Investment management fees• 
Valuation expenses 
Trustee fees 
Auditfces 
Jruuranoe 
Repair and maintenance 
Other expenses 

Total e:s.penses 

P rofit before share of profit of equity accounted investee and tu 
Share of net loss (after tax) of joint venture accoW1ted for using the equity method 
P rofit before tu 
Tue:s.pense: 
Current tax 

-for current period 
-for earlier years 

Deferred tax charge 
Tu e:s.pense for the period/ yea r 

P rofit/(loss) for the period/ year after tu 

Other comprehensive income (1011) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 
- Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss 
- Sha.re of other comprehensive income of joint venture accounted for using the 
equity method 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period/ year, net of tu 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period/ year 

Profit for the period/ year after income tu attributable to unit holden of 
Brookfield India REIT 

(Loss) for the period/ year after income tu attributable to non- controllinl 
interests 

Total comprehensive income for the period/ year attributable to unit 
holden of Brookfield India REIT 

Total comprehensive (loss) for the period/ year attnlrutable to non-
controlling interests 

Eaminp per unit 
Basic(inRs.) 
Diluted (in Rs.) 

Material accounting policies 
• Refcrrelatedpartynote 43 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Note 

27 

28 
29 

30 
31 
32 
33 
41 

34 

35 

40 

For the quarter ended 
31 March 2025 

(Unaudited) 

6,201.16 
163.03 
32.20 

6,396.39 

22.13 
70.42 

2,267.66 
1,112.96 

39.86 
3.07 
0.73 

13.1 3 
16.02 

488.01 
1,069.52 

5,103.52 

1,292.87 
(146.45} 

1,146.42 

38.44 
0.73 

321 .05 
360.22 

786.21 

0.40 
(0.15) 
(0.77) 

(0.'2) 

785.69 

694.22 

45.1 9 

693 .80 

45.1 9 

1.14 
1.14 

Place:Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 December 2024 
(Unaudited) 

6,015.1 3 
182.84 
155.89 

6,353.86 

20.76 
57.52 

2,855.71 
1,115.26 

33.62 
7.86 
0.74 
8.71 

17.33 
391.13 

1,068.30 

5,576.94 

776.92 
(315.69} 
461.23 

61.80 
3.27 

161.89 
226.96 

234.27 

(0.91) 
0.36 
0.52 

(0.03) 

234.24 

319.54 

(85.27) 

319.51 

(85.27) 

0.68 
0.68 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 March 2024 
(Unaudited) 

5,358.97 
115.05 
28.82 

5,502.84 

21.12 
127.00 

2,746.64 
1,025.72 

24.13 
7.51 
0.73 

15.26 
17.10 

360.04 
809.22 

5,154.47 

348.37 

348.37 

32.95 
10.05 

287.65 
330.65 

17.72 

(1.41) 
0.33 

(1.08) 

16.64 

11 7. 15 

(99.43) 

116.06 

(99.43) 

0.33 
0.33 

Place:Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For the half year For the half year For the half year ended For the year For the year ended 
ended ended 31 March 2024 ended 31 March 2024 

31 March 2025 30 September 2024 (Unaudited) 31 March 2025 (Audited) 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

12,216.29 11 ,639.64 10,666.78 23,855.93 17,870.68 
345.87 242.71 2%.01 588.58 495.68 
188.09 4 1.48 103.97 229.57 116.06 

12,750.25 11,923.83 11,066.76 24,674.08 18,482.42 

42.89 40.79 42.74 83.68 73.65 
127.94 119.53 255.68 247.47 474.35 

5,123.37 5,658.40 5,473.09 10,781.77 8,522.45 
2,228.22 2,070.68 2,075.79 4,298.90 4,112.09 

73.48 52.25 48.78 125.73 90.92 
10.93 15.37 10.05 26.29 20.51 
1.47 1.48 1.47 2.95 2.95 

21.84 19.47 23 .13 41.33 42.78 
33.35 40.42 38.1 4 73.77 72.43 

879.14 825.04 748.88 1,704.18 1,329.44 
2,137.81 2,113.76 1,745.94 4,25 1.56 3,198.74 

10,680.44 10,957.19 10,463.69 21,637.63 17,940.31 

2,069.81 966.64 603.07 3,036.45 542.11 
(462.14} (79.30} (541.43} 

1,607.67 887.34 603.07 2,495.02 542.11 

100.24 77.71 38.82 177.95 101.83 
4.00 (0.52) 8.44 3.48 1.76 

482.94 231.12 418.41 714.06 592.02 
587.18 308.31 465.67 895.49 695.61 

1,020.49 579.03 137.40 1,599.53 (153.S0) 

(0.51) 2.72 1.42 2.21 0.89 
0.21 (0.71) (0.47) (0.54) (0.18) 

(0.25) (0.40) (0.62) 

(0.SS) 1.61 0.95 1.05 0.71 

11019.94 580.64 138.35 11600,58 (152.79} 

1,013 .76 833.84 346.59 1,847.60 121.10 

(40.08) (207.99) (209.20) (248.06) (274.60) 

1,013.3 1 835.34 347.55 1,848.65 121.80 

(40.08) (207.99) (209.20) (248.06) (274.59) 

1.82 1.81 0.79 3.63 3.92 
1.82 1.81 0.79 3.63 3.92 



Brookfield India Real Estate Tmst 
Condensed Consolidated J'imm.cial Statanents 
(All amOWits are in Rupees Millions unless othenvise stated) 

Condensed Consolidated Statanent of Cash Flows 
Portkulan For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the half year For the half year For the half year For the year For the year ..... ...... ...... ..... ...... ..... ...... .. ... 

31 March202!'1 31 Demnber 2024 31 March2024 31 March202!'1 30 September 2024 31 March2024 31 March202!'! 31 March2024 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudlt,d) (Unaudited) (Unaudlt,d) (Unaudited) (Audlt,d) (Audited) 

Cash flows from opera.tin£ acthitia : 
Profit befoie shan: of profit of equity accounted inveatee and tax 1,292.87 776.92 348.37 2,069.80 966.64 603.07 3,036.45 542.11 
Atlftutmenta/or: 
Depn,ciation and amortization expenaea 1,112.96 1,11526 1,025.73 2,228.22 2,070.68 2,075.79 4,298.90 4,112.09 
Allowance for ex:pectlld credit loss 2.47 14.22 20.65 16.69 1.65 79.52 18.34 79.52 
Interest income on deposits with banks (129.76) (150.51) (83.13) (280.27) (184.88) (155.50) (465.15) (323.05) 
Deferred income amorti7.8t:ion (141.39) (141.89) (129.37) (283.28) (225.60) (208.34) (508.88) (321.35) 
Cm:litimpaired 4.00 0.04 4.00 0.84 9.17 4.84 9.73 
Profit on sale of investment in mutual funds (6.32) (6.32) (6.32) 
Rilstrietedstoekunits 4.54 (10.84) 4.54 (9.32) 4.54 (629) 
Finance costs 2,267.66 2,855.72 2,746.65 5,123.38 5,658.39 5,473.09 10,781.77 8,522.45 
Fair value aain on finance receivables 0.00 0.01 0.00 (0.00) 
(Gain) on derivative relating to shan: conversion feature in 14% eompulaorily convertible debenture& at fair 9.15 (53.90) 9.15 (2325) (53.90) (14.10) (45.65) 
value through profit or loaa 
Operat:ine cuh Dows before workine: capital clui.nees 4,422.49 4,463.40 3.864.21 8,88!'1.91 8.264.47 7,813.!'18 17,1!'18.39 12.!'169.!'16 

Movanent in worklne: capital: 
(Jnerease) in other cum:nt and non cum:nt assets (189.41) (209.56) (288.88) (398.97) (180.60) (275.02) (579.57) (188.96) 
Deen:ase in current and non current financial as.,ets 181.41 335.29 500.51 516.70 a36.40) 434.70 280.30 332.50 
Inerease/(Deen:ase) in current and non current financial liabilities 24929 254.44 (567.36) 503.79 1,289.16 (91.90) 1,792.95 (8.11) 
Inerease/(Deen:ase) in other current and non current liabilities (158.26} (1.72} 36.89 (159.98} 76.36 25.71 J:83.62} (140.10} 
Cash eenerated from OPmltine: activities 4,!'IO!'l.!'12 4,841.86 3.!'14!'1.37 9,347.4!'1 9.212.99 7.907.fYT 18.!'160.46 12.!'164.89 
Income taxes (paidY refunds received (net) 19.54 162.75 211.13 18229 ~6326} 510.33 J:80.96} 256.12 
Net cuh e:enerated from OPenlt:ine activitiel (A) 4!'12!'1.07 !'l{N)4.60 i1!'16.!'IO 9~.74 !!i949.73 8~17.40 1!!i479.!'IO lli821.01 

Cash flows from investine: activities : 
Expenditure incurred on investment property (689.18) (994.82) (302.85) (1,684.00) (1,080.63) (856.79) (2,764.63) (1,503.18) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1.59) 0.00 (62.70) (1.59) (11.37) (88.46) (12.96) (181.66) 
Payment for acquisition of subsidillly/ Joint venture, including directly attributable expenses (53.99) (13.69) (54.07) (67.68) (29.90) (94A3) (97.58) (19,.912.50) 
Deposits with banks matured# 357.59 1,404.83 554.09 1,762.42 1,863.51 603.91 3,625.93 1,296.72 
Deposits with banks made # 137.51 (1,060.38) (927.88) (922.87) (2,228.21) (1,086.00) (3,151.08) (1,563.06) 
Purchase of mutual funds (1,074.08) (1,074.08) (1,074.08) 
Redemption of mutual funds 1,080.41 1,080.41 1,080.41 
Interest received on deposits with banks 168.16 116.63 88.86 284.79 186.04 150.93 470.83 325.16 
Advance received from third party towards construction of investment property under Jwrt Development (1220) (12.20) 67.80 55.60 
Agreement (Ri:ferNOU: 19) 
Dividends from Joint ventun:/ Subsidiaries 643.83 206.95 850.78 210.23 1061.01 
Net cub used in investing acthitia (B) "62.33 (346.35) (704.55) 213.98 (1,022."3) (1,370.84) (8116.55) (21,538.52) 

Cash flows from fm11Ddn£ activities : 
Finance coat paid (2,053.74) (2,631.94) (2,51021) (4,685.68) (4,736.04) (5,041.41) (9,421.72) (10,228.60) 
Proceed& from Tenn loan from banka/financial inatitutiona 508.71 1,086.41 1,528.55 1,595.12 9,892.12 2,092.55 11,48724 31,332.55 
Proceed& from short term borrowing& 2,775.00 2,775.00 5,550.00 1,500.00 7,050.00 
Proceed& from iarrue of eommereial papers 9,642.80 9,642.80 6,948.95 
Repayment of eommereial paper (5,066.61) (5,066.61) (12,300.00) (17,366.61) 
Payment of principal portion ofleaae liabilitiea (347.88) (347.88) (0.57) (348.45) (0.11) 
Payment ofintereat portion ofleaae liabilitiea (28.10) (28.10) (28.56) 
Repayment ofn~vertible debentun:a (417.00) (274.00) (87.00) (691.00) (223.00) (308.00) (914.00) (440.00) 
Repayment of short term borrowing& (2,775.00) (2,775.00) (5,550.00) (5,550.00) 
Repayment of Tenn loan from banka/:financial inatitutiona (28,47129) 0.00 (28,471.29) (6,693.64) (336.51) (35,164.93) (34,567.53) 
Proceed& from iarrue ofUnit capital 35,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 23,053.59 
Proceed& from iarrue of equity capital of rrubaidiary 486.30 1,177.68 
Expenae incurred towards Inatitutional placement (484.42) (163.85) (66.94) (648.27) (13.52) (560.57) (661.79) (712.63) 
Expenae incurred towards prd"en:ntial allotment (0.56) (0.56) (2.08) (0.86) (2.65) (1.41) 
Diatributiontounitholders Q:}!J..1.69} (2J07.75) Q;;083.42} (5185.44) (4~.87) (401523) J:9432.31) QJ32.18) 
Net cub (used) in/ generated from financing activities (C) (34,243.31) 23,741.70 (3,219.112) (8,301.61) (7,208.90) CJ,683.73) (15,710.52) 9,201.73 



Brookneld India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees Millions unless othernise stated) 

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Particulan 

Net increase/{de<:rease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the belrinnine: of the period/year 
Cash and cash equivalents acquired due to asset acquisition: 
Cash and cub equivalents acquired due to bwioess combination: 

Cash and cub equivalents at the end of the period/year (refer note 10) 

Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year 
Balances with banks 
-in current account 
- in deposit account 

# Represents deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months. 

Notes: 

For the quarter For the quarter 
ended ended 

31 March2025 31 December 2024 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

(29,155.92) 30,399.96 

34,902.40 4,502.39 

5,746.49 34,902.40 

166.69 193.88 
5 579.80 34708.52 
5746.49 34 902.40 

1. The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with ~Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard- 7 on ~statement of Cash Flows ". 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 March 2024 
(Unaudited) 

(167.07) 

3,951.14 

3,784.07 

129.24 
3654.83 
3 784.07 

For the half year For the balfyear For the half year For the year For the year 
ended ended ended ended ended 

31 March 2025 30 September 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 Marcb 2024 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

1,244.11 718.30 (637.17) 1,962.43 484.24 

4,502.39 3,784.08 4,421.24 3,784.07 2,096.55 
1,161.28 

42.01 

5,746.50 4,502.38 3,784.07 5,746.50 3,784.07 

166.69 269.29 129.24 166.69 129.24 
5579.80 4,233.09 3654.83 5 579.80 3 654.83 
5746.49 4 502.38 3 784.07 5746.49 3 784.07 

2. The Trust has issued Units in exchange for investments in Rostrum and Kairos during the half year ended 30 September 2024 and year ended 31 March 2024 respectively. The same has not been reflected in Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows since these were non~ transactions. 
(refer note 44 and45). 

Material accountin~ policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanyin~ notes from 1 to 52 form an inteRfftl part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

A3 per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
P,rtnu 
Membership No: 11 0815 
Placc:Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Forandon behalfoftheBoard ofDiredorsof ~ 
Brookprop Manae:ement Services Private Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

¥~ ~~~ 
_j_. ~ k",G"P'• AlokAm.,.•l 

r ~rector CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 
Plac,;: Mumooi , 

:u2L_-/ 

Ami1J11in 
ChiefFinancial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 



l:lroo~ld lndli• lual r...tue 'mist 
CondmHdl Co1110Ud•tedl Flauld.a Sllltnnellb 
(All llfflounb"" In Ru~ million anle• a11terwue •ued) 

f• l UnitC111nital 
l:lal1U1eeuon 01April2ffl 
Chancn In unit capital durlnc tbe prnioua yur: 
Leas: Dutrilnition to Unitholdlen for the quarter ended 31 Mu-ch 2023# 
Lcta:DutrilnitiontoUnitholdlenfO!"thcquartcrended30 Junc2023# 
Le.: DutrilnitiontoUnitholdlenfO!"thc:quarterended30Septembe!"2023# 
Leta: Dutrilnition to Unitholdcn fO!"thc quarter ended 31 December 2023# 
Add: UnibiAuedduringthc:year(rcfcrnotc 15) 
Lcta:laucexpensa(rcfcrnotc l5) 
Balanee U the md of the prfflnm reportlnc ynr ll l\lU'Ch 2024 
l:lal1U1eeuon01April2t24 
Ch1U1gealnunltcapitald111rlnctbecwnatr..-: 
Lcta:DutrilnitiontoUnitholdcnfO!" thcquarterended 311\1arch 2024# 
Leas:Dutrilnition to UnitholdlenfO!"thc:quartCTended30Junc:2024# 
Lcta:DutrilnitiontoUnitholdcnfD!" thcquarterended 30Scp1embe!"2024# 
Leas: Dutrilnitionto UnitholdlenfO!"thc: quartCTended31 Dccember2024/I 
Add: UnibiAuedduring thcyear(rcfcrnotc 15) 
Le.: l-cxpemeo(rcfernotcl5) 
8al1U1eelllthemdof tlte~partingr..-lll\lvdi2025 

Attribu1111ble to unit ltohkn of Broo&dk-W ln•II• RF.IT 

Netdlllribullonto1ponaor 
1:roupentityln""-donto Amdl:llfflUion 

ln<0me 1111pport adjllltment reserve@ 
Retalnedlnminp 

Balanceuon01Apr11101J 

Add: AdditononaocountofMIOP(refcrnote46) 

Leal: Diltribution to Unitholdcnfoc lhe uartcrcnded 31 Mardi 2023# 
Leal: Diltribution to Unitholdcnfoc lhe uartcrendod 30 JlDIC 2023# 
Add:Non-oontrollinainterataonaooWlitionofllllbaidiarica 
Add: Ja"nuitv of d financial uulnllnmt .uribirtablc to non- llOlllrollin intcn,at., 
Le,,,: Diotn"bution toUnitholdlenfocthc: iwto:rcnded 30.....,.embo:r2023# 
Leal: Diltributionto Unitholdcnfoc lhe uartcrendcd 31 Decanber2023# 
Add:Profit/(h• )focthc:yearendcod31March2024 
Add:Otho:roomprchmsiveUICOOJefoclhc:yc•ended31 M.u-ch2024 
Add: Total comDNhmlive lncome/(lo•) fw tbe nrevlou1 e11r 
Add: Net diotributit.monaooounl ofincomc01innort gu.antmcc: (rcfcrnotc 46) 
Add: Rc,alnctcd .tock unib 

Balanceuon01Alllil1014 
Lea,,:DiotributiootoUnitholdlenfocthc:quarterendcd31Marda2024/I 
Le,,,:Diotn"butiontoUnitholdcfsfocthc:quartcrendcd30Junc2024# 
Lea,,; Diotributit.m to Unitholdcfs foc the quarter ended 30 Septembo:r 2024# 
Le.,; Diotn"butionto Unitholdcfsfocthc:quartcrendcd 31 ~bo:.-2024# 
Add:Profit/(11.1Y)focthc::r--endcod31March2025 
Add:Otho:r "veUICOOJe foclhc:yc•ended31M.u-ch202S 

Add: Total compnlimlive lncome/(lo•) fw tbe curnnt year 
Add: Rc,alnctcd .tock unib 

Add: Contn"butit.m tow.-ds defined benfflt obligatioo-Gratuity" 

"Rno:t"notcl 

, ....... _ 
(408.23) 

(670.11) 

(1,078.lJ) 
(1,078.lJ) 

(1,078.lJ) 

#The diltributi0t11 made by Tnut to ii. Unilholdcrs are bued on the Nd Dutributablc Cash Flaw1 (NDCF) ofBrookficld India REIT under the REIT Regulations. 
{i:ilR.efcrnotc46foctn.incaeO<Qbination 

(B.87) 

(5l.87) 

(5l.87) 

" Rept'C8Cllb dccmcd oontribution received from related pvtica in connection with tnwfcr of certain emplo)'COA to th-= related pvtica, ..,.;th"'lt lrllufo:rof oorrc.9pD11ding liability. 
@@Nd ofoontributionsreoeivcd ofRl. 1177.68 million during the ycarcndcd31 March2024 (RJ. 950.46millionuptolltcycarendcd 31 March 2023) 

Matcrialacoountingpolicico (rcfcrnotc2) 

(3,119.27) 

(70.42) 
(784.10) 
(780.29) 

992.34 
996.73 
121.l0 

0.70 

(6.29) 

(6.717.'4) 

(1 ,137.64) 
(1 ,065.63) 
(1,634.85) 

1,847.60 
1.05 

1,848.6! 

20.65 

(f,675.47) 

llS,087,t73 

103,998,149 

168,667,226 

6077£,448 

No~controlllng 
lntwnb• 

(274,60) 

(274.9) 

10,1!!.to 

(248.06) 

""'"' 
19,816.f! 

(891.33) 
(861.30) 
(939,64) 

(1,088.93) 
27,053.59 

7.61 
tot,101.4,3 
lot,101.43 

(1,102.10) 
(1,022.43) 
(1,142.44) 
(1,343.13) 
47,279.00 

663.46 

TOTAL 

(l,119.27) 

(784.10) 
(780.29) 

15,643.68 
4685.91 

992.34 
9%.73 

0.71 
(151.79) 
(670.11) 

(6.29) 

11,195.Hi 
11,1'5.16 

(983,55) 
(1,137.64) 
(1,065.63) 
(1,634.85) 

Thcacoomp«nyingnotcafrom 1 to 52 fonn• intcp-al part ufth-=CondeiucdCon.oli<btedFimncial StatClllC!lb. 

Ar.pcrourrcportofcvcn<btc........,d 

Fw DELOfITE BASKINS & SEU.S 

FinnRcgi.antion No.: 015125N 

'uµ 
An1U1dSubnmlUM1U1 
P"'"a 
MembenhipNo:110815 
Place: Bcngaluru 
Date: 05M.y 2025 

FwMdoo"""'1fof',0BoonJo•Di>~u,m ~ 
Brookprop MIUIIICffllffll S,....iu11 Pth'>lte Umk~ ~ ··? e 0 

,Go~• Aruk ... .....t 
Dire,~ CEO and Mlnagins Dir~ 
DIN No 08687570 DlN No 00009964 
Place Mumbai Place Mumbai 

Dale ~ M..y2025 

Placc:Mwnbli 
Date:0SM.y2025 



Brookfield India Real Ellate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statemenu 
(AJI amounts are in Rupees millions unless otberwite stated) 

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 
S.No Particulan As at 31 March 2025 (Audited) As at 31 March 2024 (Audited) 

A 
B 

C 
D 
E 
F 
G 

Assets 
Liabilities• 
Add: Other Adjustment• 
Net Auett ( A-B) 
Less: Non-controlling interest 
Net As1et5 attributable to unit holden of Brookfield India REIT 
No.ofwtits 
NAV per unit {E/F) 

Book Value Fair value 
265,877.76 340,313.06 

(105,771.61) (105,771.61) 

160,106.15 
(19806.95) 
140.299.20 

607,752,448 
230.85 

247.63 
234,789.08 
(30 372.78) 
204,416.30 

607,752,448 
336.35 

Book Value Fair value 
256,121 .05 307,198.31 (refer note 2 below) 

(133,507.62) (133,507.62) 

122,613.43 
(20055.00) 
102,558.43 

439,085,222 
233.57 

563.40 
174,254.09 
(28,213.30) 
146,040.79 

439,085,222 
332.60 

*As per Master Circular for Real Estate Investment Trusts dated 15 May 2024, the Trust is required to disclose the carrying value of liabilities as reflected in the Balance Sheet at the TqXJrting date in the 'Statement of 
Net Assets at Fair Value' . Therefore, the Statement ofNet Assets at Fair Value' includes the carrying value of liabilities as of31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. Further, fair value of investment property (including 
investment property under development) is after considering cash outflows towards lease liabilities. Hence, carrying amount of lease liabilities as of31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 has been adjusted to arrive at the 
NAVperwtil 

•• Since the property management companies namely CIOP and MIOP are wholly owned by REIT, while calculating non-controlling interest, fair value pertaining to property management fees which is included in fair 
value of investment properties and investment properties under development ofKairos and Candor Gurgaon I respectively, has been excluded as at 31 March 2025 . 

Measurement of fair values 

The fair value of investment properties (including investment property under development) has been determined by independent external registered property valuers, having appropriately recognized professional 
qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued. 

Valuation technique 
The fair value measurement of the investment properties (including investment property under development) has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. 
The valuers have followed a discounted cash flow method. The discounted cash flow method considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective properties, taking into account the expected 
rental growth rate, vacancy period, occupancy rate, average sq. ft . rent and lease incentive costs. The expected net cash flows are discounted using the risk adjusted discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate 
estimation considers the quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality, lease terms and investors expected retwn. 

For fair valuation of financial assets refer note 38. 

l!!!W 
I. Candor Kolkata has plans to ~notify a portioo of its SEZ into noo SEZ. The denotification will be taken up prior to the construction commencement and is procedural in nature. Hence, the fair valuation of such SEZ 
portion has been computed by the valuers assuming non IT use. 

2. Project wise break up ofFair value of Assets : 

As at 31 March 2025 
Entity and Property name 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited# 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 
Festus Properties Private Limited 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 
Kairos Properties Private Limited 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 

Sub Total 
Equity method investment in Rostrum Realty Private Limited••• 

Total 

Fair value of Investment Other assets at book 
property and InveJtment value 

property under 
develo meat 

75,667.41 # 
27,076.43 
29,168.00 
45,225.75 
55,985.07 
78,270.00 

311,392.66 

3,562.08 
781.58 

1,509.88 
2,333.40 
2,350.36 
2,674.77 

142.49 

2,289.80 

133.73 
15,778.09 

Total assets 

79,229.48 
27,858.01 
30,677.88 
47,559.13 
58,335.45 
80,944.77 

142.49 
2,289.80 

133,73 

327,170.74 
13,142.32 

340 313.06 

#This Entity owns two properties situated in Kolkata and Gurgaon. Fair value of these two properties is Rs. 31,030.86 millioos and Rs.44,636.55 millions respectively. 
*Fair value of Investment property and Investment property under development includes fair value pertaining to a property, which is for captive use wef27 December 2024 and hence classified as property plant 
and equipment in the consolidated financial statement. Therefore, the carrying amount of said property as on 31 March 2025 amounting to Rs. 495 .60 million has been excluded from other assets. 

Fair value of Investment property and Investment property under development include impact oflease rent equalization, therefore carrying amount oflease rent equalization as of31 March 2025 amounting to Rs. 
1,164.06 millions has been reduced from other assets. 

•••Rostrum Realty Private Limited is accounted as an equity method investee. The carrying value of equity method investment is Rs. 10,719.53 million and fair value is Rs. 13,142.32 million as on 31 March 
2025. The fair value of equity method investment is determined based on the fair value of underlying investment properties and book value of other assets and liabilities (as adjusted for fair value under Ind AS 
28, on initial recognition ofan equity-method investee). The fair value of investment properties as at 31 March 2025 is determined by an independent external registered property valuer. 

As at 31 March 2024 
Entity and Property name 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited# 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 
Festus Properties Private Limited 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 
Kairos Properties Private Limited 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 

Fair value of Investment 
property and Invntment 

property under 
development 

73,335.00 
25,622.00 
26,998.00 
42,619.00 
50,120.00 
73,556.00 

292 250.00 

Other auets at book Totalauets 
value 

3,388.41 76,723.41 
984.55 26,606.55 

1,428.22 28,426.22 
2,468.20 45,087.20 
2,247.20 52,367.20 
1,861.74 75,417.74 

151.83 151.83 
2418.16 2418.16 

14948.31 307198.31 

#This Entity owns two properties situated in Kolkata and Gurgaon. Fair value of these two properties is Rs. 27,967.00 millioos and Rs. 45,368.00 millions respectively. 
*Includes Rs. 936.01 millions offtnance receivable relating to income support and corresponding amount has been reduced from other assets. 
Fair value of Investment property and Investment property under development include impact of lease rent equalization, therefore carrying amount oflease rent equalization as of31 March 2024 amounting to Rs. 
661.82 millions has been reduced from other assets. 

a. Fair values of assets as disclosed above are the fair values of the total assets of all SPVs as included in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

b. Fair values of investment property and investment property under development as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 as disclosed above are solely based on the fair valuation report of the independent 
external registered valuer appointed under the REIT Regulations. 

Material accounting policies {refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 fonn an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELl.S 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partncr 
Membership No: 110815 
Place:Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Fm-and on beh,lfoftheBoanlofDi=tonor ~ 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited p 
(as Manager to the Brookfield lntlia REIT) "'-

~ t;;!- <(.f/: ~;::~-
DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 Place: Mumbai 
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Date: 05 May 2025 
Date: 05 May 2025 Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookneld India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(AU amounts are in Rupees rnillioru unless othentise stated) 

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair Value 

S.No Particulan 

A Total comprehensive Income # 
B Add/(Less) : Changes in fair value not recognized • 

-Investment Property 
-Equity method investment 

C (A+B) Total Return 

Total Return attributable to unit holders of Brookfield India REIT 

Total Return attributable to non- controlling interests 

For the half year 
ended 

31 March 2025 
(Unaudited) 

1,0l9.94 

10,572.68 
1,579.02 

13,171.64 

12,397.19 

774.45 

For the half year For the half year For the year 
ended ended mded 

30 September 2024 31 March 2024 31 March2025 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

627.35 212.59 1,600.58 

10,424.96 8,608.20 20,997.64 
843.78 2,422.80 

11,896.09 8,820.79 25,021.02 

10,150.29 7,509.37 22,500.77 

1,745.80 1,311.42 2,52025 

The changes in fair value for the respective periods presented has been computed based on the changes in fair value of the underlying assets ofSPVs (including changes in fair value of equity method investment), which is not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income. 

For the year 
mded 

31 March2024 
(Audited) 

(38.57) 

18,661.83 

18,623.26 

13,271.66 

5,351.60 

# Pursuant to acquisition ofMIOP on 07 January 2025, which is accounted for as per Appendix C of the Ind AS 103, comparable numbers for the hair year ended 31 March 2024 and 30 September 2024 and year ended 31 March 2024 have been restated in the financial statements (refer note 48), 
ho..vcYer the same have not been considered here and hence the totaJ comprehensive income considered for the half year ended 31 March 2024 and 30 September 2024 and year ended 3 1 March 2024 is same as was reported in these respective periods. 

•This does not include difference between carrying value and fair value of borrowings pursuant to liabiJities being reflected at canying values in the statement of Net assets at fair value. This change does not impact the Total Return attributable to unit holdea of Brookfield India REIT. 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Finencial Statements. 

A3 per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Pmnu 
Membership No: 110815 
Place:Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Forand on behalf of the 
Brookprop Maoa(!emeot Senices Private Limited 

I :;_::;: ~ ~ 

/f~ : nku,~"pt, AlokAgg•~•l AmitJ,in 

Director CEO and Menaging Director Chief Financial Officer 
DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 Place: Mumbai 
Place:Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Place:Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Date: 05 May 2025 



Broold'i~ lndl111 Re.I E..tlllteTnut 
CondellHCI Con1old111tecl Fln111ndllll Stuemenu 
(AJI unount•...., In Rupft" mlltian unh• othft"'Ol'IM •1111"1) 
Dlldoau" punutlnt to SEBI muter tlrcullll' no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-21P/CIRl2024/4l 

Net ot•rtbut111ble Cull Flowa (NDCF) punuut 10 SEBI muter drcubu· no. SEBI/HOIDDHS-PeD-21P/CIR/2024/43 

Cuhnowa from oper:Ulng ,u:tlvitle, of tM Tnut 
(+) Cah flim, received from SPV'a/ Jnveotmcnt cntiti.,. which repn,aent di"11ibuti0N ofNDCF computed a perrelcvantm.mew..-k {refci- note 2) 
(+) Treasury im:001c / income from Ul\'fflins activitica oflhcTruat (inlen-.,t income reoeivedfrom FD, any inv-art entities u defmed in Rcauiltion 18('). tu refund, any 
otherincomc:inlhcnatweofintercat,profiton..JcofMutualfilnda, invatmenta, uaetlletc ,, dividendinoomcetc,,CllcludinganyladASadjumnent.t.Furtherc\arificdtJllll.thcae 
mnount1willbceomidercdaa1ouhreoeiptlwil) 

(+)~from Mic ofinfnatruoturc / real calltc invatmcnu, infruwcture / real <'Male aucu orabarca ofSPVIIHoldc01 or IJl\atmcnl Entity adjuatcd for the followina 

•Appliclblccapilllgaitu,andothcruxa 
•Rc\atcddeblltettlcdordiietobcaettledfromMlcprocee<b 
•Directly.uributablctramactionooata 
• Prooeeda reinvcatcd or planned to be reinvt'Mcd u per Reauiltion 18(16)(d) of REIT Rcauilti0111 or any othcrrclc,.'alll proviaiom oflhc REIT Rcauiltiona 

(+)~fromsalcofinfrutructure / rcalcalltcin\atmcnta,infrutructure / re1I C'MatcaucuoraalcofabarcaofSPVII Hold001orlm'CllmcntEntitynotdiatributed~ 
lo an mi CT plan lo re-~ a per Regiilation IS(16)(d) of REIT Rcg,il.Uom or any other rekvant provuiona oflhc REIT Reg,il.Uom, if ouch procccde we not intended to be 
invcatcdaublcqucntly. 

(·) FUUIIIOC OOII on Bonvwinp, excluding amorti•tion of any tniaaction COOUI u per Profit and Lou account oflhc TT1191 

(·) Debt repayment at Truat level (to include principal rcpe)tDCJIII u per scheduled El\0'1 cxcqit ifrefmanced lhroUjh new debt includina overdraft facilitica and to exclude any 
dcbtrcpaymcnta / dcbtmiunocdthroughncwdcbtinanyformorfundaraiaedlhrolljhUlu.anocofunita) 

(·) my rc.m'C required to be ercllcd under the tenm of; orvur-nt to the oblig1ti0111 aming in accordance with, my: (i). l0tn agreement entered with fimnci•l Wtitution, or 
(ii). tenm and condiliom, covenanta or any olher ■tipulati0111 applicable to debt KCll!ltics iJaucd by lhe Truat or any of iu SPVII' HoldCOI, or (iii). tmlll and oonditiom, 
<lOVClUlllla or any otheratipulatiom applicable to cxtcrmil <>Oll!IDcr<'ial bomrwinp availed by the Truat or anyofita SPVII HoldCoa, (iv), •gcemcnt purwu.ult to which lhe Truat 
opcratca or O\\o1II lhc real Cltatc suet, or gcncntcs reveJNe or cuhflowa from auch UICI (mcb 11, cotlOCSlion agrcancnt, transmitsion aavicca 1grccmCJlt, power pun:lwc 
agreement. lcuc •grcemcnt, and any other~ of• like na!IR, by whatCVCT lllllllC called); or(v). IUIMory, judicial, ~gulatol'y, or gavcmmenlll .tiplllfflom; or-

(•)anycapill!CllpCllditurconaioting•octaawned / lcaacdbytheREIT, tolheextentnotfundedbydebt / cquityorfromconlnt<'(uaiTQCl'VCllcrcatedinlhe--iici-yan 

NOCF 1111 Tnut UYel 
Surpluacashavailable(cxcludins 1urpluacuhfromdebtraited) 
NDCF lndltlllng aurplm cuh 1111 TMUII L-1 

Notn: 

ForthequlU1erended Forthe.ulU1eremled 
31Mllll"Cb2015 3tl>eumber2024 

{Un•ltllitecl) {Un1Wditecl) 

(78.27) (7Ul) 
3,366. 14 3,199.03 

24.74 63.13 

(123.20) (211.81) 

1,111,.41 2,'74.'4 

3191.11 ,..,.,. 

Forthehlllfynu-emlecl 
31J\.fllll"Cb2015 

(Um1ltllitecl) 

(153.68) 
6,565.17 

87.87 

(335.01) 

6,164.35 

6173.36 

Forthe hllllf' :,nrendecl 
30Sept•mber2024 

{Un1Wditecl) 

(ll!.37) 

4,823.08 
69.13 

(369.40) 

4,]87.44 

4.452.4,3 

For theynu-emlecl 
31Mllll"Cb2015 

(Audited) 

(llf'-05) 
11,388.25 

157.00 

(704.42) 

74.00 
10625.7t 

I. The 809l"d ofDirccton of the M.nagcr to lhe Tnqt, in their meeting held on 05 May 2025, have declvcd dimibution to Unitholden ofR& 5.25 per unit which qgrcptc, to RI,, 3,190.70 million for lhe quartCT ended 31 March 2025, The di9tnbiiti0N ofR.t. 5,25 per unit oompn..,. RI,, 1.97 per unit in lhe form of intCTC91 
a>-)1Dmt on rharcholder loan, CCD'll and NCD'I, RI. 2.70 per unit in lhe fonn of repayment ofSPV debt aid NCD. RI. 0.54 per unit in thcform of dividend and lhc bai1DCcR& 0.04 per unit in lhe fonn ofintcrm on fuced deposit. 

Aloqwithdiltributionoflu. 7,346.12 million/Rl.14.00 perunitforlhenincmontbsended 31 December 2024, the cumulati\'CdiJtributionforlhcycarcnded 31 March 2025 apreptc110RI. 10,536.82million/RJ.19.25 per unit. 

2. Purwutnt to SEBI nwtcrcircul.- no, SEBl/1-IO/DDHS.foD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024, Tout hu coru,idercd diatribution ofR& 1,755.84 million received aublcqucnt to ~er/yqc ended 31 Man:h 2025, 11111 before the adoption of the ■tllndalone fmancial ■lllcment by lhc e.,.,..i ofDiRctor oflhc ?.tan.ger lo Truat in 
lhc Clllwlltion of Net Di■ tributable Cuh Flow. 

3. In order to promote ■tllndllnliAl!tion of framework for comporting NDCF, a rcviKd framework wu defined by SEBI vidc nwtcrcirculu no. SEBl/1-IO/DDHS.foD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("Rcviocd NDCF Fnoxwork") (entwhile SEBI Circul•No. SEBL'HOIDDHSIDDHS-PoDit'/CIR/2023/18' d.ded 
Dccember6, 2023 on rcviacd NDCF framewolit). N per the framcv.·od., the ManagCT is required to declare and cfutributc 111 least 90% oflhe NDCF of Brookfield India REIT u diltributi0111 ("REIT Diltributi0111").Thil framcwodt ii 1pplie11ble with effect from I April 2024. AccordinalY, Brookfield India REIThu computed lhe 
NDCFforthequartCT, halfycarand}'Clll"cnded31 ?.ian:h 2025 aperthef'Cviaedframcwork. Compm,tiveAh.avcnotbccnprovided inthi,hmcworkforall theprcvi<11111pcriode prcacnted. 

Matcrialacoounlingpolicica (refernotc2) 

The accompanying notco from I to 52 fonn an intcp-11 part of lheac Condenacd C01110lid.ded Financial Slltcmcnb. 

/Upcrourreportofevcn<btcltllchcd 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Ch,rto«I­
FinaRegillmionNo.: 01Sl25N 

Anand Subramud11111 
p ... ~ 

McmbcnhipNo:110815 
Pl1oe: Bcnsaluru 
Dlltc:05May202' 

~:::.:,":::':::::.·::-:::.1::·;::·,:~....... ~ fi 
(rui Manag~T to Ilic Bruokf d I iu REIT) 

J . ~ ::•P•• £ : 0 
AmhJwo r ~:..... CEO and Managing Director ChicfFinancialOfficcr 

DIN" Nu. 08687570 DIN Nu. 00009964 P!tK>C; Mumbai 
Place: Mwnbai Place: Mwnbai Dllte: 05 M.y 202' 

Datc: 05May202S Date: 05May202S 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated) 

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circulllr No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 
(i) Brookfield India REIT- Standalone 

Sr No. Particulars 

Cash flows received from Asset SPVs, CIOP/Operating Service Provider and any investment entity in the form of: 
• Interest (net of applicable taxes, if any) 
• Dividends (net of applicable taxes, if any) 
• Repayment of Shareholder Debt ( or debentures and other similar instruments) 
• Proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction/ redemptions (net of applicable taxes) 

2 Add: Proceeds from sale, (transfer or liquidation or redemption or otherwise realization) of investments (including cash 
equivalents), assets or shares offinterest in Asset SPVs, or any fonn of fund raise at Brookfield REIT level, adjusted for 
the following: 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per REIT Regulations 
• Investment in shares or debentures or shareholder debt of Asset SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating Service Provider or 
other similar investments 
• Lending to Assets SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating Service Provider 
Add: Proceeds from sale (transfer or liquidation or redemption or otherwise realization) of investments, assets or shares of/ 
interest in Asset SPV s not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are 
not intended to be invested subsequently. 

4 Add: Any other income received at the Brookfield REIT level and not captured herein, or refund/ waiver/ cessation of any 
expenses/ liability. 
Less: Any other expense (whether in the nature of revenue or capital expenditure) or any liability or other payouts required 
at the Brookfield REIT level, and not captured herein. 

6 Less: Any payment of fees, including but not limited to: 
• Trustee fees 
• REIT Management Fees 
• Valuer fees 
• Legal and professional fees 
• Trademark license fees 
• Secondment fees 

7 Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including to the extent not covered above: 
• repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt 
• proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction 
Add/ (Less): Debt drawdown/ (payment) of interest and repayment on external debt (including any loans, bonds, debentures 
or other fonn of debt funding) at the Brookfield REIT level. 

9 Less: Income tax and other taxes (if applicable) at the Standalone Brookfield REIT level (net of any tax refunds). 
IO Add/(Less): Cash inflows and outflows in relation to any real estate properties held directly by the Brookfield REIT, to the 

extent not covered above (if any). 
11 Add/(Less): Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital, etc. 

NDCF 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For the quarter ended 
31 March 2024 

(Unaudited) 

995.22 

1,684.92 

24.68 

(62.58) 

(24.65) 
(3.96) 

(10.80) 

(13.22) 

(544.25) 
2 045.36 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
( as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: OS May 2025 

y~ 
~ rGupta 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 

2~ 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For the half year ended 
31 March 2024 

(Unaudited) 

2,013 .72 

2,775.92 

52.85 

(116.15) 

(47.39) 
(16.22) 
(16.38) 

(17.07) 

(495.22) 
4 134.06 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

3,826.50 

5,599.92 

30,002.54 

(788.48) 
(20,344.06) 

(8,870.00) 

166.78 

(209.60) 

(2.95) 
(86.52) 
(18.84) 
(40.96) 

(73.46) 

(1 ,455.67) 
7 705.20 



Brookfield India Real Estate Tnat 
Coodemed Comolidated. Financial Statements 
(AU MDOUDl'I ar-e in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure punuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/IIO'DDHS-P~2/P/OR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) punuaot to SEW ma,ter circular no. SEBI/HO/DOH~Pol>-2/P/OR/2024143 
(ii) Cmmut;ation or Net Distributable Cub Flow at SPVs/ HoldC01r • 

Particulars 
Cash flow fMn operating acthides as per Cash Flow Statement ofSPVs/ H~dCos 

(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed 
as per relevant framework (relevant in cascofl¼>JdCos) (refer note 1) 

(+) Treasury income / income from investing activities (interest income receiYedfron 
FD, tax refund, any other income in the nan.ire of interesl, profit on sale of Mutual funds, 
im'Cstments, assets etc., di,idend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. 
Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) (refo 
note2) 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real 

estate assets or shares ofSPYs or Investment Entity adjusted for the follo..,,ing 

•Applicablecapitalgainsandothertaxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16Xd) of REfl 
Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the RElT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real 
estate assets or sale of shares ofSPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an 
earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(16Xd) ofREJT Regulations or any othCJ 
relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to bl 
im'Csted subsequently 

Gl Kl Nl 
684. 11 988.99 418.82 

9.57 18.64 (8.80) 

(·) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as pe1 (548.98) (490.69) (79.77) 
Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust (refer note 3) 

(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repaymenls as per scheduledEMI's except i (10.00) 
refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and 10 exclude any deb 
repayments I debt refinanced through new debt, in any form Of" equity raise as mill ru 
repayment of any shareholder debt / loan front Trust ) (refer nOle 4) 

(·) any reserve required to be created under the terms o( or pursuant to theobligations 
arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered "'ith banks / financial 
institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs-1 HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). 
terms and conditions. covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities 
issued by the Trust or any of its SPYs-1 HoldCos, or (iii). tenns and conditions, covenants 
or any Olher stipulations applicable to external commercial borro..,,;ngs avai led by th 
Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which the SPY 
HoldCo operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or cashOows fron 
such as.set (such as, concession agreement, transmission services agreement, poWCI 
purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, b) 
whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental 
stipulations;or -

(·) any capital expenditure on existing assets °"'ned / leased by the SPY or Holdco, tc 
the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 

NDCFrorSPV's 
Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution orNDCF: 
Surplus avaliable on acquisition 
Surolus cash on account of maturity of dCPOSitll 
NDCF indudin snrnlus cab 
Jointventureaartner'sshare 
NDCF indudin surolus cab after reducim! Joint veotW"e r'ssbar-e 

134.70 

134.70 

134.70 

516.94 330.25 

45.01 
561.94 

561.94 

,~. 
N2 aop Festus Kairos MIOP# 

601.04 54.91 470.88 1,389.22 19.90 

45.13 0.61 33.34 18.83 0.83 

(37.12) (27.88) (70327) (0.61) 

(254.00) 

(315.94) (38.25) 

(16.71) 

293.11 38.81 438.09 450.78 20.12 

627.03 181.07 41.00 
92U4 38.81 619.16 450.78 61.12 

92U4 38.81 619.16 450.78 61.12 

Joint venture~ 
Subtotal Rostnm 

4,627.87 339.67 

118.15 

(1,888.32) 

(264.00) 

(354.19) 

(16.71) 

80 

894.11 
3116.91 

3116.91 

570.99 

16.14 

(363.74) 

(522) 

(0.43) 

557.41 

7.59 

56~00 
28250 
28250 

Tohl 

4,967.54 

570.99 

134.29 

(2,252.06) 

(269.22) 

(354.62) 

(16.71) 

2780.21 

7.59 
894.11 

3681.91 
282.50 

3.399.41 

L Rs. 570.99 million (net amount received Rs. 565.00 million post adjusting IDS of Rs. 5.99 million) has been received post 31 M.arch 2025, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial s1a1ements by the Board of directors ofManager to Trust. 
This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-Po~2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 100-/• of such amount received i.e. Rs. 565.00 nillion has been distributed to shareholders in 
compliance with the Revised NOCF Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-Po~2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

2. lnput tax credit towardsGST on capital expenditure/loan processing has been netted off amounting to Rs. 11 .31 million and Rs. 7.72 million in NI and Kl respectively 

3. As per Revised NDCF Framework, finance cost on borrowings includes transaction cost paid ofR.s.3.02 million. 

4. Includes shareholder debt repa)ments made to external shareholders after 31 March 2025, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust. This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF 
Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-Po~2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

5. In order to promote standardisation offrame\Wl"k for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide master circular no. SEBI/HO'DDHS-Po~2/P/CJR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("Revised NDCF Frame\Wl'k") (erstwhile SEBI 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDl-fS-PoD'P/CIR/2023/185 dated December 6, 2023 on revised NDCF framework). As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare and distribute at least 90o/• of the NDCF of Brookfield India REIT as distributions 
("REIT Distributions").This framework is applicable with effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield India REIT has computed the NOCF for the quarter ended 31 March 2025 as per the re,ised frame....urk. Comparatives ha,'C not been provided in 
this framework for all the previous periods presented. 

# NDCF foc MIOP has been calculated effective its acquisition date i.e. 07 January 2025. 

•Refernote l 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 52 fonn an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Slalements. 
Aspcrourreportofcvenda1eattached 

Foc DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

qµ 
Aoaod Subram■.oiao 
Portn~ 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Foc ,ml m b<h,lforih< 1lo,nl ofD,=t- of () :::;:::."::::.:.."::"'.:;:;;--• 0 ~ 
~;:- ~~~ Am"J•w 

Dira:tor CEO and Managing Director ChiefFinancial Officer 
UIN Nu 08687570 Drn No. 00009964 Place: Mwnbai 
Place Mumbai Place Mumbai Date: 05 May 2025 
Date: 05 May 2025 Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 
(iii) Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow of subsidiaries of ioint venture 

Particulars 
Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPVs 
(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed as per relevant 
framework (relevant in case ofHoldCos) 
(+) Treaswy income / income from investing activities (interest income received from FD, tax refund, 
any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., 
dividend income etc. , excluding any Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be 
considered on a cash receipt basis) (refer note 1) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure/ real estate assets or 
shares of SP Vs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)( d) of REIT Regulations or 
any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real estate assets or saJe 
of shares of SPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per 
Regulation 18(16)( d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if 
such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and Loss 
Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust 
(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except if refinanced through 
new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt repayments / debt refinanced through new 
debt, in any form or equity raise as well as repayment of any shareholder debt / loan from Trust ) 

(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in 
accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks I financial institution from whom the Trust 
or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other 
stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms 
and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed 
by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which the SPV/ HoldCo 
operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or cashflows from such asset (such as, 
concession agreement, transmission services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, 
and any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, 
or governmental stipulations; or -

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to the extent not 
funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 
NDCF for subsidiaries of joint venture 
Surplus cash available in subsidiaries used for distribution ofNDCF: 
Surplus cash on account of maturity of deposits 
NDCF including surplus cash 

Oak 
461.10 

(30.34) 

(122.85) 

(1.86) 

306.05 

306.05 

For the quarter ended 31 March 2025 (Unaudited) 
Amon 

152.36 

11.74 

(146.41) 

(2.14) 

(0.00) 

(4.13) 

11.42 

19.60 
31.02 

1. Input tax credit towards GST on capital expenditure has been netted off amounting to Rs. 38.54 million in Oak, Rs. 0.27 million in Amon and Rs. 1.15 million in Aspen. 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated FinanciaJ Statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 

Membership No: 110815 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited () 

(•-•~-~,a~,~IT) ~ 

L~JC::-~::4 ~ r Director CEO and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 

DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 Place: Mumbai 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Date: 05 May 2025 

Date: 05 May 2025 Date: 05 May 2025 

Aspen 
346.21 

59.57 

(146.18) 

(2.27) 

0.00 

257.33 

257.33 

Total 
959.66 

40.97 

(415.44) 

(6.28) 

(0.00) 

(4.13) 

574.80 

19.60 
594.40 



BrookficJd India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Coruiolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 
,m Comoutation of Net Distributable Cash Flow at SPVs/ HoldCos· 

Particulars GI Kl NI 
Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement ofSPVs/ HoldCos 1,039.47 1,217.92 416.56 

(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed as 
per relevant framework (relevant in ease of HoldCos) (refer note I) 

(+) Treasury income / income from investing activities (interest income received from FD, 6.99 12.46 8.46 
tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual funds, 
investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. Further 
clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) (refer note 2) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real 
estate assets or shares of SP Vs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following 

• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled :from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT 
Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds :from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real estate 
assets or sale of shares of SPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier 
plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant 
provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently 
(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per (558.22) (566.47) (78.24) 
Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust (refer note 3) 

(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except iJ (151.00) 
refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt 
repayments / debt refinanced through new debt, in any fonn or equity raise as well as 
repayment of any shareholder debt / loan :from Trust) (refer note 4) 

(-) any reserve required to be created under the tenns o( or pursuant to the obligations (101.90) (1.21) 
arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks / financial 
institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). 
tenns and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities 
issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (rii). terms and conditions, covenants 
or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by the 
Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which the SPV/ 
HoldCo operates or om1s the real estate asset, or generates revenue or eashflows from 
such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services agreement, power 
purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, by 
whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; 
or-

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to the (6.79) 
extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 

NDCF for SPV's 337.24 555,22 345.57 
Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution ofNDCF: 
Sumlus cash on account ofmaturitv ofdcoosits 101.90 1.21 
NDCF includin@: sumlus cash 337.24 657.12 346.78 
Joint venture nartner's share 
NDCF includin@: sumlus cash lafter reducin@: Joint venture uartner's share) 337.24 657.12 346.78 

For the ouarter ended 31 December 2024 (Unaudited) 
SPVs controlled bv Trust* Joint venture• Total 

N2 CIOP Festus Kairos Subtotal Rostrum 
671.45 60.17 539.76 1,453 .36 5,398.69 423.44 5,822.13 

1,220.36 1,220.36 

11.88 0.34 6.61 14.60 61.34 (3.50) 57.84 

(290.70) (213 .55) (731.60) (2,438.78) (371.90) (2,810.68) 

(266.00) (417.00) (4.79) (421.79) 

(299.02) (66.37) (183.87) (652.37) (113.40) (765.77) 

(3 .76) (10.55) (0.09) (10.64) 

93,61 56.75 266,45 286.49 J.941.33 1150.12 3 091.45 

293.87 65 .58 183.85 646.41 138.54 784.95 
387.48 56.75 332.03 470.34 2.587.74 1.288.66 3.876.40 

644.33 644.33 
387.48 56.75 332.03 470.34 2.587.74 644.33 3.232.07 

1. Rs. 1,220.36 million has been received post 31 December 2024, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust. This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framework 
pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

2. Includes input tax credit or Rs. 3.30 million in NI tov,ards GST on capital expenditure since the same have been adjusted in working capital in cash from operating activities. 

3. As per Revised NDCF Framework, finance cost on borrowings includes transaction cost paid or Rs. 0.52 million. 

4. Includes shareholder debt repayments made to external shareholders after 31 December 2024, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust. Th.is is in compliance with the 
Revised NDCF Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

5. In order to promote standardisation of:framewc.-k for computing NDCF, a revised :framework was defined by SEBI vide master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("Revised NDCF Framework") 
(erstwhile SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/185 dated December 6, 2023 on revised NDCF framework) . As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF or 
Brookfield India REIT as distributions ("REIT Distributions").This :framework is applicable with effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield India REIT has computed the NDCF for the quarter ended 31 December 2024 as per the 
revised framework. Comparatives have not been provided in this framework for all the previous periods presented. 

• Refer note 1 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 52 fonn an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bcngaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

BrookpropManagement Services Private Limited ~ p 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REJn 

-- ~~ • 
~ 2arwal Amit Jain 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(AU amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 
(iii) Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow of subsidiaries of joint venture 

For the quarter ended 31 December 2024 (Unaudited) 
Particulars Oak Amon Aspen 
Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPVs 
(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed as per 
relevant framework (relevant in case ofHoldCos) 
(+) Treaswy income / income from investing activities (interest income received from FD, tax refund, 
any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., 
dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be 
considered on a cash receipt basis) (refer note 1) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real estate assets or 
shares of SPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)( d) of REIT Regulations or 
any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investrnents, infrastructure/ real estate assets or 
sale of shares of SPV s or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as 
per Regulation 18(16)( d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT 
Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 
(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and 
Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust 
(-) Debt repayment (to include principaJ repayments as per scheduled El\fi's except if refinanced 
through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt repayments / debt refinanced 
through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well as repayment of any shareholder debt / loan 
from Trust) 
(-) any reserve required to be created wider the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in 
accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks / financiaJ institution from whom the 
Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). tenns and conditions, covenants or any 
other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or 
(iii). tenns and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to extemaJ commerciaJ 
borrowings availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which 
the SPV / Holdco operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or cashtlows from such 
asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services agreement, power purchase agreement, 
lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). 
statutory, judiciaJ, regulatory, or govemmentaJ stipulations; or -

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to the extent not 
funded by debt I equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 
NDCF for subsidiaries of joint venture 
Surplus cash available in subsidiaries used for distribution of NDCF: 
Surplus cash on account of maturity of deposits 
NDCF including surplus cash 

770.51 256.17 520.73 

91.82 

(121.28) 

(1.57) 

(52.71) 

686.77 

53.39 
740.16 

28.61 

(143 .13) 

(185) 

(82.08) 

57.72 

48.03 
105.75 

19.33 

(148.86) 

(1.98) 

(57.16) 

332.06 

63.10 
395.16 

Total 
1,547.41 

139.76 

(413.27) 

(5.40) 

(191.95) 

1,076.55 

164.52 
1,241.07 

1. Includes input tax credit of Rs. 38.54 million in Oak, Rs. 0.27 million in Amon and Rs. 1.15 million in Aspen towards GST on capitaJ expenditure since the same have been adjusted in working capital in cash from 
operating activities. 

MateriaJ accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 form an integraJ part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. : 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 

Partner 

Membership No: 110815 

Place: BengaJuru 

Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of J 
Brookprop Management ServJccs Private L1m1ted 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

¥-~~ 
_L . µv Ankur Gupta Aloi< Aeearwal r Director CEO and Managing Director 

DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated) 

Additional disclosures as required by Paraeraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to e;uidance under Parae;raph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 
(ii) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPV 

For the quarter ended 31 March 2024 (Unaudited) 
Sr. No. Particulars 

1 Profit/ (Loss) after tax as per statement of profit and Joss (standalone) (A) 
Adjustment 

2 Add: Depreciation, amortiz.ation and impainnent as per statement of profit and Joss 
3 Add/(Less): Any other item of non-cash expense/ non -cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items), 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 
For example, any decrease/ increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognized in statement of 
profit and loss/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest cost 
as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognized on a straight line basis, etc. 

4 Add/less: Loss/gain on sale. transfer/ disposaV liquidation of real estate assets, investments (including cash 
equivalents),other assets or shares of /interest in Asset SPVs. 

5 Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidation/transfer/ disposal of real estate assets, investments (including cash 
equivalents), assets or shares of I interest in Asset SPVs, adjusted for the following: 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Any acquisition 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per REIT Regulations 
• Investment in any fonn as pennitted under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by the 
Manager 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVs not 
distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended 
to be invested subsequently. 

7 Add: Interest (or other similar payments) on Shareholder Debt (or on debentures or other instruments held by 
the Brookfield REIT) charged/ debited to the statement of profit and loss . 

8 Add/(Less): Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital, 
deferred/prepaid income or deferred/ prepaid expenditure, etc. 

9 Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the parties 
other than Brookfield REIT), capitalized overheads, etc . 

10 Add/(Less): Net debt (repayment)/ drawdown/ (redemption) of preference shares/ debentures/ any other such 
instrument/ premiums/accrued interest/ any other obligations/ liabilities etc., to parties other than Brookfield 
REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 

11 Add: Cash inflows in relation to equity/ non-refundable advances, etc. 
12 Less: Any dividends on or proceeds from repayments or redemptions or buy-backs or capital reduction of 

shares (including compulsory convertible instruments), held by anyone other than the Brookfield REIT (either 
directly or indirectly), and any taxes thereon (including any dividend distribution tax or buy back distribution 
tax, etc., if applicable). 
Total adjustments (B) 
NDCF (C) = (A+B) 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

Candor Kolkata 
(198.65) 

162.72 
92.41 

275.06 

368.29 

(125.49) 

54.87 

827.86 
629.21 

SPPL 
(11.50) 

83.75 
93.61 

94.42 

(48.72) 

(28.34) 

825.1 8 

1,019.90 
1,008.40 

CIOP 
10.91 

8.35 
(8.13) 

(11.13) 

(0 .01) 

(10.92) 
(0,01) 

The accompanying notes from I to 52 fonn an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 

Festus 
(39.40) 

51.91 
(94.00) 

140.09 

293.86 

(43.54) 

109.75 

458.07 
418,67 

Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 

;;;;z~ ·~·~ff ~ 
j _ -~ i\nkur Gupta Alok Aggarwal 

Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

r Director CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai :u·~ -. .., 'lli 
Amit Jain 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

SDPLNoida 

(118.13) 

138.83 
(64.66) 

188.57 

1.42 

(53.78) 

76.10 

286.48 
168,35 

C ol Kairos 
(296.38) 445.38 

138.77 (110.23) 
(5 .11) (227.45) 

181.03 199.45 

225.19 (59.23) 

(64.34) (50.07) 

41.34 53.47 

516.88 (194.06) 
220.50 251.32 

Total 
(207.77) 

474.10 
(213.33) 

1,078.62 

769.68 

(365.57) 

1,160.71 

2,904.21 
2,696.44 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/H0/DDHS-PoD-2/P/OR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master cin:ular no. SEBI/H0/DDH~PoD-2/P/OR/2024/43 
(ii) Comoutation of Net Distributable Cash Flow at SPVs/ HoldCos· -

For the halfvear ended 31 March 202S (Unaudited) 
SPVs controlled bv Trust" Joint venture" Total 

Particulars Gt Kl NI N2 CIOP Festus Kairos MIOP# Subtotal Rostrum 
Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement ofSPVs/ HoldCos 1,723.58 2,206.91 835.38 1,272.49 115.08 1,010.64 2,842.58 19.90 10,026.56 763.11 10,789.67 

(+) Cash Flows receiYed from SPY's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed as 1,791.34 1,791.34 
per relevant framework (relevant in case of HoldCos) (refer note I) 
(+) Treasury income / income from investing activities (interest income received from 16.56 31.10 (0.34) 57.02 0.95 39.95 33.43 0.83 179.50 12.64 192.14 
FD, tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual funds, 
investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. Further 
clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) (refer note 2) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real -
estate assets or shares of SPYs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes -
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds -
• Directly attributable transaction costs -
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 1&(16)(d) of REIT -
Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real estate -
assets or sale of shares of SPY s or Investment Entity not distributed plll'suant to an 
earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 1&(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other 
relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be 
invested subsequently 
(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per (1 ,107.20) (1 ,057.17) (158.01) (327.83) (241.43) (1 ,434.86) (0.61) (4,327.11) (735.64) (5,062.75) 
Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust (refer note 3) 

(·) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except i (161.00) (520.00) (681.00) (10.01) (691.01) 
refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt 
repayments / debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well as 
repayment of any shareholder debt / loan from Trust ) (refer note 4) 
(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations (101.90) (121) (614.96) (104.62) (183.87) (1 ,006.56) (113.83) (1,120.39) 
arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks I financial 
institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). 
terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities 
issued by the Trust or any of its SPY s/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and conditions, covenants 
or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by the 
Trust or any of its SPYs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement plll'suant to which the SPV/ 
HoldCo operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or cashflows from 
such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services agreement, power 
purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like nature, by 
whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental 
stipulations; or-
(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPY or Holdco, to the (6.79) (20.46) (27.25) (0.09) (27.34) 
extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 

NDCF for SPV's 471.94 1072.15 675.82 386.72 95.57 704.54 737.28 20.12 4164.14 I 707.52 5 871.66 
Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution of NDCF: 
Surplus avaliable on acquisition (refer note 4) 7.59 7.59 
Surplus cash on account of maturitv of depasits 146.91 1.21 920.90 246.65 183.85 41.00 1.540.52 138.54 1 679,06 
NDCF includine: surolus cash 471.94 1.219.06 677.03 1.307.62 95.57 951.19 921.13 61.12 5 704.66 1 853.65 7,558.31 
Joint ventlll'e oartncr's share 926.82 926.82 
NDCF includin• sumlus cash lafter reducine Joint venture nartner's sharel 471.94 t.219.06 677.03 1.307.62 95.57 951.19 921.13 61.12 5 704.66 926.83 6 631.49 I 

1. Rs. 570.99 million (net amount received Rs. 565.00 million post adjusting TDS of Rs. 5.99 million) has been received post 31 Mareh 2025, but before fmalisation and adoption of the fmancial statements by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust This is 
in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framework plll'suant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 100% of such amount received i.e. Rs. 565.00 million has been distributed to shareholders in compliance with 
the Revised NDCF Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/H0/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

2. Input tax credit towards GST on capital expenditure/loan processing has been netted off amounting to Rs. 8.0 I million and Rs. 7. 72 million in NI and Kl respectively. 

3. As per Revised NDCF Framework, finance cost on borrowings includes transaction cost paid of Rs. 44.02 million. 

4. Includes shareholder debt repayments made to external shareholders after 31 March 2025, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust. This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framework 
pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/H0/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

5. In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/ClR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("Revised NDCF Framework") (erstwhile SEBI Circular 
No. SEBI/H0/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/ 185 dated December 6, 2023 on revised NDCF framework). As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF ofBrookfield India REIT as distributions ("REIT 
Distributions").This framework is applicable with effect from I April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield India REIT has computed the NDCF for the half year ended 31 March 2025 as per the revised framework. Comparatives have not been provided in this 
framework for all the previous periods presented. 

# NDCF for MIOP has been calculated effective its acquisition date i.e. 07 January 2025. 

• Refer note 1 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 52 fonn an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
As per OW' report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bcngaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of ~ 
Brookprop Management Services Pnvate Lumted ~ 
(as Manager to the Brook.field India REIT) -.,_ 

~e~ 
Alok A22arwal Almt Jam 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

CEO and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 
DIN No. 00009964 Place: Mumbai 
Place: Mumbai Date: 05 May 2025 

Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 
(iii) Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow of subsidiaries of joint venture 

Particulars 
Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement ofSPVs 
(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed 
as per relevant framework (relevant in case ofHoldCos) 
(+) Treasury income/ income from investing activities (interest income received from 
FD, tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on saJe of Mutual funds, 
investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. 
Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real 
estate assets or shares of SPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT 
Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real 
estate assets or sale of shares of SPV s or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an 
earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other 
relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be 
invested subsequently 

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per 
Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust 
(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except if 
refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt 
repayments / debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well as 
repayment of any shareholder debt/ loan from Trust ) 
(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms o( or pursuant to the obligations 
arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks I financial 
institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). 
terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities 
issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and conditions, 
covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings 
availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which 
the SPV/ HoldCo operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or 
cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services 
agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a 
like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or 
governmental stipulations; or-

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to 
the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 

NDCF for subsidiaries of joint venture 
Surplus cash available in Subsidiaries used for distribution ofNDCF: 
Surplus avaliable on acquisition 
Surplus cash on account of maturity of deposits 
NDCF including surplus cash 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

For the half year ended 31 March 2025 (Unaudited) 
Oak Amon Aspen 

1,231.61 408.53 866.95 

61.48 

(244.13) 

(3 .43) 

(52.71) 

992.82 

53.39 
1,046.21 

40.35 

(289.53) 

(3.99) 

(82.08) 

(4.13) 

69.14 

67.63 
136.77 

78.89 

(295.05) 

(4.25) 

(57.16) 

589.37 

63.10 
652.47 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITIE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 

Membership No: 110815 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Brookprop Management Services Pnvate Lmutcd J 
, • ....,.~,. .. ~~•~•m) ~ 

r t!:~ ~!? ·-·~ 
Director CEO and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 
DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 Place: Mumbai 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Total 
2,507.08 

180.72 

(828.71 ) 

(11.68) 

(191.95) 

(4.13) 

1,651.32 

184.12 
1,835.44 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 
(ii) Comoutation of Net Distributable Ca.sh Flow at SPVs/ HoldCos· -

Particulars GI Kl 
Ca.sh flow from operatine activities as per Cash Flow Statement ofSPVs/ HoldCos 1,864.32 1,929.26 

(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed - -
as per relevant framework (relevant in case ofHoldCos) (refer note 1) 
(+) Treasury income / income from investing activities (interest income received from 22.71 29.30 
FD, tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual 
funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. 
Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure I real - -
estate assets or shares ofSPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes . . 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds - . 
• Directly attributable transaction costs - . 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT - -
Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real . . 
estate assets or sale of shares of SPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to 
an earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(16)( d) of REIT Regulations or any 
other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to 
be invested subsequently 
(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per (1 ,109.08) (1 ,130.09) 
Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust (refer note 2) 

(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except i (232.00) . 
refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt 
repayments / debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well as 
repayment of any shareholder debt / loan from Trust ) 
(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations (148.75) (357.71) 
arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks I financial 
institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). 
terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities 
issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and conditions, 
covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings 
availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ Hold Cos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which 
the SPV/ HoldCo operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or 
cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services 
agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a 
like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or 
governmental stipulations; or -

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to (14.65) (0.34) 
the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 

NDCF for SPV's 382.55 470.42 
Surplus cash available in SPVs wed for distribution of NDCF: 
10% ofNDCF withheld in line with the Regulations in previous period . 7.07 
Surplus avaliable on acquisition (refer note 4) 82.86 
Surnlus cash on account of maturitv of denosits 139.13 357.96 
NDCF includine. surolus cash 604.54 835.45 
Joint venture nartner's share 
NDCF includine. surolus cash (after reducine. Joint venture oartner's share) 604.54 835.45 

NI 
713.43 

-
20.44 

-
. 
-
. 
. 

. 

(241.45) 

(66.83) 

(0.72) 

424.87 

. 

. 
162.59 
587.46 

587.46 

For the halfvear ended lO Seotember 2024 (Unaudited) 
SPVs controlled bv Trust* Joint venture* Total 

N2 CIOP Festus Kairos Subtotal Rostrum 
1,387.68 70.99 1,475.78 2,327.85 9,769.31 491.87 10,261.18 

- - - - - 439.59 439.59 

14.45 0.61 11.08 29.35 127.94 60.50 188.44 

- - - - - . . 

. . . . . . . 

. - . - . . . 

. . . . . . . 
- . - - - . . 

. . . . . . . 

(576.79) (424.32) (1 ,468.93) (4,950.66) (467.57) (5,418.23) 

. . (265.00) (497.00) (23.23) (520.23) 

(308.23) (77.74) (4 .79) (964.05) (8.73) (972.78) 

(25.43) (7 22) . (1.47) (49.83) (13.32) (63.15) 

491.68 64.38 984.80 617.01 3;135.71 479.11 3.914.82 

. . 7.07 . 7.07 

. 74.96 157.82 355.24 513.05 
302.89 . 77.74 . I 040.31 . I 040.31 
794.57 64.38 I 062.54 691.97 4 640.91 834.35 5 475.27 

417.18 417.18 
794.57 64.38 I 062.54 691.97 4 640.91 417.18 5 058.09 

1. Rs. 411.09 million has been received post 30 September 2024, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust. This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framework 
pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

2. As per Revised NDCF Framework, finance cost on borrowings includes transaction cost paid of Rs. 24.83 million. 

3. In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/ClR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("Revised NDCF Framework") 
(erstwhile SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/185 dated December 6, 2023 on revised NDCF framework). As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of 
Brookfield India REIT as distributions ("REIT Distributions").This framework is applicable with effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield India REIT has computed the NDCF for the half year ended 30 September 2024 as per the 
revised framework. Comparatives have not been provided in this framework for all the previous periods presented. 

4. In case of joint venture, we are presenting the amount at 100% (pertaining to both Trust and other joint venture partner). Till 30 September 2024, the amount was presented equivalent to only Trust's share (i.e. 50%). There is no change in 
the final amount of Trust's share in Joint Venture's NDCF due to this presentation. 

• Refer note 1 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. : 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of J 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 

(•--···--~··; ,,,,.:,i# j!J 
L/,,,A,t':::- .d,_ --r Director CEO and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 

DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 Place: Mumbai 
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Date: 05 May 2025 

Date: 05 May 2025 Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 
(iii) Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow of subsidiaries of joint venture 

Particulars 
Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement ofSPVs 
(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed 
as per relevant framework (relevant in case ofHoldCos) 
(+) Treasury income/ income from investing activities (interest income received from 
FD, tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on saJe of Mutual funds, 
investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. 
Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real 
estate assets or shares of SPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT 
Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real 
estate assets or sale of shares of SPV s or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an 
earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other 
relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be 
invested subsequently 

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per 
Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust 
(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except if 
refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt 
repayments / debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well as 
repayment of any shareholder debt/ loan from Trust ) 
(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms o( or pursuant to the obligations 
arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks I financial 
institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). 
terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities 
issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and conditions, 
covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings 
availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which 
the SPV/ HoldCo operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or 
cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services 
agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a 
like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or 
governmental stipulations; or-

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to 
the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 

NDCF for subsidiaries of joint venture 
Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution ofNDCF: 
Surplus avaliable on acquisition 
NDCF including surplus cash 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

For the half year ended 30 September 2024 (Unaudited) 
Oak Amon Aspen 

443.24 168.92 264.21 

13.90 

(184.65) 

(8.86) 

(2.42) 

(2.75) 

258.46 

13.46 
271.92 

6.71 

(120.11) 

(5.91) 

(1.12) 

(0.82) 

47.67 

8.30 
55.97 

70.42 

(222.00) 

(10.65) 

(1.65) 

(0.04) 

100.29 

0.35 
100.64 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITIE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 

Membership No: 110815 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of J 
Brookprop Management Services Pnvate Lmutcd 

,;:;v:::~~-~~ £t'cl~ ~ -) 
Amit Jain r Ankur Gupta Alok Accarwal 

Director CEO and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 
DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

Total 
876.37 

91.03 

(526.76) 

(25.42) 

(5.19) 

(3.61) 

406.42 

22.11 
428.53 



Brookfield India Real E1tate Trust 
Condensed Coruolidated Financial Statement, 
(AU amounts are in Rupees million unle11 odterwise 1tated) 

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6 to SERI nuuter circular No. SEBI/HO/DD~PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) punuant to guidance under Paragraph 4.6 to SERI muter circular No. SEBI/HO/DDH~PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 
{il} Calculation of net distributable ush flows at each Asset SPV 

For the b.alf~ear ended 31 March 2024 j!!naudited~ 
Sr. No. Partkulan Candor Kolka.ta SPPLNoida CIOP Fe1h11 SDPLNoida Candor Cur;:on 1 K,uro, 

1 Profit I (Loss) after tax as per 1tatement of profit and loss (standalone) (A) (254.09) 27.77 17.66 (76.21) (224.76) (459.72) 375.44 
Adjustment 

2 Add: Depreciation, amortization and impairment as per statement of profit and loss 360.92 173.50 9.47 117.78 278.92 279.11 62.72 
3 Add/(1...ess): Any other item of non-cash expense/ non -cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items), 62.28 68.28 (4.12) (82.94) (120.61) (131.96) (208.86) 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 
For example, any decrease/ increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognized in statement of 
profit and loss/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest cost as 
per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognized on a straight line basis, etc. 

4 Add/less: Loss/gain on sale. transfer/ disposal/ liquidation of real estate assets, investments (including cash 
equivalents),other assets or shares of /interest in Asset SPVs. 

5 Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidation/transfer/ disposal of real estate assets, investments (including cash 
equivalents), assets or shares of / interest in Asset SPVs, adjusted for the following: 
■ Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
■ Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
■ Any acquisition 
■ Directly attributable transaction costs 
■ Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per REIT Regulations 
■ Investment in any fonn as pennitted under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by th, 
Manago, 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, investments, assets oc sale of shares of Asset SPVs not 
distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per RElT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended 
to be invested subsequently. 

7 Add: Interest (or other similar payments) on Shareholder Debt (or on debentures or other instruments held by 558.93 94.42 287.74 372.27 366.73 402.06 
the Brookfield REfl) charged/ debited to the statement of profit and loss. 

8 Add/(1...ess): Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital, 750.25 224.58 (22.54) 520.05 21 6.41 510.41 18.66 
deferred/prepaid incooie or deferred/ prepaid expenditure, etc. 

9 Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the parties (212.42) (137.52) (0.65) (149.01) (118.03) (111.11) (216.48) 
other than Brookfield REfl), capitalized overheads, etc. 

10 Add/(1...ess): Net debt {repayment)/ drawdown/ (redemption) of preference shares/ debentures/ any other such 104.30 945.45 158.86 (162.81) 41.34 155.53 
instrument/ premiums/accrued interest/ any other obligations/ liabilities etc., to parties other than Brookfield 
REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 

11 Add: Cash inflows in relation to equity/ non-refundable advances, etc. 
12 Less: Any dividends on or proceeds from repayments or redemptions or buy-backs or capital reduction of 

shares (including compulsory convertible instruments), held by anyone other than the Brookfield REIT (either 
directly or indirectly), and any taxes thereon (including any dividend distribution tax or buy back distribution 
tax, etc., if applicable). 

Total adJwtmenb ~ 1,624.26 1~68.71 {17.84} 852.48 466.15 954.52 213.63 
NDCF (q = (A+B) 1,370.17 1,396.48 (0.18) 776.27 241.39 494.80 589.07 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 52 fotm an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

Chartered Accountants 
FinnRegistrationNo. 015125N 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ol J 
Brookp"'p M,..g,mmt S.,n~e, P=•<e L,m,ted ( / ~ ~ 

,--~-~-"'"'""" ~ 

r iff:: ,:11:~ e.~-Anand Subramanian 
Portno, 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Date: 05 May 2025 
Date: 05 May 2025 Date: 05 May 2025 

Total 
(593.91) 

1,282.42 
(417.93) 

2,082.15 

2,217.82 

(945.22) 

1,242.67 

5~61.90 
4,867.99 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement, 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 
Hil Comoutation of Net Distributable Cash Flow at SPV,/ HoldCos· -

For the vear ended 31 March 2025 lAuditedl 
SPVs controlled bv Trust"" Joint venture"" Total 

Particulars GI Kl NI N2 CIOP Festus Kairos MIOP Subtotal Rostrum 
Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPVs/ HoldCos 3,587.90 4,136.17 1,548.81 2,660.17 186.07 2,486.42 5,170.43 19.90 19,795.87 1,254.98 21,050.85 
(+) Cash flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed as per relevant 2,230.94 2,230.94 
framevi·orlc (relevant in case ofHoldCos) (refer note 1) 
(+) Treasury income/ income from investing activities (interest income received from FD, lax refund, 39.27 60.40 20.10 71.47 1.56 51.03 62.78 0.83 307.44 73.13 380.57 
any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual funds , investments, assets etc., 
dividend income etc. , excluding any Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be 
considered on a cash receipt basis) 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real estate assets or 
shares of SPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other laxes 
• Related debts settled or due lo be settled from sale proceeds 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation l8(16)(d) of REIT Regulations oc 
any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investm.ents, infrastructure/ real estate assets or sale 
of shares of SPVs or Investm.ent Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per 
Regulation l 8(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if 
such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 
(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit and Loss (2,216.28) (2,187.26) (399.47) (904.62) (665 .75) (2,903.80) (0.61) (9,277.79) (1,203.21) (10,481.00) 
Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust (refer note 2) 
(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except if refinanced (393.00) (785 .00) (1,178.00) (33.24) (1,211 .24) 
through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt repayments / debt refinanced 
through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well as repayment of any shareholder debt / loan from 
Trust ) (refer note 3) 
(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising in (148.75) (459.62) (68.04) (923.19) (182.37) (188.66) (1,970.63) (122.56) (2,093.19) 
accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks / financial institution from whom the Trust 
or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other 
stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms 
and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings 
availed by the Trust or any of its SP Vs/ Hold Cos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which the SPY/ HoldCo 
operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or cashflows from such asset (such as, 
concession agreement, transmission services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, 
and any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, 
regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or-
(·) any capital expenditure on existing assets ovmed / leased by the SPV or Holdco, lo the extent not (14.65) (7.13) (0.72) (25.43) (27.68) (1.47) (77.08) (13.41) (90.49) 
funded bv debt / eauitv or from reserves created in the earlier vears. 
NDCF for SPV's 854.49 1 542.56 1100.68 878.40 159.95 1 689.33 1.354.28 20.12 7,599.81 2 186.63 9 786.44 
Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution ofNDCF: 
10% of ND CF withheld in line with the Regulations in previous period 7.07 7.07 7.07 
Surplus avaliable on acquisition 82.86 74.96 157.82 362.83 520.65 
Surulus cash on account of maturity of dcoosits 139.13 504.87 163.80 1,223.79 324.39 183.85 41.00 2,580.83 138.54 2 719.37 
NDCF includine: surolus cash 1 076.48 2 054.50 1,264.48 2102.19 159.95 2 013.72 1 613.09 61.12 10,345.51 2 688.00 13 033.53 
Joint venture oarbtcr's share 1 'Ud..00 1 'Ud..00 
NDCF includine: surolus cash lafter reducine: Joint venture oartner's sharel 1 076.48 2 054.50 1.264.48 2102.19 159.95 2 013.72 1613.09 61.12 10.345.51 1=.00 11689.53 

1. Rs. 570.99 million (net amount received Rs. 565.00 million post adjusting TDS of Rs. 5.99 million) has been received post 31 March 2025, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust This is in compliance 
with the Revised NDCF Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 100% of such amount received i.e. Rs. 565.00 million has been distributed to shareholders in compliance with the Revised NDCF 
Framcworlc pursuant to SEBI master circuJar no. SEBVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

2. As per Revised NDCF Framevi·orlc, finance cost on borrowings includes transaction cost paid of Rs. 68.85 million. 

3. Includes shareholder debt repayments made to external shareholders after 31 March 2025, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust. This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framevi·ork pursuant to 
SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024. 

4. In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framcworlc was defined by SEBI vide master circuJar no. SEBVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/ClR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("Revised NDCF Frame\\-ork") (erstwhile SEBI Circular No. 
SEBVHO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/185 dated December 6, 2023 on revised NDCF framework). As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Brookfield India REIT as distributions ("REIT Distributions"). This 
framevi·orlc is applicable with effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield India REIT has computed the NDCF for the year ended 31 March 2025 as per the revised framework. Comparatives have not been provided in this framevi·ork for all the previous periods presented. 

• Refer note 1 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 05 May 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited ·~ --

j _ - ~ nkur Gupta r ~ircctor 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

~.efc'~ J 
Alok AEPrwa.1 
CEO and Managing Director 
DIN No. 00009964 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

p~ 
AmitJ11in 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 
(iii) Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow of subsidiaries of joint venture 

Particulars 
Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPVs 
(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions ofNDCF computed as per 
relevant framework (relevant in case ofHoldCos) 
(+) Treasury income/ income from investing activities (interest income received from FD, tax 
refwtd, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual fwtds, investments, 
assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these 
amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis) 

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real estate 
assets or shares ofSPVs or lnvesnnent Entity adjusted for the following 
• Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• DirectJy attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT 
Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations 
(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real estate assets 
or sale of shares of SPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re­
invest as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the 
REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per Profit 
and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust 
(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled El\fi's except if 
refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt repayments / 
debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity rWse as well as repayment of any 
shareholder debt / loan from Trust ) 
(-) any reserve required to be created WJder the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations arising 
in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks / financial institution from 
whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii). terms and conditions, 
covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or any of its 
SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to 
external commercial borrowings avWled by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). 
agreement pursuant to which the SPV/ HoldCo operates or owns the reaJ estate asset, or 
generates revenue or cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission 
services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a 
like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental 
stipulations; or -

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPY or Holdco, to the 
extent not fwtded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. 
NDCF for subsidiaries of joint venture 
Surplus cash available in Subsidiaries used for distribution ofNDCF: 
Swplus avaliable on acquisition 
Surplus cash on accoWJt of maturity of deposits 
NDCF including su'Plus cash 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2) 

Oak 
1,674.84 

75.39 

(428.77) 

(12.29) 

(55.13) 

(2.76) 

1,251.27 

13.46 
53.39 

1,318.13 

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Audited) 
Amon 

577.45 

47.06 

(409.64) 

(9.89) 

(83.20) 

(4.95) 

116.82 

8.30 
67.63 

192.76 

The accompanying notes from l to 52 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. : 015125N 

For and on behalf of the Board of ~irectors of J 
Brookprop Management Services Pnvatc Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

¥-- ,(l'i't'~# ·' 

Aspen 
1,131.16 

149.32 

(517.04) 

(14.90) 

(58.80) 

(0.04) 

689.70 

0.35 
63.10 

753.15 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 

_,rf_ • ~ Ankur Gupta Alok Aeearwal Am;t Jwn r Director CEO and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 
Membership No: 110815 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 05 May 2025 

DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 Place: Mumbw 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 05 May 2025 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Total 
3,383.45 

271.76 

(1 ,355.45) 

(37.08) 

(197.13) 

(7.75) 

2,057.80 

22.11 
184.12 

2,264.03 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trwit 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated) 

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/H0/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No.SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/OR/2023/116 
(ii) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPV 

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Audited) 
Sr. No. Particulars Candor Kolkata SPPLNoida OOP Festus SDPLNoida Candor Gurgaon 1 Kairos 

1 Profit/ (Loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss (standalone) (A) 
Adjustment 

2 Add: Depreciation, amortization and impairment as per statement of profit and loss 
3 Add/(Less): Any other item of non-cash expense/non-cash income (net of actua1 cash flows for these items), 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 
For example, any decrease/ increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognized in statement of 
profit and loss/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair va1ue, interest cost 
as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognized on a straight line basis, etc. 

4 Add/less: Loss/gain on sa1e. transfer/ disposaV liquidation of real estate assets, investments (including cash 
equiva1ents),other assets or shares of /interest in Asset SPVs. 

5 Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidation/transfer/ disposa1 of real estate assets, investments (including cash 
equivalents), assets or shares of / interest in Asset SPV s, adjusted for the following: 
• Applicable capita] gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be sett.led from sa1e proceeds 
• Any acquisition 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinYested or planned to be reinYested as per REIT Regulations 
• lnYestment in any fonn as pennitted under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by the 
Manager 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, inYestments, assets or sa1e of shares of Asset SPVs not 
distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-inYesl as per REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended 
to be invested subsequently. 

7 Add: Interest (or other similar payments) on Shareholder Debt (or on debentures or other instruments held by 
the Brookfield REIT) charged/ debited to the statement of profit and loss. 

8 Add/(Less): Other adjustments, including but not limited lo net changes in security deposits, working capita1, 
deferred/prepaid income or deferred/ prepaid expenditure, etc. 

9 Less: Any expense in the nature of capita] expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the parties 
other than Brookfield REIT), capitalized overheads, etc. 

10 Add/(Less): Net debt (repayment)/ draw down/ (redemption) of preference shares/ debentures/ any other such 
instrument/ premiums/accrued interest/ any other obligations/ liabilities etc. , to parties other than Brookfield 
REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 

11 Add: Cash inflows in relation to equity/ non-refundable advances, etc. 
12 Less: Any dividends on or proceeds from repayments or redemptions or buy-backs or capital reduction of 

shares (including compuJsory convertible instruments), held by anyone other than the Brookfield REIT (either 
directly or indirectly), and any taxes thereon (including any dividend distribution tax or buy back distribution 
tax, etc., if applicable). 
Total adjustments (B) 
NDCF (q = (A+B) 

Materia1 accounting policies (refer note 2) 

(319.72) 

685.26 
(24.32) 

1,120.87 

1,303.33 

(504.87) 

347.96 

2,928.23 
2,608.51 

(190.21) 

813.98 
(60.14) 

237.47 

295.22 

(263.47) 

1,573.46 

2,596.52 
2,406.31 

29.09 

11.79 
4.64 

(43.83) 

(3.24) 

(30.64) 
(1.55) 

(368.63) 

249.27 
11.02 

624.35 

577.21 

(179.13) 

1,362.47 

2,645.19 
2,276.56 

(447.81) 

557.53 
(296.68) 

741.S4 

825.11 

(340.35) 

(135.73) 

1,351.72 
903.91 

The accompanying notes from I to 52 fonn an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financia1 Statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

iµ 
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(623.11) 597.28 

344.59 115.47 
(128.54) (421.39) 

455.36 477.38 

10,484.04 5,796.26 

(143.89) (248.22) 

(10,196.63) (5 ,573.27) 

814.93 146.23 
191.82 743.51 

Total 
(1,323.11) 

2,777.89 
(915.41) 

3,657.27 

19,237.34 

(1,683.17) 

(12,621 .74) 

10,452.18 
9,129.07 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trost 
Coodemed Coosolidated Financial Statement, 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions 1D1less otherwise stated) 

1 Trust Information 
The Condeosed Coosolidated Financial Statement, ('Coodeosed Coosolidated Financial Statement,') comprise financial statement, of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust ('Brookfield India REIT' or 'Trust) and its subsidiaries namely 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited CSPPL Noida), Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited CCaodor Kolkata), Festus Properties Private Limited (Festus), Seaview Developers Private Limited CSDPL Noida'), 
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited ("Caodor Gurgaon l "/"GI'), Kairo, Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairo, Property Maoagers Private Limited) ("Kairos"/"Downtown Powai'), Candor India Office 
Parks Private Limited ('CIOP') and Moootainstar India Office Parks Private Limited (MIOP) (individually referred to as 'Special Pwpose Vehicle' or 'SPY' and together referred to as 'Brookfield India REIT Portfulio companies' or 
'Group') aod a Joint Veoture namely Rostrum Realty Private Limited ("Rostrum'). The SPVs are companies domiciled in India. 

Brookprop Maoagemeot Services Private Limited (the 'Settler) has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (Brookfield India REIT/Trust) oo 17 July 2020 as ao irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, uoder the provisioos of 
the lndiao Trusts Act, 1882 aod the Trust has beeo registered with Securities and Exchaoge Board uflndia (SEBI) as a Real Estate lnvestmeot Trust oo 14 September 2020 uoder Regulatioo 6 of the Securities and Excliaoge Board of 
India (Real Estate lnvestmeot Trusts) Regulatioos, 2014 (SEBI REIT Regulatioos) having registratioo number IN/REIT/20-21/0004. The Trust's principal place of business address is at !st floor, Asset No. 8, Unit No. IOI, Worldma:rk-
2, Hospitality Dislrict Aerocity, !GI Airport, New Delhi 110037. 

BSREP India Office Holding., V Pte. Ltd. is the Spoosor uf Brookfield India REIT (refer note 43). The Trustee to Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the 'Trustee') and the Maoager fur Brookfield India 
Real Estate Trust is Brookprop Maoagemeot Services Private Limited (the 'Maoager'). 

The objectives aod pwpose uf Brookfield India REIT is to carry oo the activity uf a real estate investmeot trust, as permissible uoder the REIT Regulations, to raise funds through the REIT, to make lnvestmenu in accordance with the 
REIT Regulations and the Investment Strategy and to carry oo the activities as may be required fur operating the REIT, including incideotal and aocillary matters thereto. 

The units uf the trust were listed oo the National Stock Exchange (NSE) aod Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) oo 16 February 2021. 

The brief activities and shareholding pattern ufthe SPVs are provided below: 

NameufSPV 

Shantiniketan Properties Private 
Limited ("SPPL Noida"f'Nl ") 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech 
Structures Private Limited ("Candor 
Kolkata"/"Kl ") 

Candor India Office Parks Private 
Limited ("CIOP) 

Festus Properties Private Limited 
("Festus") 

Seaview Developers Private Limited 
("SDPL Noida"/''N2") 

Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects 
Privste Limited ("Candor Gurgaon 
l"f'Gl") 

Kairos Properties Private Limited 
(Formerly known as Kairo, Property 
Maoagers Private Limited) 
("Kairos"/"Downtown Powai') 

Name of Joint Venture 

Rostrum Realty Private Limited 
("Rostrum')* 

NameufSPV 

Moootainstar India Office Parks 
Privste Limited (MIOP)*' 

Developing and leasing uf commercial real 
estste property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS sector in Sector 62, Noida, Uttar 
Pradesh. 

Developing and leasing uf commercial real 
estste property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Ecooornic Zooe (SEZ) in 
New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata and Sector 
21, Dundahera Gurugram. 

Providing lllllllBgOlllOI related service 
including facilities lllllllBgOlllOI service and 
property management services. 

Developing aod leasing uf commercial real 
estste property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Ecooornic Zooe (SEZ) in 
Powai, Mumbai. 

Developing aod leasing uf commercial real 
estste property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Ecooornic Zooe (SEZ) in 
Sector 135, Noida, Uttar Pradesh. 

Developing and leasing uf commercial real 
estste property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Ecooornic Zooe (SEZ) in 
Sector 48, Gurugram, Haryaoa. 

Developing aod leasing uf commercial real 
estste property in India, primarily in Powai, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra. 

Leasing, liceosing, operating and 
maintaining the project buildings by the 
Rostrum itself and through its subsidiaries 
in India. 

Providing rnanagemeot related service 
including facilities lllllllBgOlllOI service and 
property management services. 

• Refer acquisition note on joint venture note 45 
•• Refer assets acquisition note 44 

Shareholding (in percentage) 
As at 31 Mareb 2025 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Caodor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% (I share) 
(as nornioee ofBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Paiks Private Limited: 0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee ufBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Struc'bJres Private Limited :0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee ufBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% (I share) 
(as nornioee ufBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Caodor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% (I share) 
(as nornioee ofBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 50% 
Reco Cerium Private Limited : 50% 

Brookfield India REIT : 50% 
Reco Europium Private Limited : 50% 

Shareholding (in percentage) 
As at 31 Mareb 2025 

Brookfield India REIT : 50% 
Metallica Holding., (DIFC) Limited 50% 

Shareholding (in percentage) 
As at 31 Mareb 2025 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Paiks Private Limited: 0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee ufBrookfield India REIT) 

Shareholding (in percentage) 
As at 31 Mareb 2024 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% (I share) 
(as oornioee ufBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% (I share) 
(as oornioee ufBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Teeb Structures Private Limited : 0.00% 
(I share) (as nornioee ofBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 100% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% (I share) 
(as oornioee ufBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : I 00% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited: 0.00% (I share) 
(as oornioee ufBrookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : 50% 
Reco Cerium Private Limited : 50% 

Brookfield India REIT : 50% 
Reco Europium Private Limited : 50% 

Shareholding (in percentage) 
up to 21 June 2024 

(i) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited 12.51 % 
(ii) Bharti (RM) Holding., Private Limited 7.82% 
(iii) Bharti (RBM) Holding., Private Limited 7.82% 
(iv) Bharti (Satya) Trustees Private Limited oo behalf ufBharti 
(Satya) Family Trust 3.13% 
(v) Bharti Enterprises Limited 18.72% 
(vi) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Privste Limited jointly with Sunil 
Bharti Mittal 0.00% 
(vii) Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Rakesh 
Bharti Mittal 0.00% 
(viii) Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Rajao 
Bharti Mittal 0.00% 
(ix) Metallica Holdings (DIFC) Limited 50% 

Shareholding (in percentage) 
up to 06 January 2025 

BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd.: 64.45% 
BSREP India Office Holdings II Pte. Ltd.: 35.55% 
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: 0.00% 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

2. Basis of preparation and material accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT comprises: 
• the Consolidated Balance Sheet, 
• the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), 
• the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, 
• the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity, 
• a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, the Statement of Total Returns at 
Fair Value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of Brookfield India REIT and each of the 
SPVs and other additional financial disclosures as required under the SEBI (Real Estate Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue in 
accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on behalf of the 
Brookfield India REIT on 05 May 2025. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as 
amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued there under read with SEBI 
master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("REIT Regulations"), 
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), as defmed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS') to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations (refer note 
15(a)(i) on presentation of"Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 
32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except when 
otherwise indicated. 

Statement of compliance to Ind AS: 

These Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defmed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS'), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations 
as more fully described above and in Note 15(a)(i) to the consolidated fmancial statements. 

2.2 Material accounting policies 

a) Basis of Consolidation 

(i) Subsidiaries 

The Brookfield India REIT consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Consolidated Financial 
Statements comprise the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT and its subsidiary SPVs as 
disclosed in Note 1. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, 
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by 
using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to 
direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns. Subsidiaries are 
consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases. 

The procedure adopted for preparing Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT is 
stated below: 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

1. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the principles of 
consolidation as per Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements. 

2. The financial statements of the Group are consolidated by combining/adding like items of 
assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows. 

3. Intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions between entities of Brookfield India REIT are eliminated in full. 

4. The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and 
intragroup transactions and balances including unrealized profit are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 

5. Non-controlling interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are 
identified separately from the equity attributable to shareholders of the Company. The interest 
of non-controlling shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non­
controlling interests' proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net 
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. 

(ii) Interest in joint arrangement 
A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. Joint control is 
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about 
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The results of joint ventures are incorporated in these 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements using the equity method of accounting as described 
below: 

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost on the date of 
acquisition and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Brookfield India REIT's share of the post­
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and Brookfield India REIT's share of other 
comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. 

Goodwill is calculated at excess of cost of investment over share of fair value of net assets acquired on 
the date of acquisition. 

Dividends received from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the 
investment. 

When Brookfield India REIT 's share oflosses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its 
interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, Brookfield India REIT does 
not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other 
entity. 

Unrealised gains on transactions between Brookfield India REIT and joint ventures are eliminated to 
the extent of Brookfield India REIT's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated 
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies 
of equity accounted investees are consistent with the policies adopted by the Brookfield India REIT. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the 
Brookfield India REIT's policy. 

iii) Business combinations - common control transactions 
Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the ultimate holding company are 
accounted for using the pooling of interests' method as follows: 
i) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 
ii) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values or recognize any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments 
are made only to harmonize accounting policies. 
iii) The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the 
business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial 
statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. 
iv) The difference, if any, between the purchase consideration in the form of cash/other assets and the 
amount of net assets of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve. The amount of capital reserve is 
adjusted to the extent ofreserves available with the Subsidiary Company as at 1 April 2023. 

b) Functional and presentation currency 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Brookfield India 
REIT' s functional currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in which Brookfield 
India REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded off to 
nearest million except unit and per unit data. 

c) Basis of measurement 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain 
financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the 
accounting policies below. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

d) Use of judgments and estimates 

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations, 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements is included in the following notes: 

(i) presentation of"Unit Capital" as "Equity" in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead 
of compound instrument (Note 15) 

(ii) determination of useful life of investment property (Note 2.2 (g)) 
(iii) determination of recoverable amount/ fair value of investment property (Note 2.2 (g), 

Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, Statement of Total Return at Fair Value 
(iv) determination oflease term (Note 2.2 (n)) 
(v) recognition/ recoverability of deferred tax assets (Note 2.2 (p) and Note 6 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

e) Current versus non-current classification 

Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet based on 
current/ non-current classification: 
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating cycle; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle of Brookfield India REIT; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- the Brookfield India REIT does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 

at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/ liabilities respectively. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

t) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability 
and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or 
liability at the measurement date. 

Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which are 
directly based on the degree to which inputs to fair value measurement techniques are observable by 
market participants: 

• Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at 
the measurement date. 

• Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly 
observable for the asset or liability through correlation with market data at the measurement date 
and for the duration of the asset's or liability's anticipated life. 

• Level 3: Inputs are unobservable and reflect management's best estimate of what market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is 
given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in determining 
the estimate. 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

Fair value measurement framework is adopted by Brookfield India REIT to determine the fair value of 
various assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value. 

g) Investment properties 

Recognition and measurement 

Investment property consists of commercial properties which are primarily held to earn rental income 
and commercial developments that are being constructed or developed for future use as commercial 
properties. The cost of commercial development properties includes direct development costs, import 
duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes, borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
development and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its 
intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 

Equipment and furnishings physically attached and integral to a building are considered to be part of 
the investment property. 

Subsequent expenditure and disposal 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the investment property's carrying amount only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Brookfield India 
REIT and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of the assets not ready for its intended 
use before such date, are disclosed as investment property under development. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 

Any gain or loss from disposal of an investment property is recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Depreciation 

Investment property is depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The 
useful lives of the assets have been determined by management after considering nature of assets, the 
estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and 
maintenance support. 

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

The useful lives of the investment property are tabulated as below: 

Particulars Useful Life (Years) 
Buildings 60 
Plant and Machinery 4 - 15 
Furniture and Fixtures 5-12 
Electrical fittings 4-15 

Diesel generator sets 15-25 
Air conditioners 15 
Office EC1uipment 5-12 
Kitchen EC1uimnent 5 
Computers 3-6 
RiJ;?;ht of Use (Leasehold Land) As per lease term 

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the statement of net assets at fair value. Fair values 
are determined by an independent registered valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional 
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being 
valued. 

h) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

Cost ofan item of property, plant and equipment comprises the purchase price, including import duties 
and other non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for its intended use. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on 
initial recognition expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are required to 
be identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul 
expenditure. 

Subsequent expenditure and disposal 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the property, plant and equipment's carrying amount only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 
Brookfield India REIT and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of a property, plant and equipment is 
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 

Any gain or loss from disposal ofa property, plant and equipment is recognized in Statement of profit 
and loss. 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

Depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful 
lives. The useful lives of the assets have been determined by management after considering nature of 
assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of 
replacement and maintenance support. 

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which 
asset is ready for use ( disposed off). 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over primary period of lease or the useful life of the asset, 
whichever is lower. 

Estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are tabulated as follows: -

Particulars Useful Life (Years) 
Buildings 60 

Plant and Machinery 5-20 

Furniture and Fixtures 3-14 

Electrical fittings 10 

Air conditioners 3-15 

Office Equipment 3-15 

Kitchen Equipment 3-5 

Vehicle 8 

Computers 3-14 

Computer Software 5 

Intangible assets comprise purchase of software. Intangible assets are carried at cost and amortized over 
a period of 5 years, which represents the period over which the Brookfield India REIT expects to derive 
economic benefits from the use of the assets. 

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period and the amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any. 

i) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non­
financial asset other than deferred tax assets may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, Brookfield India REIT estimates the asset's recoverable 
amount. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. 

An impairment loss is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying 
amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss 
recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 
to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU on a pro rata basis. 
A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that are largely independent 
from other assets and groups. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

Impairment losses are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it reverses 
previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity. 

Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or group ofCGUs that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and 
its value in use. In estimating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested 
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. 

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 
is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets, such a reversal is made only to the extent that 
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

j) Foreign currency transactions 

Items included in the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT are measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the Brookfield India REIT operates ('the functional 
currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Brookfield India 
REIT functional and presentation currency. 

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or 
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting period end exchange rates are generally 
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

k) Errors, estimates and change in accounting policies 

The Brookfield India REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in 
Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable information to the users of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively, 
wherever applicable. 

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets 
or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery of errors 
results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity 
of the earliest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period 
presented are also restated. 

I) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
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(i) Financial Assets - Recognition 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value ( except for trade receivables which are initially 
measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

• Debt instruments at amortized cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 
is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
the financial assets, and 
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 
However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss is 
recognized in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gains or losses 
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest 
earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 
amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so 
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting 
mismatch'). The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit or loss. 
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• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Brookfield India REIT 
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 
fair value. The Brookfield India REIT makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Brookfield India REIT decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the 
amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Brookfield 
India REIT may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet) when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
• The Brookfield India REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 
a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield India REIT has transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Brookfield India REIT has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets 

Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables 
with no significant financing component and lease receivables is measured at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable and lease 
receivables, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime 
ECL. The amount of ECLs ( or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date, is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Trade Receivables are generally written off against the allowance only after all means of collection have 
been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. 

(iv) Financial liabilities - Recognition and Subsequent measurement 

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, these are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate ('EIR') method or at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts. 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
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• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through Statement of 
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose 
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Brookfield India REIT that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships 
as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless 
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through Statement of profit or loss 
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are 
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own 
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of 
profit and loss. However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gains or losses within 
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 
The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

• Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities that are not held for trading, or designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and 
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through 
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost 
of a financial liability. 

(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as other 
gains/(losses ). 

(vi) Income/loss recognition 

• Interest income 

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While calculating 
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the effective interest rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the expected cash flows by considering 
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

• Borrowing costs 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR) and exchange differences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest 
cost. 

Borrowing costs associated with direct expenditures on properties under development or redevelopment 
or property, plant and equipment are capitalized. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized is 
determined first by borrowings specific to a property where relevant, and then by a weighted average 
cost of borrowings to eligible expenditures after adjusting for borrowings associated with other specific 
developments. Where borrowings are associated with specific developments, the amount capitalized is 
the gross borrowing costs incurred less any incidental investment income. Borrowing costs are 
capitalized from the commencement of the development until the date of practical completion. The 
Brookfield India REIT considers practical completion to have occurred when the physical construction 
of property is completed and the property is substantially ready for its intended use and is capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and 
charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development 
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. 

(vii) Embedded derivatives 

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope oflnd AS 109 are not separated. 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether 
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. 

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in 
all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded 
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. 

m) Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether: 

• the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or 
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a 
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified; 

• the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and 

• the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT 
has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and 
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what 
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purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the 
use of the asset if either: 

As a lessee 

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to operate the asset; or 
o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for 

what purpose it will be used. 

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying 
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the 
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those 
of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Brookfield 
India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

• fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate as at the commencement date; 
• amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
• the exercise price under a purchase option that the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain 

to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Brookfield India REIT is 
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease 
unless the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain not to terminate early. 

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a 
change in the Brookfield India REIT' s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of­
use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment 
property in 'property, plant and equipment' and lease liabilities (current and non-current) in the 
statement of fmancial position. 
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The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short­
term leases of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases oflow-value assets. The 
Brookfield India REIT recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

As a Lessor 

The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment 
properties. 

Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

When the Brookfield India REIT is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub­
lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference 
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. 

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the 
Brookfield India REIT's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting 
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Brookfield India REIT' s net investment 
outstanding in respect of the leases. 

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Brookfield India REIT applies Ind 
AS 115 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component. 

n) Revenue recognition 

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected 
from customers and remitted to government authorities such as Goods and Services tax, and applicable 
service level credits, discounts or price concessions. The computation of these estimates involves 
significant judgment based on various factors including contractual terms, historical experience, 
expense incurred etc. 

i. Income from Operating Lease Rentals 

Assets given under operating lease are included in investment property. Revenue recognition under a 
lease commences when the tenant has a right to use the leased asset. Generally, this occurs on the lease 
commencement date. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease. In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and 
circumstances including renewal, termination and market conditions. 

Income from Operating Lease Rentals also includes percentage participating rents. Percentage 
participating rents are recognized when tenants' specified sales targets have been met. 
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ii. Income from maintenance services 

Income from maintenance services consists of revenue earned from the provision of daily maintenance, 
security and administration services, and is charged to tenants based on the occupied lettable area of the 
properties. Income from maintenance services is recognized when the entity has satisfied its 
performance obligation by delivering services as per terms of contract entered into with tenants. 

o) Employee benefits 

Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity and compensated absences. 

Provident fund 

The Brookfield India REIT 's contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plans 
and is charged as an expense in statement of profit and loss based on the amount of contribution required 
to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. 

Gratuity 

Brookfield India REIT has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined post-employment benefits plan 
covering eligible employees. The present value of the defined benefit liability and the related current 
service cost and past service cost are measured using projected unit credit method; with actuarial 
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and 
losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit to other comprehensive 
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 
are not reclassified. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss when the plan amendment or 
curtailment occurs, or when the Brookfield India REIT recognizes related restructuring costs or 
termination benefits, whichever is earlier. 

Short-term employee benefits 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the 
services rendered by employees are recognized during the period when the employees render the 
service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected 
to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. 

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under: 

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase 
their entitlement of future compensated absences; and 
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. 

Other Long-term employee benefits 

The employees of the Brookfield India REIT are entitled to other long term benefit by way of 
accumulating compensated absences. Cost of long-term benefit by way of accumulating compensated 
absences arising during the tenure of the service is calculated taking into account the pattern of 
availment ofleave. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after 
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation based on actuarial valuations as at the balance sheet 
date by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses 
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relating to long-term employee benefits are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period 
in which they arise. 

p) Taxation 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and loss 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, 
in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

(i) Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') under the provisions of the Income Tax, 1961 is recognised as 
current tax in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss. The credit available under the Act in respect 
of MAT paid is recognised as a deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Brookfield India REIT will pay normal income tax during the period for which MAT 
credit can be carried forward for set-off against normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset 
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence 
no longer exists. 

(ii) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss 
at the time of the transaction; 
Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements 
to the extent that the Brookfield India REIT is able to control the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 
Taxable temporary differences arising on initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that 
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, Brookfield 
India REIT recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary 
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against 
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets-unrecognised or recognised, are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer 
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probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. Further, no deferred tax asset/liabilities 
are recognized in respect of temporary differences that reverse within tax holiday period. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Brookfield India REIT expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

q) Provisions and contingencies 

A provision is recognized when the Brookfield India REIT has a present obligation as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also 
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be 
measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its 
existence in the financial statements. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under 
the contract. 

r) Operating segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. 

Identification of segments: 

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment 
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
('CODM') to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is 
a component of the Brookfield India REIT that engages in business activities from which it earns 
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 
the Brookfield India REIT's other components. 

Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT' s structure and powers conferred to the Manager to 
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private 
Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since they are 
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empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, investment, disinvestment, 
etc. 

As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged in the business of developing and maintaining 
commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire business as a single operating 
segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" in respect of 
reportable segments are not applicable. 

s) Subsequent events 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non-adjusting events 
that occur after the reporting period but before the Consolidated Financial Statements are authorized 
for issue. 

t) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits 
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

u) Earnings per unit 

Basic earnings per unit are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to unit 
holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the 
period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the profit or loss for the period attributable to 
unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT and the weighted average number ofunits outstanding during 
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units. 

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have 
been issued at a later date. In computing diluted earnings per unit, only potential equity units that are 
dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included. 

v) Business Combination/Asset Acquisition 

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that while businesses usually have 
outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. 
To be considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an 
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. 

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any 
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce 
additional guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive process has been acquired. 

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of 
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional concentration test, 
the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross 
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets. 

Brookfield India REIT has opted to apply optional concentration test in respect of acquisition of SPV s. 
Refer Note 45 of the financial statements for details. 
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Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet 
respectively. 

w) Consolidated Statement of Cash flows 

Consolidated Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby Profit/ (loss) before tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Group are segregated. For the purpose of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash 
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. 

x) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

y) Cash distribution to Unitholders 

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the 
distribution is authorized and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT Regulations, a 
distribution is authorized when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A 
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. 

z) Income support 

The income support that is an integral part of an acquisition transaction is treated as deduction in the 
acquisition cost of such investment property. Where the right to receive the income support is spread 
over a period of time, the right to receive the income support is recognized as a financial asset at fair 
value and subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
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Al1et.(1ite) 
Air conditioner 0.07 
Cmnputera 0.27 
Pl,nt and maclrino,y 0.47 
Fw:nitureandfixtw-es 2.78 
Electricalfittings 0.75 
Office ,..,minm""'t 0.41 
Subtotal 4.75 

Al1et. (maintenance) 
Air conditioner 10.15 
Plant and machinery 333.74 

Fw:nitureandfixtw-es 93.25 
Office equipment 45.10 
Electrical fittings 12.86 

Kitclwn Equipmont, 0.16 
Building, 
Vohiclo 2.82 
Subtotal 498.08 
TOTAL !02.83 

Other intangible Ai.eta 
Software, 0.98 

GRANDTOT.AL 503.81 

Gro11 block 
Addidon1 Balance truuferred from Invatment Deletlom/ 

Property" Adju,tmmt, 

0.42 16.19 
5.41 21.50 (20.64) 
2.77 17.70 (1.59) 
1.98 3.37 (1.94) 

17.24 

0.20 446.65 

10.78 512.65 124.171 
10.78 511.65 124.171 

2.89 

13.67 512.65 (24.17) 

• Towards property be:ing started for captive use and lumce reclassified as property plant and equipment as per requirmnmt of Ind AS 40 Invest:cnmrt Properties 

Gro11 bloek 
llabmeeuat Addition■ Additimu doe to 811etl acqoilition" Deletimu/ 

Parliculan 01Aprll2013 Adjuatmlllltl 

Al1et.(1ite) 
Air conditioner 0.07 
Cmnputera 0.09 0.18 
Pl,nt and maclrino,y 0.02 1.50 0.45 
Fw:nitureandfixtw-es 1.47 1.31 
Electricalfittings 0.75 
Office,.,.,,;....,...,t 0.41 
Subtotal 2.06 1.50 2.69 

Al1et. (maintenance) 
Air conditioner 6.73 0.91 2.51 
Pl,nt and maclrino,y 165.88 109.52 58.34 
Fw:nitureandfixtw-es 38.06 37.95 17.24 
Office equipment 15.74 20.18 9.18 
Electrical:fittings 0.60 11.19 1.07 
Kitchen Equipments 0.16 
Vohiclo 2.52 0.30 
Subtotal 227.17 182.27 88.64 
TOTAL 229.23 183.77 91.33 

Intaqible Ai.eta 
Software, 0.46 0.52 
GRANDTOTAL 229.69 182.10 91.85 

• Above assets have been acquired as part of Cllll<kr Gurgaon 1 and Kairos assets acquisition. Refer note 2.1 basis for coosolidation and note 44 

llabmeeuat 
31 Marcb201S 

0.07 
0.27 
0.47 
2.78 
0.75 
0.41 
4.75 

26.76 
340.01 

112.13 
48.51 
30.10 

0.16 
446.85 

2.82 
1.007.34 
1.012.09 

3.87 

1.015.96 

llabmeeuat 
31 Mardl.2024 

0.07 
0.27 
0.47 
2.78 
0.75 
0.41 
4.75 

10.15 
333.74 
93.25 
45.10 
12.86 
0.16 
2.82 

498.08 
502.83 

0.98 
503.81 

Accumulated d1mreciaticn Net block 
Balance 81 at ClaaJ'le for the year Balance truuferred from Deletion,/ Balance 81 at Balance 81 at Balance 81 at 
01 Aprill024 lnvatment Property" Adjmtmenh 31 Man,!, 202! 31 Man,!, 202! 31 Man,!, 2024 

0.07 0.07 
0.26 0.01 0.27 o.oi 
0.18 0.19 0.37 0.10 0.29 
1.88 0.64 2.52 0.26 0.90 
0.12 0.20 0.32 0.43 0.63 
0.41 0.41 0.00 
2.92 1.04 3.96 0.79 1.83 

3.27 1.96 1.93 7.16 19.59 6.88 
50.62 34.19 2.57 (1.51) 85.87 254.15 283.12 
22.59 14.22 3.70 (0.10) 40.41 71.73 70.66 
13.41 9.18 1.01 (0.31) 23.29 25.22 31.69 
0.62 2.11 3.50 6.23 23.86 12.24 
0.15 0.01 0.16 o.oi 

1.98 10.28 12.25 434.60 
0.45 0.31 0.77 2.05 2.37 

91.11 63.96 22.97 11.92) 176.14 831.20 406.97 
94.03 65.00 21.97 11.92) 180.10 831.99 408.80 

0.91 0.34 1.25 2.62 0.07 

94.94 65.34 22.97 {1.92) 181.35 834.61 408.87 

Acannolated denreclatlon Netbloek 
Balance 81 at Cluup for the year Deletimu/ llabmeeuat Balance 81 at Balance 81 at 
01 Apri12023 Adjmtmenh 31 Mardl.2024 31Mum2024 31Mum2023 

0.07 0.07 
0.08 0.18 0.26 0.01 o.oi 
0.02 0.16 0.18 0.29 
1.42 0.46 1.88 0.90 0.05 

0.12 0.12 0.63 
0.36 0.05 0.41 0.00 0.05 
1.95 0.97 2.92 1.83 0.11 

1.85 1.42 3.27 6.88 4.88 
21.81 28.81 50.62 283.12 144.07 
11.09 11.50 22.59 70.66 26.97 
5.48 7.93 13.41 31.69 10.26 
0.15 0.47 0.62 12.24 0.45 
0.10 0.05 0.15 O.Dl 0.06 

0.45 0.45 2.37 
40.48 50.63 91.11 406.97 186.69 
42.43 51.60 94.03 408.80 186.80 

0.45 0.46 0.91 0.07 0.01 
42.88 51.06 94.94 408.87 186.81 



Brooldldd India Real Efltate Trmt 
Condenled CollloJldated Financial statementa 
(AD lllllOUlltl an in Rupee. mma- unleu othendie stated) 
Notel to ihe CondfllNII Cmuulldated F1mnclaJ. SWanmtl 

4 Invesimtnt property 

Pn<ladan 

Asletll (lXllllbucted), glven,'apeded to be given on ............. 
F"""'1dlmd 
Building& 
Airoonditioneni 
Elcc1rical fittings & cquipmmt 
Plantandmadtim2y 
Dicsclgencnt«sot& 
Fumitmeandfixtures 
Rightofuse(leascholdland) 
O:fficeEquipnent 
C<m 
Sub .... 
Asletll (food CGlll't), glven/optcted to ht given on ............. 
Airoonditioner 
FumituR&fixture& 
Plantandmadtim2y 
O:fficooquiJEIClll 
Ki1l:hen equipmmt 

eom--
Subtotal. 
Sob total - Invutmml Pmptrty 

Imesimmt property- under dn'elopment** 

Capi1al weak in p-ogress (CWIP) 
Suh total- Inveltmmt Pronntv under ...,_1nna-1: 

T""" 

Balance All at 
01Aprll:J:Ol4 

93,401.05 
142,904.42 

2,880.43 
1,898.18 
2,221.65 
1,355.89 

565.96 
1,721.56 

63.73 
12.83 

247025.70 

7.05 
31.24 

4.81 
2.18 

15.77 
0.20 

61.2!5 
:J:47,086.9!! 

1,674.08 
1,674.08 

248.761.03 

A ...... 

1,850.25 
32.63 
13.56 

182.58 
106.83 
85.30 
32.71 
10.62 
9.71 

:J:.324.19 

0.49 

8.80 

9.:J:9 
:J:,333.48 

2,214.88 
:J:..:J:14.88 

36 

c--
Balance transfer to property 

plant and equlpmtnt* 

(446.65) 
(16.19) 
(17.24) 
(21.50) 

(17.70) 

(3.37) 

522.651 

(52:J:.fi!!) 

522,"51 

Ddotl,no/ --
(71.53) 

(0.06) 
20.64 

1.10 

1.36 

.... ~ 

(48.49) 

(1,617.53) 
(1.617.!!3 

"""-"' 

Balanc:e.Asat 
31 March :J:Ol!! 

93,401.05 
144,236.49 

2,896.87 
1,894.44 
2,403.37 
1,462.72 

634.66 
1,754.27 

72.34 
22.54 

248.778.75 

7.05 
31.73 

4.81 
2.18 

24.57 

0.20 ,~ .. 
248.,849.:J:9 

2,271.431 
1.271.43 

2511:J:0.72 

Buildings net block includes Rs. 33,892.96 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 34,525.90 million), held under«i-development agreemmt as fully described in Nam 36 (Capital Commi1mmts). 
~oward& propcirtybcing starlOII for uptivo u&e1 and hmeo rccla&sifiod as popcdy plant and oquiJEIClll u porn,quircmcnt oflnd AS 40 Investment Propcrtie&. 
•• The amount of Rs. 1,671.53 million shown in ''Dclctiooa/ Adjllllmcntll'' under "Oro&11 Block'' rqeac,nts eapitaliution during 1hc period. 

Recon.dllatl.on for total depredation apense: 

Total doprcciationonpropcrty, plantmd oquiJEIClllfor1hc period 
Total depreciationandimpainnentminvestmmtpropertyfor1heperiod 
Lea&:- Doprccial:ionduring1hooonslnictionpcriod onsitouscts- capitalizod 
Less:- Depreciation during 1he oonslniction period on Right of use (leaschold land) 
Depredation npeme fin-the period/year 

Forihequarter ...... 
31 March:J:025 

(Unaudited) 

18.94 
1,094.25 

{0.24) 
(!!.00} 

11112.9!! 

Balance.As at 
01Aprll:J:Ol4 

6,247.00 
689.26 
622.06 
485.30 
357.78 
189.77 
50.23 
19.00 
4.24 ........ 

2.74 
30.83 

1.86 
1.79 

9.01 
0.20 ...., 

8,711.07 

475.08 I 
475.118 

9186.15 

Forthequarterended 
31Decanber:J:024 

(U.....ut,d) 

15.22 
1,100.45 

(0.39) 
0.00 

1111S.:J:6 

Accwnulated depndatlon and hpalnncnl; 

Charge for ihe year I Balanc:e tnm&fer to Property I Ddotl,no/ 
plant and equlpmtnt* Adjllltmmt. 

3,088.62 (10.28)1 (4.20) 
307.60 (1.93) 
266.13 (3.50) 
233.82 (2.57) 1.51 
161.41 
84.82 (3.70) 0.0, 

26.79 
13.71 (1.01) 0.31 
4.61 

4187.51 _JM! 

0.87 
0.47 
0.59 
0.38 

5.01 

7.31 
4,194.83 (ll.99) (l.31) 

45.15 ...... 
4.:J:39.98 (l.31' 

Forthehalfyearcnded. For ihe halfyar ended 
Foriheyear ...... 

31 March:J:02!! 30 Septanber :J:024 
31 March:J:025 

(U.....ut,d) (Unaudited) 
(Andlt,d) 

34.16 29.27 63.42 
2,194.70 2,042.96 4,237.67 

{0.63) (0.40) {1.04) 
(!!.00} (1.16} (1.16" 

a!,El.13 :J:1070.'7 :!.!!!" 

Balanc:e.Asat 
31 March:J:Ol!! 

9,321.14 
994.93 
884.69 
718.06 
519.19 
170.96 
77.02 
32.01 

8.85 
12.826.85 

3.61 
31.30 

2.45 
2.17 

14.02 

0.20 ... ,. 
12,11111.00 

520.23 

"= 13.40M4 

Not"°"' 

3=";~ I 31~:J:024 

93,401.05 93,401.05 
134,915.35 136,657.42 

1,901.94 2,191.17 
1,009.75 1,276.12 
1,685.31 1,736.35 

943.53 998.11 
363.70 376.19 

1,677.25 1,671.33 
40.33 44.73 
13.69 8.59 , ... l3 ... 

3.44 4.31 
0.43 0.41 
2.36 2.95 
0.01 0.39 

10.55 6.76 

16.79 ,~., ,,.,.... .. 238,37S.88 

1,751.20 1,199.00 
17!!1.:J:0 1199.00 

237719.89 239574.88 



Brooldldd India Real Efltate Trmt 
Condenled CollloJldated Financial statementa 
(AD lllllOUlltl an in Rupee. mma- unleu othendie stated) 
Notel to ihe CondfllNII Cmuulldated F1mnclaJ. SWanmtl 

Puiladan 

Asletll (lXllllbucted), glven,'apeded to be given on ............. 
F"""'1dlmd 
Building& 
Airoonditioneni 
Elcc1rical fittings & cquipmmt 
Plantandmadrim2y 
Dicsclgencnt«sot& 
Fumitmeandfixtures 
Rightofuse(leascholdland) 
O:fficeEquipnent 

=-
Sub .... 
Asletll (food CGlll't), glven/optcted to ht given on 
__...tm ........ 

Airoonditioner 
FumituR&fixture& 
Plantandmadrim2y 
O:fficooquiJEIClll 
Ki1l:hen equipmmt 
Cmnp-
Sub .... 
Sob total - Invutmml Pmptrty 

ln\'esbrunt property. under dHelopment** 
Capi1al weak in p-ogress (CWIP)# 
Suh total - Invedment Property under develoDmmt 

T""" 

Balance All at 
01Amt120l3 

25,580.44 
105,781.85 

2,022.99 
1,335.14 
1,385.38 

943.76 
319.83 

1,721.56 
24.54 

2.52 
139118.01 

7.05 
31.08 

4.81 
2.18 

13.45 
0.20 

!!477 
139,176.78 

1,216.94 
1,216.94 

140,393.72 

A ...... 

859.16 
56.74 
35.46 

180.63 
30.38 

"·" 
7.08 
0.02 

~ 

0.05 

aos 
1,255.97 

1,079.68 

~ 
~ 

G=-

Addldm. due to URU 
acquldtlon* 

67,820.61 
36,263.41 

800.70 
527.58 
655.64 
381.75 
159.68 

32.11 
10.29 

1(16.,651.77 

0.16 

2.27 

2.'3 
1116.654.20 

705.20 
705.20 

107 59.40 
•Aboveasaot&havcbcmuquin,daspartofCandocOurgaonlandK.airollasaot&acqui&ition.~notc2.lbasisforOODSOlida1iooandnotc44 

Dddl,no/ 

A.thutmmt. 

(1,327.74) 
7.74" 

27.74" 

Balanc:e.Asat 
31 March:J:024 

93,401.05 
142,904.42 

2,880.43 
1,898.18 
2,221.65 
1,355.89 

565.96 
1,721.56 

63.73 
12.83 

247025.70 

7.05 
31.24 

4.81 
2.18 

15.77 
0.20 

61.25 
247,086.95 

1,674.08 
1674.08 

248..761.03 

Building& net block inelude& Ra. 34,525.90 million (31 MiUdJ. 2023: Ra. 35,179.71 million), held undcreo-dovclopmcnt agrocmmt as fully dcseribod in Noto 36 (Capital Commi1mmts). 
•• The amount of Ra. 1,327.74 millioo shown in "Dclctiooa/ Adjllllmcntll" under "Oro&11 Block" rqeamts eapitaliution during 1hc period. 
# During Ibo year ended 31 MIIRlh 2024, 1ho Trust-Bed 1hc ~ value ofeortain capital wmk in p-ogross and rooogniacd an impai[mmt ehmgo of Ra. 475.08 million. 

RecondUatlcm. for total depredation CipCIIIC: Foriheqoartermded 

Total doprociationonpropcrty, plant and oquiJEIClllfor1hc period 
Total depreciationandimpainnentminvestmmtpropertyfor1heperiod 
Lea&:- Doprociationduring1hoeonslnictionpcriod onsitoasscts- capitalizod 
Less:- Depreciation during 1he eonslniction period on Right of use (leaschold land) 
DepredationCipe111Cfortheperiodlyear 

31 March:J:024 
(Unaudited) 

18.41 
1,009.16 

(0.43) 
(1.42) 

1,02s..12 

Accumulated depredation and hpalnnmt Net mock 

Balance.As at Chaqeforiheyear Dddl,no/ Balanc:e.Asat Balanc:e.Asat A"t 
01Anrll20l3 ··-- 31 March:J:024 31 March:J:024 31 Mardt20l3 

93,401.05 25,580.44 
3,625.39 2,621.61 6,247.00 136,657.42 102,156.46 

417.42 271.&4 689.26 2,191.17 1,605.57 
375.30 246.76 622.06 1,276.12 959.84 
279.32 205.98 485.30 1,736.35 1,106.06 
223.50 134.28 357.78 998.11 720.26 
128.63 61.14 189.77 376.19 191.20 
27.68 22.55 50.23 1,671.33 1,693.88 
9.23 9.77 19.00 44.73 15.31 
0.99 3.25 4.24 8.59 1.53 

~087.46 3.577.18 ........ 23 .06 1.U.030.55 

1.87 0.87 2.74 4.31 5.18 
21.31 9.52 30.83 0.41 9.77 

1.27 0.59 1.86 2.95 3.54 
1.21 0.58 1.79 0.39 0.97 
6.69 2.32 9.01 6.76 6.76 
0.20 0.20 

32.55 13.88 46.43 ,~., 26.22 
S.120.01 3,591.0Ci 8,711.07 238,37!.88 134.056.77 

475.08 475.08 1,199.00 1,216.94 
47!.08 47!.08 1199.00 1..216.94 

S.120.01 4066.14 9186.15 239 574.88 73.71 

Forthehalfyearmded For the year ended 
31 March:J:024 31 March:J:024 

(U- (Andlt,d) 

32.52 52.06 
2,046.85 4,066.14 

(0.72) (0.97) 
(2.86) (5.14" 

21075.79 ~112.09 



Brookfield India Real E1tate Tnnt 
Condemed COD101idated Financial Statement. 
(All am.ountl are in Ru.pee• milliom unle11 otherwile stated) 

Note1 to the Condenaed Conaolidated Financial Statemmtl 

5 Non current financial uaet1 - Other 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
Security deposits• 
Deposits with Banks•• 
Interest accrued but not due on deposits with banks 
To related partie, (refer note 43) 
Derivative Assets••• 

*For balance to related parties, refer note 43 
**These deposits are of restricted use being lien against debt service reserve account,, bank guarantees given to various authorities. 
••• Refer note 38 for fair value 

6 Deferred tu: uaet (net) 
Defum,d""'"""' (net) 

A,at 
31March202!! 

(Audited) 

862.30 
6.77 
0.09 

274.35 

1143.51 

A,at 
31March202!! 

(Audited) 

3,909.28 

3,909.28 

A,al 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

A,al 

855.45 
2.61 
0.10 

260.25 

1118.41 

31 March 2024 
(Audited) 

4,623.88 

4,623.88 

The Group has recognized deferred tax asset of Rs. 5,957.38 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 5,536.90 millimi) mi unabsorbed depreciatimi & business losses and.Rs. 848.35 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 1,197.83 millimi) on MAT credit entitlement, considering the 
deferred tax liability on existing taxable temporary differences in respective SPVs that will reverse in the future and estimated taxable income for future years. The amowrt of deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could reduce in the near term if 
estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced 

7 Non-current tax u1eb (net) 
Advance income tax 

8 Other non-current uaet1 
(Unsecured and con,idered good) 
Capital advances 

Lease rent equalizatimi* 
Prepaid expenses 

Balance recoverable from government authorities 

*For balance to related parties, refer note 43 

9 CUrrent financial Uleb - Trade receivablel 
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured• 
Trade receivables - credit impaired 
Less: loss allowance 

*For balance to related parties, refer note 43 

10 CUrrent financial u1eb - Cash and cash equivalent• 
Balance with banks : *# 
- in cun-ea:rt account 
- in deposit aocount 

• For related parties balance, refer note 43 

A,at 
31March202!! 

(Audited) 

2).93.77 

2,1.93.77 

A,at 
31March202!! 

(Audited) 

109.27 
682.86 

68.02 

10.83 

870.98 

A,at 
31March202!! 

(Audited) 

672.18 
35.82 

(35.82) 

672.18 

A,at 
31March202!! 

(Audited) 

166.69 
5,579.80 

5746.49 

A,al 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

2,394.92 

2,394.!12 

A,al 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

Alat 

60.19 
399.60 
110.41 

6.39 

576.59 

31 March 2024 
(Audited) 

Alat 

731.13 
127.80 

(127.80) 

731.13 

31 March 2024 
(Audited) 

129.24 
3,654.83 

37114.07 

# Balance as at 31 March 2025 includes Rs 499.80 millimi from proceeds of institutimial placemem of units by Brookfield India REIT (Total proceeds of Rs. 35,000.00 millimi). These amount to be utilized towards issue expenses and general corpocate purposes, 
(rei\,r-47) 



Brookfield India Real E1tate Tnnt 
Condemed COD101idated Financial Statement. 
(All am.ountl are in Ru.pee• milliom unle11 otherwile stated) 

Note1 to the Condenaed Conaolidated Financial Statemmtl 

11 CUrrent financial u1eb - Other bank balance• 
Deposits with banks• 

A,at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

910.95 

910.95 

• These fixed deposits :includes Rs. 725.95 million (31 March 2024 Rs. 1,389.96 million) are of restricted use being lien against debt seIY.i.ce reserve acccnmt, bank guarantees given to various authorities. For related parties refer note 43 

A,at 
31MIU'dl2025 

(Audited) 
12 CUrrent financial u1eb - Loam 

To partiel other than related parliel 
(Unsecured and considered doubtful) 
Advances to vendors 
Less: loss allowance 

Loans receivables - credit impaired 
Less: loss allowance 

13 Current financial u1eb - Other 
(Unsecured and con,idered good) 
To partie1 other than related partie1 
Security deposits 
Interest accrued but not due on deposits with banks* 
Other receivables 
To related parties (refer note 43) 
Other receivables 

• For related parties balance, refer note 43 

14 Other current uaet1 
(Unsecured and con,idered good) 
Advances to vendors 
Prepaid expenses* 
Balance recoverable from government authorities 
Lease rent equalization* 

• For related parties balance, refer note 43 

15 Unit Ca ital 
Particulan 
A1 at 01 April 2023 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 

Add: Units issued during the period (refer note c) 
Less: Issue expenses (refer note a (iii)) 
Clming balance u at 31 March 2024 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2024 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2024 

Add: Units issued during the period (refer note c) 
Less: Issue expenses (refer note a (iii)) 
Clming balance u at 31 March 20:ZS 

(a) Tenna/ right. attached to Unit1 and accou.ntin1 thereof 

A,at 
31MIU'dl2025 

(Audited) 

A,at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

0.ot 
18.37 
18.42 

18.56 

!l!!.36 

164.62 
98.12 

257.28 
481.20 

1,001.22 

No.ofUnit1 
33!1,1)87,073 

103,998,149 

439,0S!!.222 

168,667,226 

607, 7S2,448 

Alat 
31MIU'dl2024 

(Au-..) 

1,389.96 

1,389.!16 

Alat 
31 March 2024 

(Au-..) 

Alat 

3.41 
(3.41) 

3.41 
3.41 

31 March 2024 
(Au-..) 

0.01 
24.04 
84.97 

0.01 

109.03 

Alat 
31MIU'dl2024 

(Au-..) 

Amount 

80.84 
108.66 
221.87 
262.22 

673.!!9 

86,!1!!6.6S 
(891.33) 
(861.30) 
(939.64) 

(1,088.93) 
27,053.59 

27.61 
109,101.43 

(1,102.10) 
(1,022.43) 
(1,142.44) 
(1,343.13) 
47,279.00 

663.46 
lSl,106.87 

(i) The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Unit is entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at 
least once in every six months in each financial year in aocordance with the REIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders. The Trust declares 
and pays distributions in Indian Rupees. 

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Brookfield India REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of Brookfield India REIT for each financial year. Aooordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains 
a contractual obligation of the Brookfield India REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a 0001pound financial instrument which contain both equity and liability components in aocordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 
Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Master Cirwlar No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unit Capital has been presented as "Equity" in order to comply with the requirements of 
Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI Master Cirwlar dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented :in 
Statement of Changes :in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by the Board of Directors of Invesbnent Manager. 

fu") Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stake in Candor Gurgaon 1 and Kairos by acquiring 50% equity interest fhm certain members of the Sponsor Group. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% stake in Candor Gurgaon 1 was discharged by 
paying cash of Rs. 4,533.04 million. The purchase considel'ation for acquiring 50% stake in Kairos was discharged by paying cash of Rs. 8,277.71 million and by allotting 12,696,800 number of Units at Rs. 315.04 per Unit, as per the table below. 
On 21 June 2024, the Trust has alloted 40,930,000 Units at Rs.300 per Unit to Bharti Sellers (refer note 1) on prefrential allotment basis towards consideration for acquisition of50% share capital of Rostrum. 



Brookfield India Real E1tate Tnnt 
Condemed COD101idated Financial Statement. 
(All amountl are in Ru.pee• milliom unle11 otherwile stated) 

Note1 to the Condenaed Conaolidated Financial Statemmtl 
NameofSPV 

A1 at 31 March 2024 
CandorKolka.ta 
Festus 
SPPLNoida 
ClOP 
SDPLNoida 
Kmros 
Durint: the vear ended 31 March 2(125: 
Rostrum- Joint Venture (refer note 1: Trust Information) 
Total number ofUnitl i11ued 

Sponaor 

54 117 888 

54 117.888 

Number ofUnitl allotted for con1ideration other than cub 

Spomor Group Other than Sponaor and Total 
Snonaor Groun 

16364 - 54 134 252 
31474412 - 31474 412 
41483012 - 41483 012 

800727 - 800 727 
15 463 616 - 15 463 616 
12,696,800 - 12,696,800 

40 930000 40 930 000 
101.934.931 40.930JIOO 196.982.819 

flil") Expenses incurred pertaining to new issuance of units (Institutional placement and Preferential allotment) have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. 

lb) Unithold bnldh,n en o more an ..... m . . th 501 ntUnitl. th Tm t 
Name ofUnitholden All at 31 March 2025 A1 at 31 March 2024 

No.ofUnitl %ofholdinn No.ofUnit1 ¾ ofholdint!1 
BSREP India Office Hold:in2S V Pte. Ltd. 54,117,888 8.90% 54117888 12.33% 
BSREP India Office Hold:in2S Pte Ltd. 25,763,719 4.24% 41 499453 9.45% 
BSREP India Office Hold:in2S ill Pte. Ltd. 36,727,398 6.04% 36 727 398 8.36% 
BSREP II India Office Hold:in2S II Pte. Ltd. 31,474,412 5.18% 31474412 7.17% 
lntemational Finance Cnmnnition 30,474,452 5.01% 

(c) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought baclc any class of units from the date of registration till the balance sheet date. The Trust had :ismied an aggregate of 180,083,417 Units fur consideration other than cash 
from the date of in.coiporation till 31 March 2023. 
On 02 August 2023, 91,301,349 units have been issued at Rs.252.50 per unit via institutional pl&:ement to arrange the funds for acquisition of 50% stake in Candor Gurgaoo. 1 and Ka:iros, these units got listed on NSE and BSE on 3 August 2023. Further, on 28 
August 2023, the Trust has alloted 12,696,800 Units at Rs.315.04 per Unit to Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited on prefrenti.al allotment basis towards part consideration fur acquisition of 50% stake in Kairos, which got listed on NSE and BSE on 31 
August 2023. 
On 21 June 2024, the Trust has alloted 40,930,000 Units at Rs.300 per Unit to Bharti Sellers (refer note 1) on prefrential allotment basis towards consideration for acquisition of 50% share capital of Rostrum, these units got listed oo. NSE and BSE on 25 J1me 
2024. 

On 12 December 2024, 12,77 ,37,226 units have been :ismied at Rs.274.00 per unit via :institutional placement and the main object of the issuance was partial or full prepayment or scheduled repayment of certain debt facilities availed by the REIT and Asset SPVs 
from banks/:fin.ancial :institution. These units got listed on NSE and.BSE on 13 December 2024. 

( d) Unitholdin" of IDODIOr !ln'OUD 

Name ofUnitholden 

BSREP India Office Hol11;.,...., V Pte. Ltd. 
BSREP India Office Hold:in1JS Pte Ltd. 
BSREP India Office Hol11;.,....,. ill Pte. Ltd. 
BSREP II India Office Hold:in2i, II Pte. Ltd. 
BSREP India Office Hold:in1JS IV Pte. Ltd. 
BSREP India Office Hold:in2i, VI Pte. Ltd. 
Project Diamond Holdim::r11 (DIFC) Limited 

16 Other Equity* 

Particulan 

Retained earnings attributable to unit holders of Brookfield India REIT 
Net distribution to sponsor group entity in relation to income support guarantee 
Amalgamation adjustment reserve 
Non- controlling interests** 

~ Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances. 

•• Refer note 1 

Retained earnin11 

All at 31 March 2025 

No.ofUnitl %ofholdinn 
54,117,888 8.90% 
25 763 719 4.24% 
36,727,398 6.04% 
31,474,412 5.18% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

12,696,800 2.09% 

All at 31 March 2024 

No.ofUnitl 
54 117 888 
41 499453 
36 727 398 
31474412 
15 463 616 

800650 
12 696 800 

¾ofholdinl!I 
12.33% 
9.45% 
8.36% 
7.17% 
3.52% 
0.18% 
2.89% 

A,at 
31MIU'dl2025 

(Audited) 

(9,675.47) 
(1,078.33) 

(53.87) 
19,806.95 

8,999.28 

% Change during the 
year ended 

31MIU'dl2025 
-3.42% 
-5.21% 
-2.32% 
-1.99% 
-3.52% 
-0.18% 
-0.80% 

A,al 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

(6,727.64) 
(1,078.33) 

(53.87) 
20,055.00 

12,195.16 

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Brookfield India REIT is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. At the end of the period, the profit/(loss) after tax is transferred from the Statement of 
Profit and Loss to the retained earnings account 

17 Non-eurrent financial Habilitiel - Bonmringl 
Secured 
Term loan from banks/financial institutions• 
Le.s.s:- Cummt maturities of loog term bmrowings (refer note 21) 

Umecured loan 
From related partie, (nfer note 43) 
Liability component of compound financial instrument •• 

12.50% Non convertible debentures 
14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures*** 

Total Borrowing• 

*For balance to related parties, refer note 43 
•• 15% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures holders issued by Candor Gurgaon 1 
•••14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures issued by Kairos 

A,at 
31MIU'dl2025 

(Audited) 

77,628.95 
(812.24) 

172.93 
7,516.00 
3,473.77 

87,979.41 

A,al 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 

101,137.81 
(959.40) 

212.90 
8,430.00 
3,497.26 

112,318.57 



Brookfield India Real E1tate Tnnt 
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Note1 to the Condenaed Conaolidated Financial Statemmtl 

18 Non-current financial liabilitiel - othen 
From partie1 other than related partia 
Security deposit from lessee 
Retention money 
From related parties (refer note 43) 
Security deposit from lessee 

19 Other non-current liabilities 

Deferred :income• 
Contraci:liabili~• 

A,at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

4,326.38 
6.46 

78.30 

4,411.14 

A,at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

762.68 
644.07 

1,406.75 

Alat 
31MIU'dl2024 

(Au-..) 

3,072.27 
12.24 

3,0S4.!!1 

Alat 
31MIU'dl2024 

(Au-..) 

531.30 
644.07 

1,175.37 

• The Security Deposit received from the lessee is discounted to its present value on initial recognition and subsequently recognized at amortised cost. The difference between the amount received and its present value on initial recognition is recognized as Deferred 
Income. This Deferred Income is subsequently amortized over the lease term, with the credit :included :in Income from operating lease rentals. Deferred Income also :include reimbursement from its tenants for certain assets coost:ructed / acquired on the specific 
requirement of the tenants. The cost of the assets are :included :in fixed assets and the reimbursement has been disclosed as de:ferred :income. This de:ferred :income is amortised over the lease term on straight line basis, with the credit :included :in Income from 
operating lease rentals. 

•• Candor Kolkata entered into Joint Development Agreement (IDA) with Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL) dated 19 November 2020, as amended from time to time, for the development/construction of building to be used for commercial and retail purposes, on 
certain land parcels. the title of which is held by Candor Kolkata. Under the said agreement, Candor Kolkata is entitled to 72% of the gross sale receipts and deposits from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive 
balance 28%. Al> per the agreement, GIL would be paying INR. 1,000.00 million (:including Goods and Service Tax) :in various tranches, commencing January-2021 to March-2026. Amowrt accrued as at 31 March 2025 of Rs. 644.07 million which is excluding 
Goods and Service Tax (31 March 2024 of Rs. 644.07 million), has been presented as contractual liability. 

20 Proviliom 

Provision for gratuity 

A,at 
31MIU'dl2025 

(Audited) 

19.62 

19.62 

Alat 
31 March 2024 

(Au-..) 

37.56 

37.56 
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21 Short tenn borrowing•* 
From other than related partie1 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 
Secured 
Term loan from banks/financial institutions 
Flexi term loan 
Umecured 
14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 
Liability component of compound financial instrument 
12.50% Non convertible debentures 
Commercial papers# 

A,at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

812.24 
1,489.60 

85.72 
16.24 

202.04 

Alat 
31MIU'dl2024 

(Au-..) 

959.52 

7,284.87 

2,605.84 8,244.39 
• "Interest accrued and not due on borrowings", which was earlier presented as "Other financial liabilities" (Note 17) in prior year, has been presented as "Short term borrowings" in current year. This does not have material impact on the coosolidated financial 
s,,___ 

#On 17 August 2023, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 15,000 commercial papers at a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 7,500.00 million, at 7.93% p.a.. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these 
commercial papers was Rs. 6,948.95 million and the value payable on maturity is Rs.7 ,500.00 million. Discount on Commeroial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE oo. 18 August 2023 and 
have matured on 16 August 2024. 
#On 29 April 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 4,000 ccmmercial papers at a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 2,000.00 million, at 7 .90% p.a.. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these cmnmercial 
papers is Rs. 1,870.83 million and the value payable on maturity is Rs.2,000.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These cmnmercial papers are listed on BSE on 30 April 2024. These commercial 
papers were due for payment on 14 March 2025 but have been redeemed pre-maturely (buy back) on 23 December 2024. 
#On 16 August 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 9,600 cmnmercial papers at a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 each at 7.60% p.a. , aggregating to Rs. 4,800.00 million. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these 
commercial papers is Rs. 4,762.32 million and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 4,800 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 19 August 2024. These 
commercial papers became due for payment on 23 September 2024 and have been duly matured on the even date. 
#On 16 August 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 6,500 cmnmercial papers at a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 each at 8.03% p.a. , aggregating to Rs. 3,250.00 million. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these 
commercial papers is Rs. 3,009.65 million and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 3,250.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These cmnmercial papers are listed on BSE on 19 August 2024. These 
commercial papers were due for payment on 14 August 2025 but have been redeemed pre-maturely (buy back) on 23 December 2024. 

22 CUrrent financial llabiHtie1 - Trade payable, 

T ota1 outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises• 

*For balance payable to related parties, refer note 43 

A,at 
31MIU'dl2025 

(Audited) 

165.19 
852.61 

1,017.80 

Alat 
31 March 2024 

(Au-..) 

140.30 
908.60 

1,1148.90 

• The M:inistty of Micro, Small and Medium Enteiprises (MSME) has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that Micro and Small Ente!prises should mention in their correspondence with their customers the Entrepreneurs 
Memorandum. number as allocated a:fter:flling of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of amounts payable to sum enterprises as at year end has been made in the Ind AS financial statements based on information available with the Group as under 

Particu.lan 

(a) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of financial year. 

(b) the interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of financial year. 

(c) the ammmt of interest paid by tho buyer in terms of section 16 of tho Micro, Small and Medium Enterpri,es Developnrent Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along 
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during financial year. 

(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but 
without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpri,es Development Act, 2006. 

( e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of financial year. 

(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until sum date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise, for the pwpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Entelprises Development Act, 
2006. 

23 Current financial liabilitiea- Othen 
Contract liability 
Security deposit from lessee* 
Retention money 
Capital creditors 
Employee related payables 
Other payables* 
Contingent consideration** 

*For balance to related parties, refer note 43 

Alat 
31MIU'dl2025 

169.24 

3.22 

A,at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

6,257.98 
109.94 
486.41 

7.12 
70.61 

6,932.06 

A,at 
31 March 2024 

131.82 

Alat 
31MIU'dl2024 

(Au-..) 

8.48 

54.00 
6,001.10 

143.29 
409.71 

17.03 
110.44 
86.77 

6,822.34 

•• Represents the fair value of part con.s:i.deration, payable to the erntwhile shareholders of Candor Gurgaon 1 and Kairos upon fulfilment of certain conditions, as per Share Purchase Agreements. This has been written back during the year ended 31 March 2025 
pursuant to tho sett!ODlOill done with erstwhile sbarelwlders. (refer- 43 for related party). 



Brookfield India Real E1tate Tnnt 
Condemed COD101idated Financial Statement. 
(All am.ountl are in Ru.pee• milliom unle11 otherwile stated) 

Note1 to the Condenaed Conaolidated Financial Statemmtl 

24 Other current Habilitiea* 

Statutory dues payable 
Deferred :income•# 
Other payables 

~or balance to related parties, refer note 43 

--19 

25 Provuiom 

Provision for gratuity 
Provision for compensated absences 

26 CUrrent tu. Habilitie, (Net) 

Provision for income tax 

A,at 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 

423.09 
601.35 

4.32 

1,028.76 

A,at 
31MIU'dl2025 

(Audited) 

A,at 
31MIU'dl2025 

(Audited) 

0.77 
1.58 

2.35 

120.25 

120.25 

Alat 
31MIU'dl2024 

(Au-) 

Alat 

299.10 
351.95 

8.84 

659.89 

31 March 2024 
(Au-) 

Alat 

0.43 
12.44 

12.87 

31 March 2024 
(Au-) 

120.93 

120.!13 
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For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the half year ForthehaHyear For the half year For the year For the year ended 
P.-.Jan ended ended ended ended ended ended ended 31Mard:t2024 

31Ma...h202!I 31 December 2024 31Ma...h2024 31Ma...h202!I 30 September 2024 31Ma...h2024 31Ma...h202!I (Audit.d) 
(llnandlted) (Unaudited) (llnandlted) (llnandlted) (Unaudited) (llnandlted) (Audited) 

27 Revenue from opentiom 

Saleof1ervic:e1"' 
Income from operating lease rentals •• 4,603.20 4,425.95 4,047.82 9,029.15 8,460.13 7,974.69 17,489.28 12,829.07 
Income from maintenance services 1,566.19 1,561.49 1,285.49 3,127.68 3,121.91 2,639.11 6,249.59 4,879.29 

--foe, 65.87 
61169.39 5i!!Z.44 5~31 121156.83 11~04 101613.80 231738.87 171774.23 

Sale of prodoeh 
Sale of food and beverages 28.06 24.71 23.15 52.77 52.29 48.04 105.06 87.22 

0th= 3.71 2.98 2.51 6.69 5.31 4.94 12.00 9.23 

Total revenue from operation, 6J01.16 6,01!1.13 3~97 12J16.29 11,639.64 10,666.78 23~93 17l!J.0.68 
• For related parties transactions, refer note 43 
•• Assets given on operating lease 

28 Intere,t income 

Intere,t income from flnanclal Uleh at amortized COit 
Interest income on deposits with banks* 129.77 150.50 83.13 280.27 184.88 155.50 465.15 323.06 
Interest on income tax refund 25.08 24.09 23.85 49.17 20.02 124.10 69.19 134.08 
Interest income on security deposit 8.18 8.25 8.07 16.43 37.81 16.41 54.24 38.54 

163.03 182.84 115.05 34!!.87 242.71 296.01 ""8.SS 49!!.68 
• For related parties transactions, refer note 43 

29 Othen income 
Income from scrap sale 21.31 14.67 12.04 35.98 9.46 23.09 45.44 28.26 
Profit on sale of Investmmrt in mutual funWl 6.32 6.32 6.32 
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back* 12.75 134.16 0.49 146.91 0.95 62.94 147.86 64.29 
Miscel.lanoous income (1.86) 0.74 16.29 (1.12) 31.07 17.94 29.95 23.51 

32.20 lSS.89 28.82 188.09 41.48 103.97 229.37 116.06 
*Includes reversal of liability towards compensated absences ofRs. 7 .15 million during the year ended 31 March 2025 

30 Coat ofmateriah coruomed 

Opening stock 
Add: purchases during the period 18.64 17.49 18.75 36.13 35.44 37.85 71.57 64.81 
A&lath= 3.49 3.27 2.37 6.76 5.35 4.89 12.11 8.84 
Less: Closing stock 

22.13 20.76 21.12 42.89 40.79 42.74 83.68 73.63 

31 Employee benefih npeo1e 

Salaries and bonus 60.21 53.18 112.52 113.39 107.16 234.06 220.55 433.15 
Contributions to provident fund 3.24 3.13 7.21 6.37 6.60 12.95 12.97 25.82 
Gratuity expense 1.22 1.21 4.17 2.43 5.40 6.% 7.83 13.77 
Compensated absences 1.21 3.10 1.21 0.37 1.71 1.58 1.61 
Employee share based paymmt expenses 4.54 4.54 4.54 

70.42 57.52 127.00 127.'4 119.53 ,SS.68 247.47 474.35 

32 Finance COltl 

Intere,t and finance chaqea on financial liabilitle1 at amortized coat 
Interest on term loan• 1,803.99 2,271.09 2,132.73 4,075.08 4,377.31 4,270.60 8,452.39 6,986.45 
Interest on COIIIIIlmcial papers 100.46 137.33 100.46 347.14 275.91 447.60 340.73 
Interest on compulsorily convertible debentures• 93.05 95.80 98.14 188.85 193.80 194.51 382.65 228.43 
Interest on liability compommt of compound financial instrummrt* 11.64 6.30 8.91 17.94 17.97 18.21 35.91 22.63 
Interest on 12.50% Non Converbble Debentures• 237.70 250.11 264.18 487.81 521.21 538.87 1,009.02 660.08 

01hen 
Unwiniling of interest expenses•• 135.96 136.89 109.27 272.85 220.20 185.56 493.05 300.16 
Interest on lease liability 6.50 7.22 7.13 13.72 14.38 14.36 28.10 28.72 

2,288.84 2/j67.87 2,737.69 3,136.71 3,692.01 3,498.02 10,848.72 8,s67.20 
Less: Transferred to investment property under development (refer note 4) {21.l~ {12.16) {11.05) {33.34) !]3.61) {24.93) {66.95) {44.75) 

2J67.66 2~71 2,746.64 3,123.37 3,6SS.40 3<!73.09 10,781.77 8,l!22.4S 
• For related parties transactions, refer note 43 
••UmvindinR of interest expenses on security deposit, retention money and continRent considera:tion. 

33 Depredation and amortization upaue, 

- on property plant and equipment and intangible assets (refer note 3) 18.71 14.81 17.98 33.52 28.87 31.80 62.39 51.09 
- on investmmrt proptrty (refa- note 4) 1,094.25 1,100.45 1,007.74 2,194.70 2,041.81 2,043.99 4,236.51 4,061.00 

1,112.96 1,11!1.26 1,02!!.72 2~22 2,070.68 2,07!1.79 4~90 4,112.09 
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Note1 to the Conderued Con,olidated Financlal Statement, 

P.-.Jan 

Property management fees• 
-Property management fee.'! 
-Reimbursement of office cost 
Power and fuel• 
Legal and professional expense 
Rates and taxes 
Brokerage 
Marketing and adwrtisement expelll'les 
Facility usage fees 
Rmrta1 towards short term leases 
Credithnpah-ed 
Allowamie for expected credit loss 
Corporate social responsibility expenses 
(Gtun) on derivative relating to share conversion feature in 14% compulsorily 
convertible debentures at fair value through profit or loss 

Travelling Expenses 
Miscellanoous expenses 

• For related parties tnmsactions, refur note 43 

35 Tu.npen1e 

Cummttax 
-formm-entperiod 
-forearlieryears 

Deferred tax oha,ge / (credit) 

For the quarter 
ended 

31Ma...h202!I 
(llnandlted) 

304.36 
26.03 

390.12 
98.41 
98.82 

47.23 
7.46 

11.68 
4.00 
2.47 
1.04 
9.15 

3.06 
65.69 

1,069.52 

38.44 
0.73 

321.05 

360.22 

For the quarter 
ended 

31 December 2024 
(Unaudited) 

284.35 
57.75 

433.07 
80.28 
83.33 

50.42 
7.39 
9.62 

14.22 
0.86 

2.20 
44.81 

1.()68.30 

61.80 
3.27 

161.89 

226.% 

For the quarter 
ended 

31Ma...h2024 
(llnandlted) 

349.02 
43.89 
79.17 

51.13 
7.24 
7.45 
0.04 

20.65 
0.94 

(53.90) 

7.16 
45.22 

809.22 

32.95 
10.05 

287.65 

330.6!1 

For the half year 
ended 

31Ma...h202!I 
(llnandlted) 

588.70 
83.78 

823.19 
178.69 
182.15 

97.65 
14.85 
21.30 
4.00 

16.69 
1.90 
9.15 

5.26 
110.50 

2,137.81 

100.24 
4.00 

482.94 

!187.18 

ForthehaHyear 
ended 

30 September 2024 
(Unaudited) 

570.59 
36.52 

1,072.17 
129.00 
161.29 

50.66 
15.00 
16.56 
0.84 
1.65 
1.59 

(23.25) 

4.04 
77.10 

2,113.76 

77.71 
(0.52) 

231.12 

308.31 

For the half year 
ended 

31Ma...h2024 
(llnandlted) 

720.64 
123.46 
167.44 

0.00 
103.42 
14.03 
17.23 
9.17 

79.52 
2.26 

(53.90) 

15.78 
84.12 

1,745.'4 

38.82 
8.44 

418.41 

46S.67 

For the year 
ended 

31Ma...h202!I 
(Audited) 

1,159.29 
120.29 

1,895.36 
307.69 
343.44 

148.31 
29.85 
37.86 
4.84 

18.34 
3.49 

(14.10) 

9.30 
187.60 

4,251.56 

177.95 
3.48 

714.06 

89S.49 

For the year ended 
31 Mardi 2024 

(Audihod) 

775.64 

1,489.46 
252.59 
244.86 

0.15 
157.31 
31.67 
31.62 
9.73 

79.52 
4.36 

(45.65) 

32.10 
135.38 

3,198.74 

101.83 
1.76 

592.02 

69S.61 

Brookfield India REIT is a busilwss trwlt registemi under SEBI REIT Regulations, 2014. Hence, the interest and dividend received or receivable by Brookfield India REIT from tlw SPYs is exa:npt from tax under section 10(23FC) of the Inconre Tax Act, 1%1 (Act). 
Further, any expenditure incurred in relation to earning the exempt income is not tax deductible in view of the provisions of section 14A of the Act. 

The inconre of Brookfield India REIT, other than exempt income mentioned above, is chargeable to tax at tlw maximum marginal rates in force e (for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2025: 42.744%; for tlw year ended 31 March 2024: 42.744%), except for 
tlw income clwgeable to tax on transfer of short term capital wiset! UilW;"I" section 11 lA of the Act and long term capital wisW under section 112 of tlw Act SPY s are tlw Indian companies incorporated under tlw Companies Act The total inconre of the SPY s is clwgeable 
to tax in accordance with tlw provisions of the Act. 
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36 Contingent liabilities 

Particulars 

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt in respect of Income-Tax matters (Refer note I below) 
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt in respect of Indirect tax {VAT/Work contract/Service tax/GST} (Refer note 2 
below) 
Grand Total 

Notel 

Caodor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
Shaotiniketao Properties Private Limited 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 

Caodor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 
Total 

Asat Asat 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

{Audited} {Audited} 

1,125.18 1,014.74 
64.22 39.96 

1,189.40 1,054.70 

Asat Asat 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

(Audited) (Audited) 

659.32 643.46 
1.86 1.86 

265.77 155.12 
198.23 214.30 

1,125.18 1,014.74 

Contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2025 includes penalty amouoting to Rs. 740.60 million (31 March 2024 : Rs. 740.60 million) in relation to disallowaoce of settlement 
fees paid in earlier years for termination of contract. Other contingencies include Rs. 384.58 million (31 March 2024 : Rs. 274.14 million) relating to other disallowaoces 
under the Income Tax Act, 1%1. 
The tax officer has set-off certain tax refund claimed in Income tax returns against these demaods. 

Asat Asat 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Note2 (Audited) (Audited) 

Shaotiniketao Properties Private Limited • 3.52 17.99 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 1.68 1.68 
Caodor India Office Parks Private Limited 2.08 2.08 
Festus Properties Private Limited 54.19 
Kairos Properties Private Limited 2.75 18.21 
Total 64.22 39.96 

• The entity has given a baok guaraotee of Rs. 1.05 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 1.05 million) to Member Secretary UP Pollution Control Board. 
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37 Commitments 

Particulars 
Capital commitments (net of advances) 

The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows: 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 
Festus Properties Private Limited 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 
Kairos Properties Private Limited 
Rostrum Realty Private Limited 

Other commitments 

Asat 
31 March 2025 

(Audited) 
1,357.83 

1,008.25 
30.02 

9.80 
2.26 

12.35 
26.27 

268.88 
1,357.83 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(Audited) 
1,065.26 

882.98 
50.01 
27.40 

3.41 
22.51 
78.94 

1,065.26 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (formerly known as "Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Limited"; amalgamated in 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited w.e.f. 01 April 2017) has an agreement with Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is 
held by Gurgaon Infospace Limited, a third party and is not affiliated to the Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited. Candor Kolkata One Hi­
Tech Structures Private Limited has developmental rights with respect to the property pursuant to a Joint Development Agreement (IDA) with GIL entered on 16 
November 2006 as amended from time to time. Under the said agreement Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross 
sale receipts and deposits from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive balance 28%. 

In supplement to earlier IDA, a new co-development agreement was entered into between GIL (the developer) and Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures 
Private Limited (the co-developer) on 17 September 2007 as amended from time to time under which the developer and co-developer will jointly carry out the 
process of installation of fit-outs & fixtures and the cost of such installation shall be shared by the developer and co-developer in the same ratio as to sharing of 
gross proceeds i.e. 28% and 72% respectively. This agreement is accounted as joint operations as per Ind AS 111. 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited ("Kl") entered into a Joint Development Agreement ("IDA") with Gurgaon Infospace Limited ("GIL"). 
As per the terms of the said IDA, GIL had to pay Rs. 1,000.00 million in various tranches between January 2021 to October 2023 for the 
development/construction of building to be used for commercial and retail purposes on certain land parcels, the title of which is in the name of Kl. Under the 
IDA, Kl will be entitled to 72% of the gross sale receipts and deposits from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL will be entitled to 
receive balance 28%. 
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38 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management 
i) Financial instruments by category and fair value 

The below table summarizes the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are measured at amortized cost and for which fair 
values are disclosed in the financial statements. There are no financial instruments, which are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Carrying value Fair value 
Asat Asat Asat Asat 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) 

At Amortized Cost 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables # 672.18 731.13 672.18 731.13 
Cash and cash eauivalents # 5,746.49 3,784.07 5,746.49 3,784.07 
Other bank balances # 910.95 1,389.96 910.95 1,389.96 
Other financial assets # 924.52 967.19 924.52 967.19 

AtFVTPL 
Financial Assets 
Other financial AssetsA 274.35 260.25 274.35 260.25 

Total fmancial assets 8528.49 7132.60 8 528.49 7.132.60 

At Amortized Cost 
Financial liabilities 
Liabilitv comoonent of comoound financial instrument * 172.93 212.90 199.75 226.70 
12.50% Non convertible debentures** 7,516.00 8,430.00 7,991.60 8,968.30 
14% Comoulsorilv Convertible Debentures*** 3,473.77 3,497.26 3,791.00 3,609.15 
Borrowings # 79,422.54 108,422.79 79,422.54 108,422.79 
Trade oavables # 1,017.79 1,048.90 1,017.79 1,048.90 
Other financial liabilities # 11,343.20 9,906.84 11,343.20 9,906.84 

Total fmancial liabilities 102 946.23 131518.69 103 765.88 132.182.68 

# Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities which are recognized at amortized cost has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as the carrying value approximately 
equals to their fair value. Further, other financial liabilities exclude Rs. 247.63 million and Rs. 563.40 million as of31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 respectively, towards lease 
liabilities. Lease liability is measured at amortized cost and the disclosure of the fair value, including the hierarchy level, is not required for lease liabilities. 

A The fair value of derivative assets (component of 14% compulsorily convertible debentures) is determined on the basis ofmonte carlo simulation method. They are classified as 
level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs. 

* The fair value of the liability component of compound financial instruments, which are recognized at amortized cost, has been calculated at the present value of the future cash 
flows discounted at the current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs. 

** Fair value of 12.50% Non convertible debentures which are recognized at amortized cost, has been calculated at the present value of the future cash flows discounted at the 
current borrowing rate. 
*** Fair value of 14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures which are recognized at amortized cost, has been calculated on the basis of Net assets value (NA V) method. 

ii) Measurement of fair values 
The different levels of fair value have been defined below: 
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices for instance listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation 
techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument 
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 
There have been no valuation under Level 1 and Level 2. There has been no transfers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the year ended 31 March 2025 and year 
ended 31 March 2024. 
Brookfield India REIT policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out offair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 
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iii) Details of sienificant unobservable inouts 
Significant unobservable inputs Inter-relationship between significant unobservable inputs and fair value 

Financial assets measured at fair value m,.rivative asset relatine to comoulsorilv convertible debentures) 
Volatility rate The estimated fair value would increase/ (decrease) if the volatility rate is higher/ 

(lower) 
Unadjusted equity value The estimated fair value would increase/ (decrease) if the unadjusted equity value is 

(lower)/ higher 

iv) Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 fair values 
For the financial assets measured at fair value (Derivative asset relating to compulsorily convertible debentures), reasonably possible changes at the reporting date due to one of the 
significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have following effects: 

31 March 2025 

Financial assets measured at fair value (Derivative asset relating to compulsorily convertible debentures) 
Volatility (1.5% movement) 
Unadjusted equity value (10% movement) 

31 March 2024 

Financial assets measured at fair value (Derivative asset relating to 14% compulsorily convertible debentures) 
Volatility (1.5% movement) 
Unadjusted equity value (10% movement) 

v) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values 

a) Fair Value relating to derivative asset (14 % compulsorily convertible debentures) 
Balance as at 28 August 2023 (acquisiton date of Kairos) 
Net change in fair value - unrealised (refer note 34) 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 
Net change in fair value - unrealised (refer note 34) 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase Decrease 

50.30 
(42.50) 

(50.10) 
48.60 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

46.30 
43.50 

Decrease 

(45.60) 
(37.50) 

214.60 
45.65 

260.25 
14.10 

274.35 



Brookfteld India Red Estate Trust 
Ctmdemed CGnsolldated Fimmdd Statemenu 
(AD amountlll are In Rupees mflHt1111 mdess otherwise stated) 
Nota to the Conduued Comoldated Fimmdal Statanadl 

39 Secmm1 repordoc 

Ind AB I 08 establishes requirements to identify 1he operating segment and related disclosures, basis how 1he ClrlefOperating Decisim Maker ('CODM') evaluates 1he perfamance and allocams n:sourcell to difl'en::nt segments. Hued on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT structure and powers collfen-ed to 1he Manager to 
REIT, Boud ofOin,,i,:toni of1he Manage.- (BroiiqJrop Managemart Scl-vi.Q!:111 Priva11:1 Limitod) hu boaJ. idartified 11111ho ClrlefOperating Decisim Mam- CCODM'), silwe 1hey ani a:npowco,d fix" all major decisiOlllll w.r.t 1he management, administra1ion, inveBlment. dillinvestment, eti.:. 

All 1ho Group is primarily engaged in 1he busineas ofdoveloping, main1ainiDg and louiog ix.mnaml n,al estan, properties in India. CODM reviewa 1ho artin, buaineM 1111 a BiDgle open1ing aegment and a.eccnliDgly discloBUre n,quiremartB oflnd AB 108 "Operating Segmenfll" in respell( of~e 9egDleiltB an, not 

applicable. 

S.No eu.tomu N,_ Forthequartermded For the quarter ended Forthequartermded Forthemlfyearmded For the half year ended Forthemlfyearmded Fortheyearmded For the year ended 
31 Marcb.2025 31 Dectmller 2024 31 Marcb.2024 31 Marcb.2025 30 Septtmller 2024 31 Marcb.2024 31 Marcb.2025 31 Man:h.2024 

(Unaudited) (U"""""dJ (Unaudited) (U"""""dJ (Unaudited) (U"""""dJ - (Audited) 

A ¾ofrevenue 7.21% 8.31% 8.10% 7.91% 8.63% 8.15% 8.26¾ 9.87"/4 
B ¾ofrevawo 6.67% 7.55% 8.51% 7.21% 8.15% 8.78% 7.67°/4 10.53% 
C ¾ofrevenue 5.58% 5.71% 5.56% 5.73% 5.53% 5.15% 5.63% 7.06% 

40 Eamlnp Per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amountl are calculated by dividing 1he profit for 1he period / year after inca:ne 1lx attributable to lmi1holden by 1he weighted awrage number of units outstanding during 1he period/ year. Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing 1he profit for 1he period / year after income 1llx attributable to lmi1holden by 
1ho ~ avorage number of units out3tandiog during period/ year p!UB 1ho ~ avu.go numbcl- of units 1hatwould be ill,iuod on convonioo. ofall 1he dilutivo potential units into unit t;:apital. The lmi1B of1ho Trust WI.ft allotted oo. 08 Febnuuy 2021, 11 Febnwy 2021, 24 JllllUlllY 2022, 02 August 2023, 28 August 
2023, 21 June 2024 and 12 December 2024. 

.....,.,,, 
Profit after 11xfor calculating basic and diluted EPU (attributable to lmi1holden of 
l3rookfield IndiaREI'I) 

Weighted avorage numbcl- of Units {NOii.) 
EamingsPerUnit 

-Basic(Rupeealunit) 
-Diluted (Rnoeemitt 

• The Trust does not haw any outstanding dilutive lmiUI. 

41 Manqemmt fee 

l)PropertyManacanmtFee1 

Forthequartermded 
31 Marcb.2025 

(Unaudited) 

694.22 

607,752,448 

1.14 
1.14 

For the quarter ended Forthequartermded 
31 Dectmller 2024 31 Marcb.2024 

(U"""""dJ (Unaudited) 

319.54 117.15 

507,784.184 439,085,222 

0.63 0.27 
0.63 0.27 

Forthemlfyearmded For the half year ended Forthemlfyearmded Fortheyearmded For the year ended 
31 Marcb.2025 30Septtmller2024 31 Marcb.2024 31 Marcb.2025 31 Man:h.2024 

(U"""""dJ (Unaudited) (U"""""dJ - (Audited) 

1,013.76 833.84 346.59 1,847.60 235.96 

557,219,040 461,898,665 439,085,222 509,428,276 403,233,066 

1.82 1.81 0.79 3.63 0.59 
1.82 1.81 0.79 3.63 0.59 

In tenns of REIT Regulatiom, 1he manager of1he REIT is required to undertake managementof1he 1111se1ll of1he REIT, ei1her directly or1hrough 1he appointment and ,iupervision of appropriate agents. Effective 1 April 2023, 1he Investm.entManager has appointed Brookprop Property Management Services Private Limited 
(Servico Provider) to provide 1he propt:dy managemart servicos to 1ho managemart al1ities CIOP and MIOP. These management entitit:13 havo propt:dy managemart agreements wi1h Ullderlying SPVs i.o. CIOP providing propt:dymanaga:nent BCl"Vi.Q!:111 to SPPL Noida, Candor Kolka1a, SDPL Noida and Kairos, and MIOP 
providing property management serYices to Candor Gurgaon 1. Service Provider is also providing property management serYices to one of REIT SPVnaming Festus directly. The Service Provider is entitled to a fees ftom CIOP@3% of1he operating lease rentals and ftom MIOP @2.50¾ of net revenue,. 1111 n:conled in 1he 
bow of w.:ounfll ofrespectiw umlerlying REIT SPVs. The said Msnagementftles for 1he quaffllr, half year and yoar aidod 31 Man:h 2025 is amounting to Ra. 114.93 millioo, Rs. 284.18 million and Ra. 493.37 million respectiwly. Then, are no changes during 1ho period in 1he molhodology fix" compubtioo. offoeB paid 
to1heserYiceprovider. 

ii) REIT Manacanmt Fee1 
Pursuant to 1he Investment Management Agreement dated 17 July 2020, Investm.ent Manager is entitled to fees @ 1 % ofNDCF, exclusive of applicable 1lllmi (also refer note 45). The fees has been deu::nnined for UDdertmng management of 1he Trust and its investments. The said Management fi:es for 1he quarter, half year 
andyearended.31 Man:b.2025 ~ to Rs. 39.86 millioo, Ra. 73.48millionandRll. 125.73 millionn:IIIJICll,l1iv. Then,11R1nochaugesduring1hoperiod in1homoihodologyforcompubtioo.ofioespaid to1he lnvoBtmentManager. 
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42 Capitalization Statement 

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Group's capital 

structure mainly constitutes equity in the form of unit capital and debt. The projects of SPVs are initially funded through construction financing arrangements. On completion, these loans 

are restructured into lease-rental discounting arrangements or debentures. The Group's capital structure is influenced by the changes in regulatory framework, government policies, 

available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liquidity position. 

The Group monitors its capital structure using ratio of 'Net debt' to 'Total Equity'). The capital structure of the Group consists ofnet debt (comprising borrowings as disclosed in notes 17 

and 21 and lease liabilities offset by cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 10) and equity of the Group (comprising issued unit capital, Non- controlling interest, reserves and 

retained earnings as disclosed in notes 15 and 16). The Group's Net debt to equity ratio as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are as follows: 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Lease Liability 
Gross debt 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 
Adjusted Net debt 

Total equity 
-Unit capital 
-Other equity 
Equity attributable to unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT 
Non-controlling interest 
Total equity 

Debt/Equity Ratio 

As at 31 March 2025 
(Audited) 

90,585.24 
247.63 

90,832.87 
(5,746.49) 
85,086.38 

151,106.87 
(10,807.67) 
140,299.20 

19,806.95 
160,106.15 

0.53 

As at 31 March 2024 
(Audited) 

120,562.96 
563.40 

121,126.36 
(3,784.07) 

117,342.29 

109,101.43 
(7,859.84) 

101,241.59 
20,055.00 

121,296.60 

0.97 
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43 Related Party Disdomres 

A. Related parties to Brookfield India REIT as at 31 March 2025 

BSREP lodia Office Holdiogs V Pte. Ltd • Spoosor 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited - Investment Manager or Manager 
Axis Trustee Services Limited - Trustee 

Ultimate pareot entity• 
Brookfield Corporation (Formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management loc.) - ultimate pareot eotity and controlling party (till 18 March 2025) 

Spon11or e;roup 
a) BSREP II lodia Office Holdiogs II Pte. Ltd (BSREP II lodia) 
b) BSREP lodia Office Holdiogs ill Pte Ltd (BSREP lodia Office ill) 
c) BSREP lodia Office Holdiogs Pte. Ltd. (BSREP lodia Holdiogs) 
d) BSREP lodia Office Holdiogs N Pte. Ltd. (BSREP lodia Office N) (till 17 March 2025) 
e) BSREP lodia Office Holdiogs VI Pte. Ltd. (BSREP lodia Office VI) (till 17 March 2025) 
t) Project Diamond Holdiogs (DIFC) Limited (Project Diamond) 

Entity having 11ignificant influence* 
Brookfield Corporaticm (formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management loc.) (w.e.f. 19 March 2025) 

Group companie11 of entity having significant influence 
a) Mo1D1tainstar lodia Office Parks Private Limited (till 06 January 2025) 
b) Witwicky Ooe Private Limited 
c) Brookfield HRS TS LLC 
e) Brookprop Property Mansgement Services Privste Limited 
d) Aerobode Ooe Private Limited 
e) Cowries lodia Private limited 
t) Parthos Properties Private Limited 
g) Equinox Business Parks Private Limited 
h) Clean Max Enviro Energy Soluticms Private Limited 
i) Project Diamond FPI Holdiogs (DIFC) Limited 
j) Schloss Chanakya Pvt. Ltd. 
k) Summit Digital lofrastructure Limited 
1) Brooksoluticms Global Services Private Limited 
m) Transiticm Cleantech Services Private Limited 
n) Elevsr Digitel lofrastructure Private Limited 
o) Artiga lodia Office Parks Private Limited 
p) Transition Energy Services Private Limited 
q) Brookfield Corporaticm (Formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management loc.) 
r) Schloss Bangalore Limited (fonnerly known as Schloss Bangalore Pvt Ltd) 
s) Project Cotton Holdiogs Ooe (DIFC) Limited 

As11ociate11 of Sub11idiarie11 
Reco Cerium Private Limited (w.e.f. 18 August 2023) 
Reco Rock Private Limited (w.e.f. 18 August 2023) 
Reco Iris Privste Limited (w.e.f. 18 August 2023) 
Reco Europium Private Limited (w.e.f. 28 August 2023) 

Joint Venture 
Rostrum Realty Private Limited (w.e.f 21 JIDle 2024) 

Other related partie11 with whom the tramactions have taken place during the quarter/ year 
Axis Bank Limited - Prornotor of Trustee 
Axis Capital Limited- Fellow subsidia,y of Trustee 

"During the quamr and year ended March 31, 2025, the spoosor group reduced its holdiogs in unit capital of Brookfield lodia REIT to 26.45% resultiog in the spoosor group and Brookfield Corporaticm's loss of control 
over Brookfield lodia REIT. Ccmsequently, during the quamr and year ended March 31, 2025, Brookfield Corporation's relaticmsbip with Brookfield lodia REIT has changed from being the ultimate ccmtrolling party to an 
investor with sigoificant influence. 

Brookfield India REITs interests in subsidiaries are set out in note I - Organization structure. 

Directors & Key personnel of the Investment Manager (Brookprop Maoagement Services Private Limited) 

llirm!m 
Alok Aggarwal - Chief Executive Officer and Managing Dire-- lodia office business 
(Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive Officer and Managing mre- w.e.f 12 
Februa,y 2024) 
Akila Krishnakumar (lodependent Director) 
Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribhakti (lodependent Dire-) 
Anuj Ranjan (Ncm-Executive Director) (till 12 February 2024) 
Ankur Gupta (Ncm-Executive Director) 
Thomas Jan Sucharda (Non-Executive Director) (w.e.f. 30 March 2023) 
Rajnish Kumar (lodependent Director) (w.e.f. 30 March 2023) 

Key Maoagerial Personnel of SPV's 
- Candor Kolkata One m-Tech Structures Private Limited 

Subrats Ghosh- Managing Dire- (till 13th February 2024) and Dire- (w.e.f. 14 February 2024) 
- Festu11 Propertie11 Private Limited 

Lalit Kumar- Company Secretary (till 01 July 2024) 
Chirag Banga- Company Secretary (w.e.f. 02 December 2024) 

- Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 
Julti Sen - Company Secretary (w.e.f. 24 April 2023) 

- Mountainstar India Office Parka Private Limited 
Davinder Arora - Company Secretary (till 08 April 2025) 

Key Penonnels and Key Management Penonnel 
Alok Aggarwal- ChiefExecutive Officer and Managing mre- as Key Personnel w.e.f. 26 September 2020 

Amit Jain - Chief Financial Officer - lodia office business (w.e.f. 09 May 2024) and Key Perscmnel (w.e.f 07 Janua,y 
2025) 
Ankit Gupta- President - lodia office business as Key Personnel (w.e.f. 09 May 2024) 
Shantanu Chakraborty- Chief Operatiog Officer- lodia office business as Key Perscmnel (w.e.f. 09 May 2024, till 07 
Janua,y 2025) 
Sanjeev Kumar Sharma - Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer- lodia office business (till 09 May 
2024) 
Saurabh Jain- Compliance Officer 



Brooldleld India Real Fatwte Tnut 
Coade.alled CODIIOlidated li'laaa.dal statemeaU 
(AD amonnu are In Rn,- mHUom unleaothenrhe dated) 
Notatu the Omdemed CnallOlidated li'laaa.dal BhtemeaU 

Natureoftn.naaction/Rn.tlty'1Name 

TnuteeFeeEs.JIIIUIS 
-AxiaTnllleeScrn\lQILimited 

Relm.bw'xment orapemeincwnd by{ududin!l GSl) 
• Brookprop Mamgllnmt Seni.ct11 PriVlllll I.imilltd 
- Brookprop Property Manapmcllll: Sm-wile& PriYm Limited 
•BSREPindiaOflilleHaldinpVPle.IJd. 
•CowrkllndiaPriVlmllimited 
-SrH011CbanakyaPYt.Ltd. 
-Eqlm.lXBIIIUll,lljjParbPrivllteLimilw 

Relm.hw'xment or apeme incwnd on beludf or {ududin!l GSl) 
•A«obodeOnePriwtelioi.ted 
- Brookprop Property Manapmcllll: Sm-wile& PriYm Limited 
-Parthol~cal'rMtl.:lioi.ted 
•Strito:nPropertieaPrivallliimited 
• Eqlm.lX Blllimll Farb Privm Limited 
-AdipJmliaOfliceParbPl:mk:Limited 

•RlllilnmRN!tyPrivatlllimmld 

Internet & ConnectMty Clara;• 
• Brooldidd HRS TS lLC 
•CowrkllndiaPriVlmllimited 

Power and l\ael apena,11 
-UemMaxEmiroEneq;ySliuti0111Pri"'111ciimitcd 
- 'Inllliti.uaaeia«:h ServiCC11Privall:Iimitcd 
-'nmi.tio:nEnlrgySem.lltllPYt.Ltd. 

lncorn11fn;im11111lntenanceHrvicn 
-Elevai:Di&iteJ.~Privall:Limilw 

llaJ.eorUnltCapltal 
-ProjoctDiamom:IHol.dinp{DlFC)Limited 
-AxiaBmlimill:d 

............ 
-AxiaCapita!Limited 

~diredlyattrilnmlbletuinn11tmeatin111111ai.dlule11 
-AxiaCapita!Limited 

llaJ.eorll.50%Non.c:omertl.bJedeben.tnra 
•Recolri1Priwtelioi.ted 
-Reco Rodi: PriYm Limited 

lnt.-.tapen1eon 12.50%NonCODftJtlb1edebentunl 
-Recolri1Priwtelioi.ll:d 
-RecoRor.11:PrivmLimited 

lntfffll open• OD U.billty eomponent OD eompubory eunnr1ible debentura 
-RecoCmnm.Priwtelioi.ted 

Repaymeatofll.5%NOD eulll'rible debenture 
•RecolrilPriVllllliimited 
-Recolw<:lr.Priwtelinited 

lnt.-.t apen1e on mmpu]IOl'J' c:omertl.ble deben.tnra 
•RecoE.upi.111DPri"'111ciimitcd 

Payment or U.billty eomponeat of eompou;nd ft1U111dal imtrument 
-Recoo.:rium.Priwtelioi.ll:d 

Payment or lnterat OD mmpullOl'J' Clllll'er1lble debentura 
•RecoElll'OpiamPriwtelimited 

Payment or1nterat OD U.billty eomponent or mm pound nnaiu:i.J inlltrument 
-RecoCmnm.Priwtelioi.ted 

Payment or1nterat OD 12.5%Non eoa.vu1ibledebenture 
•Recolri1Priwtelioi.ted 
-RecoRor.11:PrivmLimited 

PaymentorlnterutOD U.billtyeomponentoreompound nnaiu:i.Jlnlltrument 
•BSREPindiaOfliceHaldi!lpIIPm.Ltd 

Payment or1nterut OD eompul10ryc:omertl.ble deben.tnra 
-~Diamom!Haldinp{DIFC)lioi.ll:d 

Payment or1nterut OD 12%NOD convertible debenture 
-~Diamom:IFPIHol.dinp(DIFC)Limilw 

Repaymmtofl2%Non. c:omertl.ble deben.tnra 
-~Diamom:IFPIHol.dinp(DIFC)Limilw 

Pl'<.lpertymmgemeat Cea 
-BrookpropMlml&mll,:mServiCCIIPri"'111cI.imitcd 
- Brookprop Property Mmll&emcd Scrn\lQI Pliwk: Limited 
•CowrkllndiaPriVlmllimited 

1111'911:m.ent manqmimt Cea 
• Brookprop Mamgllnmt Seni.ct11 PriVlllll I.imilltd 

Com.penlld:loa. to lmymanapment penmnel ofSPV'1 
- Shod-lam all'loree bem:6111 
-P~benditB+ 
•Clllmloog,,t-.beneti.111 
•ClllmFHI 

Forthequarter .... 
31Mardl.202!1 

(Unaudited) 

0.73 .,, 

(0.01) 

"·" 
0.6' 
0.03 
0.0, ,._,. 

0.59 
9.87 

0.49 
0.4' 
4.32 
3.53 

1!1.26 

8.91 ,.,., ... 
0.33 

40.01 
5.21 .... 
0.34 ... 

202.83 
34.87 

237.70 

11.64 
1L64 

"·" "'" 
7.49 
7.49 

102.17 
102.17 

18.93 ,.,, 
214.72 
35.40 ,..,, 

114.93 
4.81 

119.74 

39.86 
39.86 

Forthequarter .... 
31Deum.ber2024 

(Unandlted) 

.,. 
0.74 

1.17 
15.93 
Io.61 
1.61 ... 
.03 

1"-86 

·" 0.80 

.,, 
51.91 

214.73 
35.40 

2!111.13 

rn 
6.30 

169.00 
105.00 
274.00 

95.80 

"·" 
12.63 
12.63 

102.14 
102.14 

11.92 
18.92 

219.92 
31.66 

2!111.511 

169.24 .,, ,,,.,, 
33.62 

"·" 

Forthequarter .... 
31Mardl.2024 

(Unaudited) 

0.73 .,, 

{2.16) 
23.97 

9.51 
0.03 

0.08 ,.,, 

15.13 
0.07 ,.., 

220.48 
43.7' , . .,. 

8.91 . ., 
33.00 
54.00 
87.00 

98.14 ,.,. 

10.01 
10.01 

100.33 
109.33 

18.92 ,.,. 
220.48 
43.7' 

"'" 

109.58 
3.91 

113.49 

24.13 

"'" 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear 
mdol 

31Mardl.202!1 
(Unaudited) 

1.47 
1.47 

8.16 
181.3!1 

Io.61 
2.26 .., .,. 

203.04 

.,, 
1m 

.., . ., 
<32 
3.53 

20.46 

17.61 
(0.06) 
17.62 

.,, 
91.99 

5.21 
'J'J.7!1 

.,. 
0.34 

417.S<i 
70.'rt 

487.'3 

17.94 
17.94 

, ... oo 
105.00 
691.00 

181.84 
188.84 

,.., 
20.12 

20<31 
20<31 

37.85 
37.115 

43<64 ,.,. 
508.70 

28<11 .... 
293.07 

73.48 

"·" 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear .... 
30September2024 

(Unaudited) 

1.48 
L48 

16.33 

"'·" ~-"' 0.32 

0.03 
106.83 

0.26 
2.11 

0.26 
0.26 

24.71 
0.06 ,.,, 

0.71 
57.92 

440.40 
10.11 

52L21 

17.'J'J 
17.'J'J 

'6.00 
127.00 
22300 

193.10 

""" 
19.18 
1!1.88 

101.01 
I0L0I 

18.92 ,.,. 
220.49 
42.15 

26164 

209.19 
6.51 

21!!.70 

52.25 

"-" 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear 
mdol 

31Mardl.2024 
(Unaudited) 

1.47 
1.47 

(2.86) 
31.61 ... 
rn 

.,. 
"" 

32.13 
0.07 

32.20 

441.11 
90.77 

"'·" 
11.21 
18.21 

162.00 
146.00 
308.00 

194.51 
194.!11 

19.63 
1'.63 

202.47 
202.47 

37.84 
37.84 

441.11 
90.77 

"'·" 

22a90 
rn 

227.32 

41.71 

"·" 

0.02 
0.30 
1.13 

•A11helilhilitiellforlhepuitymdllOillpeDllllcd~...,prmdcduaan111,:tuuidbuia,md.~ll\1Wdedforthellll!plldiw8PVu1wbw:,1hl:-.dli.bili.tie11~!!plllolifi~toKMP...,notkoownforwm:ntperiodmdbau:e,D.rtim:ludedll:re. 

PNmdoa. COJ" Gntnlty and CODl)IIIIAted 1baencatramf'IJ'tu 
- 'Wi.twicky Om Privm Limilltd 
- Brookprop Property Mmll&emcd Scrn\lQI Pl:mk: Limited 

Prorinoa. fOJ" Bonutnmfertu 
- 'Wi.twicky Om Privm Limilltd 
• Brookprop Property Manapmcllll: Sm-wees PriYm Limited 

RepaymeatofUnltC.pital 
•BSREPindia Oflille HaldinpVPk:. Ltd. 
•BSREPindiaOfliceHaldi!lpPteI.td. 
•BSREPIIIndiaOfliceHol.4il¥IIPm.Ltd. 
•BSREPindiaOflilleHaldinpfilPll:.Ltd. 
• BSREP India Office Haldi!lp IV Phi. Ud. 
•BSREPindia Oflille HaldinpVI Pk:. Ud. 
-Projei:tDi-.im!Hol.dinp(DlFC)Limitlld 
-AxiaBmLimited 

119.60 
91.71 
69.56 
11.17 
34.17 

1.77 
28.06 

121.80 
!11.77 
74.!II 
87.41 ,.., 

1.91 
30.22 

134.21 
102.92 

"·" 91.08 
38.35 

1.99 
31.49 

4.91 
48301 

248.40 
190.48 
144.47 
163.58 

"·" '·" 58.28 

251.12 
192.,0 
146.04 
170.42 
71.75 
,.n 

51.91 
2.'2 

8!17.04 

0.73 .,. ,., 

230.02 
1!11.73 
145.42 
169.61 
71.44 
3.70 

51.66 
9.15 

899.80 

Fortheyar .... 
31Mardl202!! 

(A•dlhd) 

,.,, 
'·" 

"'" 271.5!1 
.. 63 ,.,. .., 
•11 

309.87 

.,. 
12.71 ... ... 
<32 
3.53 ,,.,. 

1.26 
149.91 

5.21 
156.38 

.,. 
0.34 

157.95 
151.01 

1,00,.0, 

35.91 
3!.91 

682.00 
232.00 

""" 
382.65 
382.6! 

"·"' 39.99 

305.32 ,,,.,, 
56.77 
56.77 

655.12 
116.21 
771.33 

493.37 
15.40 

508.77 

125.73 

"'·" 

0.70 
0.16 

"·" 

""·" 383.05 
Z!I0.51 
331.99 
142.73 

7.39 
117.19 

2.'2 
1,781.90 

Fortheyar .... 
31Mardl2024 

(A•dlhd) 

'·" ... 
(0.55) 
37.77 

9.51 
0.50 

0.08 
47.31 

56.63 
0.07 ..,. 

4,000.00 
,00,00 

4,!!00.00 

73.28 
73.'8 

14.75 
14.7!1 

7,370.00 
1,500.00 
8,870.00 

>16.11 
113.31 
660.08 

22.63 
2163 

294.00 
146.00 
440.00 

228.43 ., ... 
24.04 
24.04 

238.72 .,.,, 
"·" .. ., 

>16.77 
113.31 ... ,. 
""·" 607.68 

1,176.49 
1,176.4' 

204.34 
204.34 

2,228.80 
2,228.80 

319.69 

'·" ..... 
.,_,, ,.,. 

1.75 
1.10 , ... 

"'·" 315.95 
m.n 
341.56 
143.11 

7.4' 
~8.66 
13.15 

1,746.D 



Brooldleld India Real Fatwte Tnut 
Coade.alled Co.allOlidated li'laaa.dal statemeaU 
(AD amonnu are In Rn,- mHUom unleaothenrhe dated) 
Notatu the Omdemed CnallOlidated li'laaa.dal BhtemeaU 

Natureoftn.naaction/Rn.tlty'1Name 

lnterflf.Dbtribvted 
•BSREPJndiaO.lli\leHaldinpVPle.IJd. 
• BSREP India Olli" Haldinp Pie. Lid. 
•BSREPIIIndiaOffillCIHol.dinpIIPm.Ltd. 
•BSREPJndiaO.lli\leHaldinpilll'll:.IJd. 
•BSREPJndiaO.lli\leHaldinpNPle.Ud. 
•BSREPJndia Offillll Haldi!lpVI Pkl. Ud. 
-~ci:tDi-..ndHol.dinp(DIFC)Limited 
-AxiaBanll:Limited 

otllerlncumellbtribvted 
•BSREPJndiaO.lli\leHaldinpVPle.IJd. 
•BSREPJndia Olli" HaldinpPtc. Lid. 
•BSREPIIIndiaOffillCIHol.dinpIIPm.Ltd. 
•BSREPJndiaOffillCIHaldi!lpillPm.Ltd. 
•BSREPJndia Olli" HaldinpNPle. Ud. 
•BSREPJndia Offillll Haldi!lpVI Pkl. Ud. 
-~ci:tDi-..ndHol.dinp(DIFC)Limited 
-AxiaBanll:Limilw 

DivldendDbtributed 
•BSREPJndiaO.lli\leHaldinpVPle.IJd. 
•BSREPJndiaOffillCIHaldi!lpPteLtd. 
•BSREPIIIndiaO.lli\le Hol.di:npIIPll:. Ltd. 
•BSREPJndiaO.lli\leHaldinpilll'll:.IJd. 
•BSREPJndia Offillll Haldi!lpNPkl. Ud. 
•BSREPJndia Olli" HaldinpVI Pie. Ud. 
-~ci:tDi-..ndHol.dinp(DIFC)Limited 
-AxiaBanll:Limited 

Purdl .. orBooUandPuiodlcal 
• Slritw Pnipelli.CII l'riv1llc linited 

Rffeauefromopenrtlom 
•Parthol Pnipelli.ea PriYllll Limited 
-SlmuaPrupmie11PrivllteI.ioi.ted 
-A«obodeOuePrivallllinited 
-cowrluJmliaPl:mk:limted 
-Sllllllllit Di&ital IDfrulns:ture I.ioi.ted 
•Brookloluti.OD1Global SGn'i.CCIIPriYltlllinited 

Rmtand Bin Charp1 
•Eqmnm.Blllimaril'mbl'rivm Limited 

Dnel.opmentManaa-ent r-
•Brookprop Property Manapmeni SlnillCII Private I.ioi.ted 

-""' -cowrlulmlial'fivmlimted 

Relm.bunement towards wltbboJcllna; tu: Ila~ on a..trkted Stock Unit 
• Brookli.dd Corporatio:n (Fonncldy known II Brookfi.Gld Allet Manapmenl Inc.) 

Repalrandmalntenance/MlaceUan.eOD1~and 
lldl"Uth!meatopm1e11 

-SlritwPnipelli.e11l'rivalclinited 
• Sr.liOII Cbl!lakya PYt. Ud. 
• Sr.liom Bllllplorc: Limilw {fuonerly known u Sdio■ Bimplorc: Pvt Ltd.) 

Amount l'l!adYed on account of term loan from bank 
-AxiaBanll:Limilw 

Repaymmtoftermloanfrom bank 
-AxiaBanll:Limilw 

lntenlllontermloanfrombank 
-AxiaBanll:Limilw 

Payment ofprocaalll fee fOJ"term loan from bank{ududlq;GS'I) 
-AxiaBanll:Limilw 
-AxiaThaeeScrn."81..imited 

Paymenttaward1otber borrowing l:<llll{adudingGS'I) 
- Axia Tnaee Scrn."8 Limited 

Depulitl,wlthbanbmade 
-AxiaBanklimited 

Depolltawlthbanbmalllrecl 
-AxiaBanll:Limilw 

lnterflt incume ua depolitl, with banlai 
-AxiaBanklimited 

Bankcharp1 
-AxiaBanklimited 

lnterfltllu:umeonaecwitydepolit 
-Brookloluti.OD1Globa!Seni.CC11l'rivalclinited 
-cowrlulmlial'fivmlimited 

lnterflt-1.on_,witydepolit 
•Brookloluti.OD1Globa!SftCC11PriYltlllinited 
-cowrluJmliaPl:mk:Limilw 

Slllflw.lllNI El:penM fndudhq; G5T) 
-Sr.liomCbl!lakya.Pri"'111clinited 

Forthequarter .... 
31Mardl.202!1 

(Unaudited) 

83.88 
64.32 

"·" 56.93 
23.97 

1.24 
19.68 

4.87 
3.73 
2.83 
3.31 
1.39 
0.07 

56.82 
43.57 
33.05 
38.56 
16.24 
0.84 

13.33 

<•00) 

36.10 
4.61 

30.32 
7L10 

(0.01) 
(0.01) 

'·" 106 

0.02 
L14 

158.30 
158.l0 

419.6' 
419.6!1 

9,388.07 
9,388.07 

1,873.31 
8,873.38 

36.12 
,.12 

2.61 
0.34 
1'4 

0.30 
164 

Forthequarter .... 
31Deum.ber2024 

(Unandlted) 

89.84 
68.89 ,,_,, 
60.'7 
25.67 
1.33 

21.08 

2.71 
2.07 
l.'7 
1.84 
w .,, . ., 

27.60 
21.16 
16.05 
11.73 , ... 
Ml .. , 

, .. , . ., 
19.44 .... 

1.13 
0.05 

593.70 
593.70 

.,.,. 
430.39 

... 
0.1' 

4,504.10 
4,!104.10 

4,481.40 
4,481.40 

19.21 

"" 

Forthequarter .... 
31Mardl.2024 

(Unaudited) 

11!1.60 
91.71 
69.56 
81.17 
34.17 

1.77 

"·" 4.38 ... ., 
3.2' , .... 
'·" 2.20 
0.93 
0.05 
0.76 
0.12 

,1. .. 

19.64 
3.32 
2.85 

2!1.88 

0.47 . ., 
1.53 
~.") 

137.00 
137.00 

414.13 
414.83 

6,271.59 
6,271.!19 . .,.,, 
6,4003' 

38.63 ,.., 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear 
mdol 

31Mardl.202!1 
(Unaudited) 

173.n 
133.21 
101.03 
117.89 
...... 

2.57 
40.76 

7.SB 
5.BI 
4.41 
5.14 
2.16 
0.11 
1.71 

84.42 
64.74 
49.10 
57.29 
24.12 

1.2' 
19.11 

56.71 
uo 

49.76 
111.33 

(0.01) 
(0.01) 

'·" '·" 

'·" 0.05 
0.02 
2.32 

752.00 
752.00 

850.03 
8!!0.03 

0.15 
0.1' 

13,892.17 
ll,8'2.17 

13,354.78 
ll,354.78 

55.33 ,,.,, 

4.53 
0.34 
487 

'·" 0.30 
4.33 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear .... 
30September2024 

(Unaudited) 

214.85 
164.75 
124.95 
145.Bl 
61.39 
3.18 

,.,1 
m 

767.4'J 

7.04 

'·" <09 
<77 
2.01 

"' 1.65 . ., 
"" 
27.60 
21.16 
16.05 
11.73 , ... 
Ml .. , 
0.28 .... 

31.78 
<06 ,.., 

77.32 

2.27 
~.02) 

46.IO 

"" 

135.86 
83!!.86 

18,415.33 
18,41!1.33 

18,706.49 
18,706.49 

,.., .... 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear 
mdol 

31Mardl.2024 
(Unaudited) 

231.62 
ln.61 
134.71 
157.20 
66.11 
3.43 

5<34 
8.48 .,..., 

13.53 
10.37 ,.., 
9.18 
3.87 
•20 
3.17 .,, ..... 

(0.03) .,. 
(0.03) 
31.56 
3.19 ,.., .... 

0.47 
0.47 

2.62 
0.49 

137.00 
137.00 

132.09 
832.0, 

12,260.37 
12,260.37 

12,622.05 
11.,622.0!1 

75.30 ,,.,. 

.,. 
0.04 

Fortheyar .... 
31Mardl202!! 

(A•dlhd) 

381.57 

""·" 225.98 
263.7-0 
111.03 

5.75 
91.16 
m 

1.386.31 

14.61 
11.20 

'·" '·" "' .,, 
3.43 . ., 
"·" 

112.02 
85.90 
65.15 
7'03 
32.01 
1.66 

26.28 
0.28 ,,,.,, 

95.50 
1.16 

"'" 188.66 

2.06 

'·" 

"' 0.03 
•02 
457 

791.BO 

"'·" 

1,685.90 ...... 

... 
0.1' 

32,307.50 
32,307.!I0 

32,061.27 
32,061.27 

152.02 
152.02 

5.42 
0.34 
5.16 

412 .,. 
5.11 

Fortheyar .... 
31Mardl2024 

(A•dlhd) 

452.96 
347.34 
263.44 
307.41 
129.43 

'·" 54.34 
12.02 

1,573.64 

17.85 
13.69 
10.39 
12.12 
5.11 
0.20 
3.17 
0.58 

63.17 

0.07 
0.07 

(0.01) 
0.(]6 

(0.01) 

"·" 4.0, 

2.85 
'142 

0.47 . ., 
3.00 
0.4' 

B,137.00 
8,137.00 

983.44 ... .. 

0.2' .,, 

61,122.17 
61,122.17 

60,056.35 
60,056.35 

195.25 ,,.,, 

o ... ... 

0.04 .,. 



Brooldleld India Real Fatwte Tnut 
Coade.alled Co.allOlidated li'laaa.dal statemeaU 
(AD amonnu are In Rn,- mHUom unleaothenrhe dated) 
Notatu the Omdemed CnallOlidated li'laaa.dal BhtemeaU 

Natureoftn.naaction/Rn.tlty'1Name 

Seauitydepoatl'ffllived 
•EqmnoxBlllimariPmkaPrivm Limited 
-cowrlulndiaPl:mk:Limillxl 
-BruokBullllionBGioba!Seni.CC11Privalclinited 

Forthequarter .... 
31Mardl.202!1 

(Unaudited) 

20.80 
28.83 .... 

Forthequarter .... 
31Deum.ber2024 

(Unandlted) 

Forthequarter .... 
31Mardl.2024 

(Unaudited) 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear 
mdol 

31Mardl.202!1 
(Unaudited) 

20.80 
28.83 ..... 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear .... 
30September2024 

(Unaudited) 

<71 
100.61 
10!!.32 

FOJ"tb.ebalfyear 
mdol 

31Mardl.2024 
(Unaudited) 

•A1tmliabilitiesfor1Mgratuityand~abaenl:e&anprowktdonanai:lllarial.buia,andclimakldfortherespc,di.wSPVaa1whole,thelllidliabilitiespertainillslpCICiticallytoKMPannotknownforcurrentperiodandhcnce,notincludedMN. 

#'lmlll!IUIDrdatea.lllpro#OI1:fi.irOOillll.p:abli.tymdllOillf"'D!l!ed.i-eslnDRmlldOI1aclll,l\lld;oflrmlfa:ofemm,yeeL 

OU.tllaa.dln!lbahuu:U 

TradePayaNe(netoffflthbukllD!ltu) 
-BlomprupMamci,meDl:ServillCIIPri~Limi.lltd 
• Broolditld HRS TS lLC 
- Bromprup Pruperty Mmll&emcd Scrn\lQI Pl:mk: Limillxl 
- Sr.NOii Cbl!lakya PYt. Ltd. 
•Strito:nPropertieaPrivallllinited 
-UemMaxEmiro&leq;ySliuti.0111Pri~I.inited 
•TnmitionCeanlechSeni.CNPrivallllinited 
-ru-Digitellllli'a&lmctln Pnvm Limited 
-Com:klJndi.aPri~limillxl 
• Eqmnox Blllimll Pmka Privm Limited 
-TransitionEne1BYServii:esPYl:.Ltd. 

- Schloss Banplore Umlted (formerly known as Schloss Banplae Pvt Ltd) 

other PayaNe (net ofwlthbohling tu) 
- Bromprup Pruperty Mmll&emcd Scrn\lQI Pl:iwk: Limillxl 
- 'Witwicky Om Privm Limi.lltd 
•M'auntailllllarlndiaOftillCIPerklPriVlllllinited 
•BSREPindia O.llille HaldiIJpVPle. Ltd. 
•BroolditldCorporati.on(iilmlmyknownaaBroolditldAIICll:Managcmmtl!lll..) 

Prepaldopen11a 
•M'auntailllllarlndiaOftillCIPerklPriVlllllinited 
- Bromprup Property Manapmcllll: s.-w- PriYm Limited 

otllerrecelvabla 
-M'auntailllllarindiaOftillePmklPri~I.inited 
•A«obodeOnePriwteLimi.ted 
•BroolditldCorporati.on(FODllfflykDDwnaaBrookti.eldA-1:ManapDICIDll!lll..) 
-Strito:nPropertie11Privalclinited 
• Eqmnox Blllimll Pmka Privm Limited 
- Bromprup Pruperty Mmll&emcd Scrn\lQI Pliwt,,: Limited 
-ROllnm.Rl:altyPriwll:linited 
•Arl.iplndiaO.llicePalkaPriwteLimited 

i..-rentequallntion 
-BruokBullllionBGioba!Seni.CC11Privalclinited 

ll.50%Nonconverllbledeben.torea 
-Recolri1PriwteLimi.1ed 
-Reco Rodi: PriYm Limited 

14%Com.pulloril,yConvertibleDtbentura 
•RecoEmopiumPriVlllllinited 

DerifttlnAa.b 
•RecoEmopiumPriVlllllinited 

Seauitydepoatfrom.leatee 
-cowrlulndial'livmlini.ted 
-BruokBullllionBGioba!Seni.CC11Privalclinited 

Uabiuty component or compound fbum.dal lmtrument 
-Recoo.:rium.PriwteLimi.ted 

Term loam from banb 
-AmBankLimillxl 

Traderecemlble 
-8\IIIIIID.tDi&itallnliulru:tureLimi.lltd 
•BniokBuluti.OD1Gioba!Seni.CNPrivallllinited 

Coatlnpnt conllderatloa. payable 
-ProjoctDiamondHd.dinp(DlFC)Limited 
-Projei:tCoUonHddillpOD.:(DIFC)Limited 
•BSREPindiaO.llilleHaldiIJpilPle.Ltd 
•BSREPlndiaO.llillCIHaldi!lpPte.Ltd 

BaJaa.cewlthbanJui(lncurna.t11UODDt) 
-AmBanklimited 

Balance with ban.kl (ID depoat aa:onnt}-Cull ud eub. l!ljuinlenb 

-AmBankLimillxl 

Balance with ban.kl (ID depoat aa:onnt)-Other baa.Ir. balaa.ca 
-AmBanklimited 

lnter91tacav.ed but not due on depolltawlth bub 
-AmBanklimited 

Fortheyar .... 
31Mardl202!! 

(A•dlhd) 

25.51 
129.44 
15<'4 

Fortheyar .... 
31Mardl2024 

(A•dlhd) 

Ant Ant 
31 Mardi 202!! 31 Mardi 2024 

35.48 22.0!I 
6.60 15.93 

80.!15 36.51 
0.09 
5.34 

0.17 0.08 
!><21 
0.08 

"" 0.05 0.08 
5.21 

0.32 
104 

"" 0.42 
1.24 

'·" rn 

"'·" 

"·" ,,_,, 

.,...., 
1,151.64 
7,718.04 

3,620.77 
3,620.77 

274.00 
274.00 

,rn 
10169 
15<'4 

189.16 
189.16 

20,345.64 
20,345.64 

61.81 
61.81 

2,761.10 
2,761.10 

374.53 
374.!13 

,.20 
,.20 

15.04 
2.47 
1.86 
!1.51 
0.08 ,.,. 
0.'4 
14' 
142 

7,076.00 
1,354.00 
8,430.00 

3,497.26 
3,ffl.26 

260.25 

""" 

212.90 
212.,0 

19,453.25 

"'·""' 
0.76 
0.15 

"" 
37.52 

0.00 
4!>.22 
0.03 .. ,, 

46.75 .. ,. 
2,741.12 
2,741.12 

177.30 
177.30 

, . ., . ., 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Conden1ed Comolidated Financial Statement1 
(All amwnts are in Rupea milliom unle11 otherwise 1tated) 
Note1 to the Condensed Con1olidated Financial Statements 

44 A1aet:1 Acquilition 

(i) On 18 August 2023, Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stake by acquiring 50% of the equity interest and compulsorily convertible debentures ofCandm Gurgaon 1 as described in mme detail in Note 1 - Organization structure; for 
a total consideration of Rs. 8,602.64 million. Brookfield India REIT has also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to this asset acquisition, amounting to Rs. 66.87 million, resulting in the total purchase consideration of Rs. 
8,669.51 million (the "Purcluise consideratimr). 
Brookfield India REIT applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS I 03, and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated 
in investment properties, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, this transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition. 
Brookfield India REIT identified and recognized the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair 
values at the date of acquisition. 

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Candor Gurgaon 1 as at the date of acquisition were: 

A1sets Am.wnt tin millionl 
........., ...... , ... Iant and eouimnent 58.51 
Investment .....,_,-.,, 42 954.58 
Investment.....,_,-.,, under deve}nnrn....t- 211.74 
Other assets 4 741.86 
Total Alsets (Al 47.966.69 

Liabilitia 
Borrowin1111 fincl .. ~; ..... cmrent :maturities oflonP- term borrowin1111l 28 471.45 
Other liabilities 2 460.04 
Total Liabilitie1 /Bl 30.931A9 

Non-Controlline lntered (Cl 8.365.69 

Net Aa,et, (A-B-Cl 8.669.51 

(ii) On 28 August 2023, Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stak< by acquiring 50% of the equity interest aad compulsorily convertible debentures ofKallos aa described in more detail in Note 1 - Organization structure; for a total 
consideration Rs. 15,256.85 million (including issue of units of Brookfield India REIT of Rs. 4,000 million). Brookfield India REIT has also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to this asset acquisition, amounting to Rs. 67.91 
million, resulting in the total purchase consideration of Rs. 15,324.76 million (the "Purcluise consideration'). 
Brookfield India REIT applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS 103, and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated 
in investment properties, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, this transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition. 
Brookfield India REIT identified and recognized the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair 
values at the date of acquisition. 

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities ofKairos as at the date of acquisition were: 

Assets Amwnt tin million) 
PrnnPrtv nlant and eaui'DDlent 30.54 
Investment nmnP.rtv 63 699.62 
Investment_,_-.,, under devel-- 493.46 
Other assets 2 378.32 
Total Aa1et1 <Al 66.601.94 

Liabilities 
Borrowinmi (inclm~ino cmrent :maturities of lone- term borrowinmi) 34 063.11 
Other liabilities 5 250.18 
Total Liabilities IB) 39.313.29 

Non-Controllinu Interest rn 11-963.89 

Net Alsets IA-B-Cl 15.324.76 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Conden1ed Comolidated Financial Statement1 
(All amwnts are in Rupea milliom unle11 otherwise 1tated) 
Note1 to the Condensed Con1olidated Financial Statements 

4~ Acquuition note on joint venture 

On 21 Jum: 2024, Brookfield India REIT acquired 50% equity interest in Rostrum Reality Private Llmitm (Rostrum) and its subsidiaries fm a consideration of Rs. 12,279.00 million settled by issuance of 40,930,000 units to Bharti Sellers 
(refi:r note I) at a price oH 300 per unit The remaining 50% equity interest in Roattum is held by Metalliea Holding, (DIFC) Limited (Dubai), a related party of Brookfield India REIT. 
The relevant activities of Rostrum require tire unanimous consent of both tire shareholders, resulting in Rostrum being accounted as a joint venture. Therefore, investment in Rostrum is accounted under equity method from tire date of 
acquisition as per Ind AS 28-Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. The directly attributable transaction cost of Rs. 43.59 million is included in the cost of investment in joint venture. 

The share of loss of equity mdb.od investee from tire date of acquisition is Rs. 541.43 million 

46 Bu1ine11 Combination 
Effective 07 Jamimy 2025, Brookfield India REIT has acqujred I 00% equity shares ofMountainstar India Office Parl<s Private Limited (MIOP) by exercising 1lu: call option, at a pre-detemrined purchase consideration of Rs. 1,504.00 million 
(subject to adjustmeots in relation to debt aod o1her adjustments as agreed between 1he parties), pursuaot to 1he option agreemeat sigoed among/lt Brookfield India REIT, erstwhile shareholders ofMJOP, aod MJOP dated 18 May 2023 aod 
share purchase aod subscription agreement dated 06 Jamimy 2025. Net purchase consideration (after adjusting fur debt aod o1her items of assets aod liabilitiea) of Rs. 54.00 million (1he "Pun:hase coosideratimr1 was discharged in cash. 
During 1he year eaded 31 Mareh 2025, 11u, acquiaitioo of MJOP has beea accounted using pooling of intereat method in accordance wi1h Appendix C of hid AS I 03 "Busineas Combinatioos", in consolidated financial statements of Brookfield 
India REIT. Accordingly, tire financial infonnation in tire consolidated financial statements of Brookfield India REIT, in respect of prior period is presented as if tire business combination under common control had occurred with effect :from 0 1 
April 2023. Contractual liability, equal to the amount of the purchase consideration as mentioned above has been created as on 1 April 2023. The carrying value of investment in books of accounts of Brookfield India REIT in respect of MIOP, 
Del of face value of equity share capital of MJOP, has beea debited to "Amaigmnation adjustmeot reserve ". Subsequeotly, during 1lu: year eaded 31 March 2025, 1lu: cootractwd liability has beea settled through purchase consideration as 
mentioned above. 

Coosolidated financial statements in respect of prior periods is restared as if 1lu: business combination had occurred from 1he beginoing of 1he preceding period in 1lu: consolidated financial statements, irrespective of 1he actual dat< of 1he 
combination. 
Summmy of assets and liabilities acquired as a result of the above mentioned acquisition is as given below: 

a) Net uaeta ac uired 
Particulan 

A) A1set acquired on I April 2023 

Property, plant and equipment 
Income tax assets (net) 
Defem:d tax assets (Del) 
Other non-current assets 
Current Financial assets 

Cash aod cash equivalents 
Other financial assets 

Other cmrent assets 
Sub-total (A) 

B) Other Equity and Liabilitie1 as1um.ed on 1 April 2023 
Other Equity 
(i) Retained earnings 
(il) Securitiea premium 

Non-current liabilitie1 
Long term provisions 

Current finaocial liabilities 
Trade payables 
01her financial liabilities 

Other cmrent liabilities 
Provisions 

Sub-total (B) 

Net a,set, acquired [(A)-(B)]- (C) 
Les,: Contractual Liability (D) 
-Payable in cash 

Amoont traruferred to Amalgamation adjumnent raerve [(C)-(D)] 

Amouot 

42.01 
2.09 

(70.42) 
(408.22) 

4.28 
523.65 

Amount 

2.27 
9.88 
1.91 
0.11 

44.10 
19.78 
78.05 

(478.64) 

4.28 

527.93 
22.92 

1.43 
77.91 

0.13 

54.00 

(S3.8Z) 



Brookfield India Real Estate Tnut 
Condensed COD1olidated Financial Statement• 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unle11 otherwise stated) 

Note1 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

47 A. Detail, of utilization of Institutional plaeement (02 Augull 2023) as on 31 March 2025 are as follows: 

Object1 of the i11ue as per the placement document 

Funding of the consideration for the (i) Downtown Powai Acquisition; and/or (ii) Gl Acquisition 
General purpo,es 
Jssue'"""""""S 

Total 
Note: Amount of Rs. 2.69 million has been used for general corporate pwposes :from the proposed utilimtion towards issue expenses. 

B. Details of utilization of proceedl of Commercial Paper (i11ued on 17 Auguat 2023) as on 31 March 2023 are u follow1: 

Objects of the Ulsue u per the letter of offer 

For repayment of debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) of Brookfield India R<al Estate Trust and towards transaction expenses, capital expenditure and working capital 
requirements ofBrooldield India R<al Estate Trust and its SPVs 

Total 

C. Details of utilization of proceedl of Commercial Paper (ilsued on 29 April 2024) as on 31 March 202S are as follow1: 

Objects of the Ulsue u per the letter of offer 

For repayment of debt of Special Pmpose Vehicles (SPVs) of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust, towards transaction expenses, capital expenditure, working capital requirements and 
expenses of Brookfield India R<al Estate Trust and its SPVs and fur any other g<neral corporate purpo,e. 
Total 

D. Details of utilization of proceedl of Commercial Paper (ilsued on 19 Aug111t 2024) 81 on 31 March 2023 are 81 followa: 

Objects of the ii sue 81 per the letter of offer 

For repayment of debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) of Brookfield India R<al Estate Trust, towards transaction expenses, capital expenditure, work.mg capital reqwrements and 
expenses of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its SPV s and fur any other g<neral corporate purpo,e 
Total 

E Details of utilization of ln!ltitutional olacement '12 December 2024) 81 on 31 March 2025 are 81 follows· 
Objects of the ii sue 81 per the placement document 

Partial or full pre-prepayment or scheduled repayment of certain debt facilities availed by the REIT and Asset SPV s from banks/financial institutions 

General purposes 
Issue related exoenses 
Total 

48 Distribution Policy 

Proposed utilization 

22.000.00 
203.59 
850.00 

23.o,;3.59 

Proposed utilization 

6,948.95 

6.948.95 

Proposed utilization 

1,870.83 

U70.113 

Proposed utilization 

4 762.32 
3 009.65 
7 771.97 

Proposed utilization 

32,000.00 

2,300.00 
700.00 

35000.00 

Actual utilization Unutilized amount u 
upto at 

31 March 2025 31 March 2025 
21,896.76 103.24 

206.28 
732.89 114.42 

22-"35.93 217.66 

Actual utilization Unutilized amount u 
upto at 

31 March 2025 31 March 2025 
6,948.95 

6.948.95 

Actual utilization Unutilized amount u 
upto at 

31 March 2025 31 March 2025 

1,870.83 

U70.83 

Actual utilization Unutilized amount 81 
upto at 

31 March 2025 31 March 2025 
4 762.32 

3009.65 
7 771.97 

Actual utilization Unutilized amount 81 
upto at 

31 March 2025 31 March 2025 
31,991.06 8.94 

1,851.88 448.12 
657.26 42.74 

34'"".20 499.80 

In terms of tire Distribution policy and R.ElT Ri:guhrtions, not less than 90% of tire NDCFs of our Asset SPVs are required to be distributed to Brookfield REIT/Holdco, in proportion of its shareholding in our Asset SPVs, subject to applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act Furlher, the Holdco shall diatribute 100% ofNDFC received from Asset SPVs and not less than 90% ofNDCF generated on its own to Brookfield India REIT. The cash flows receivable by Brookfield REIT/Holdco may be in the 
form of dividends, interest inccnm:, principal loan repaymmt, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback :from our Asset SPVs/CIOP/MIOP, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments of any or assets directly/ indirectly lreld by Brookfield REIT or as 
specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other fmn as may be permissible under tire applicable laws. 

At les,t 90% of the NDCFs of Brookfield REIT ('REIT Distributions") shall be declared and made once every quarter of a Financial Year by our Manager. In accordance with the REIT Regulations, REIT Distributions shall be made within five work.mg 
days :from tire record date. The REIT Distributions, when made, shall be made in Indian Rupees. 

The NDCFs shall be calculated in accordance with tire REIT Reguhrtions and any circular, notification or guidelim:s issued tlrereunder including tire SEBI Guidelines. 

49 Pursuant to National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT'') order dated 08 May 2024, Festus Properties Private Limited (Festus) has reduced its issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company from Rs. 4,646.41 million consisting of 
464.64 million equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid, to Rs. 464.64 million consisting of 464.64 million equity shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid, by reducing the face value of each share from Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 1/- each fully paid thereby reducing the 
equity share capital to tire extent of Rs. 4,181.77 million to set off the accumulated losses (i.e., debit balance of profit and loss account) of Rs. 4,181.77 million. 

Pursuant to National Company Law Tribunal ("NCL T') order dated 07 June 2024, Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited (NI) has reduced its issued, subscnoed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company from Rs. 1,438.65 million consisting of 
143.87 million equity shares of Rs. 10/-eachfully paid, to Rs. 1,150.92 million consisting of 143.87 million equity shares of Rs. 8/-eachfully paid, by reducing the face value of each share from Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 8/- each fully paid thereby reducing the 
equity share capital to the extent of Rs. 287. 73 million; and utiliz.ed Rs. 1,268.94 million out of the balance available in the securities premium account of NI to set off the accumulated losses (i.e., debit balance of profit and loss account) of Rs. 1,556.67 
million. 

Pursuant to National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT") order dated 07 June 2024, Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (Kl) has utilized Rs. 3,086.20 million out of the balance available in the securities premium account of the 
Company to set offtlre accumulated losses (i.e., debit balance of profit and loss account) of Rs. 3,086.20 million. The said petitioo. has been duly filed with Registrar of Companies on 09 July 2024 tlrereby making the Scheme effective :from 09 July 2024. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Coruiolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Notes to the Condensed Coruiolidated Financial Statements 

50 Following events happened subsequent to the balance sheet date: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 123 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
(a) the board or directors of CIOP in its meeting held on 28 April 2025, recommended and declared an interim dividend of Rs. 3,800.00 per equity share (38000%) on the face value of Rs. 10/- per share aggregating to Rs. 38 million for the period ended 

on3l March2025., 
(b) the board of directors of SPPL Noida in its meeting held on 28 April 2025, recommended and declared an interim dividend of Rs. 0.35 per equity share (4.375%) on the face vaJue or Rs. 8/- per share aggregating to Rs. 50.35 million for the period 
ended on 31 March 2025, and 
(c) the board of directors of Rostrum in its meeting held on 29 April 2025, recommended and declared an interim dividend of Rs. 8.60 per equity share (86%) on the face value or Rs. I 0/- per share aggregating to Rs. 565.00 million for the period ended on 
31 March 2025. 

51 a) The figures for the quarter ended 31 March 2025 arc the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 and the unaudited published figures upto period ended 31 December 2024 and 30 September 2024 which 
were both subject to limited review by the statutory auditors. 

b) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2024 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 and the unaudited published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2023 and 30 
September 2023 which were subject to limited review by the statutory auditors. 

52 "0.00" Represents vaJue less than Rs. 0.01 million. 

For and on behalf of the Board or Directors of J 
;:;~ ~:;,~"")~ e'~# 

j _ -~ Ankur Gupta Alok Auanval r Director CEO and Managing Director 

DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 05 May 2025 

Place: Mumbai 


